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Definitions and Introduction
Our legal and commercial name is ReWalk Robotics Ltd. We are a company limited by shares organized under the laws of the State of Israel and
were founded in 2001. In September 2014, we listed our shares on the Nasdaq Global Market. We have irrevocably appointed ReWalk Robotics, Inc. as our
agent to receive service of process in any action against us in any United States federal or state court. The address of ReWalk Robotics, Inc. is 33 Locke
Drive, Marlborough, MA 01752. As used herein, and unless the context suggests otherwise, the terms ReWalk, the Company, we, us or ours refer to ReWalk
Robotics Ltd.
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This annual report on Form 10-K, or annual report, contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and the safe harbor
provisions of the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, that are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information
currently available to our management. Forward-looking statements include information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations,
business strategies, financing plans, competitive position, industry environment, potential growth opportunities, potential market opportunities and the
effects of competition. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be identified by terms such as “anticipates,”
“believes,” “could,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would" or similar
expressions that convey uncertainty of future events or outcomes and the negatives of those terms. These statements include, but are not limited to,
statements regarding:
•

our expectations regarding future growth, including our ability to increase sales in our existing geographic markets and to expand to new
markets;

•

our ability to maintain and grow our reputation and the market acceptance of our products;

•

our ability to achieve reimbursement from third-party payors for our products;

•

our expectations as to our clinical research program and clinical results;

•

our ability to improve our products and develop new products;

•

our ability to maintain adequate protection of our intellectual property and to avoid violation of the intellectual property rights of others;

•

our ability to gain and maintain regulatory approvals; and

•

our ability to maintain relationships with existing customers and develop relationships with new customers.

The preceding list is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all of our statements. The statements are based on our beliefs, assumptions and
expectations of future performance, taking into account the information currently available to us. These statements are only predictions based upon our
current expectations and projections about future events. There are important factors that could cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements to differ materially from the results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the statements. In particular, you
should consider the risks provided under Item 1A. "Risk Factors" in this annual report.
You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee that future results, levels of activity, performance and events and circumstances reflected in
the forward-looking statements will be achieved or will occur.
These statements may be found in the sections of this annual report titled Item 1. "Business," Item 1A. "Risk Factors," Item 7. "Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and elsewhere in this annual report.
You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update publicly any
forward-looking statements for any reason after the date of this annual report, to conform these statements to actual results or to changes in our expectations.
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Where You Can Find Other Information
Our principal executive offices are located at 3 Hatnufa Street, Floor 6, Yokneam Ilit 2069203, Israel, and our telephone number is +972 (4) 9590123. Our website is www.rewalk.com. Information contained, or that can be accessed through, our website does not constitute a part of this annual report
and is not incorporated by reference herein. We have included our website address in this annual report solely for informational purposes. Information that we
furnish with or file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to, or exhibits included in, these reports are available for download, free of charge, on our website as soon
as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed or furnished with the SEC. As we were subject to the information reporting requirements applicable to
foreign private issuers prior to January 1, 2016, we filed with the SEC an annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2014 and submitted to
the SEC, on Form 6-K, unaudited quarterly financial information during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. These reports may also be downloaded free
of charge on our website. Our SEC filings, including exhibits filed or furnished therewith, are also available on the SEC’s website at SEC.gov. You may
obtain and copy any document we furnish or file with the SEC at the SEC’s public reference room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549.
You may obtain information on the operation of the SEC’s public reference facilities by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You may request copies of these
documents, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by writing to the SEC at its principal office at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview
We are an innovative medical device company that is designing, developing and commercializing exoskeletons that allow wheelchair-bound
individuals with mobility impairments or other medical conditions the ability to stand and walk once again. We have developed and are continuing to
commercialize ReWalk, an exoskeleton that uses our patented tilt-sensor technology and an on-board computer and motion sensors to drive motorized legs
that power movement.
Current ReWalk designs are intended for people with paraplegia, a spinal cord injury resulting in complete or incomplete paralysis of the legs, who
have the use of their upper bodies and arms. We currently offer two products: ReWalk Personal and ReWalk Rehabilitation. ReWalk Personal is designed for
everyday use by individuals at home and in their communities, and is custom fitted for each user. ReWalk Rehabilitation is designed for the clinical
rehabilitation environment where it provides valuable exercise and therapy. It also enables individuals to evaluate their capacity for using ReWalk Personal in
the future. In 2011, we launched ReWalk Rehabilitation for use in hospitals and rehabilitation centers in the United States, Europe and Asia. We began
marketing ReWalk Personal in Europe with CE mark clearance at the end of 2012 and received U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, clearance to
market it in the United States in June 2014. ReWalk is the first exoskeleton cleared by the FDA for personal use. In September 2013, we received clearance to
sell ReWalk in Canada and, in January 2015, we received regulatory approval to distribute ReWalk systems in Australia from the Therapeutic Goods
Administration, or the TGA. In the future, we will need to obtain approval from the applicable regulatory agency of any additional jurisdiction in which we
seek to market ReWalk.
ReWalk is a breakthrough product that can fundamentally change the health and life experiences of users. ReWalk is currently the only
commercialized exoskeleton using a tilt sensor to restore self-initiated walking. Designed for all-day use, ReWalk is battery-powered and consists of a light,
wearable exoskeleton with integrated motors at the joints, an array of sensors and a computer-based control system to power knee and hip movement. ReWalk
controls movement using subtle shifts in the user’s center of gravity. A forward tilt of the upper body is sensed by the system, which initiates the first step.
Repeated body shifting generates a sequence of steps which allows for natural gait with functional walking speed. Because the exoskeleton supports its own
weight and facilitates the user’s natural gait, users do not expend unnecessary energy while walking. While ReWalk does not allow side-to-side actuation,
users are able to turn by shifting their weight to the side. ReWalk also allows users to sit, stand and, depending on local regulatory approvals, climb and
descend stairs. ReWalk users are able to independently operate the devices, and most are able to put on and remove the devices by themselves. However, our
safety guidelines and FDA specifications require users to be accompanied by a trained companion.
Published clinical studies demonstrate ReWalk’s ability to deliver a natural gait and functional walking speed, which has not been shown in studies
for any competing exoskeleton. In addition, our interim analysis of an ongoing clinical study and our experience working with health care practitioners and
ReWalk users suggests that ReWalk has the potential to provide secondary health benefits. These benefits include reducing pain and spasticity and improving
bowel and urinary tract function, body and bone composition, metabolism and physical fitness, as well as reducing hospitalizations and dependence on
medications. Because of these secondary medical benefits, we believe that ReWalk has the ability to reduce the lifetime healthcare costs of individuals with
spinal cord injuries, making it economically attractive for individuals and third-party payors. While we believe that ReWalk offers significant advantages over
competing technologies and therapies, disadvantages include the time it takes for a user to put on ReWalk, the slower pace of ReWalk compared to a
wheelchair, the weight of ReWalk when carried, which makes it more burdensome for a companion to transport than a wheelchair, and the requirement that
users be accompanied by a trained companion.
Development of ReWalk took over a decade and was spurred by the experiences of our founder, Dr. Amit Goffer, who became a quadriplegic due to
an accident. As of December 31, 2015, we had placed 104 units in use at rehabilitation centers and 107 in a home or community use.
Our commercialization strategy is to penetrate rehabilitation centers, hospitals and similar facilities that treat patients with spinal cord injuries to
become an integral part of their rehabilitation programs and to develop a broad based training network with these facilities to prepare users for home and
community use. According to the National Spinal Cord Injury Statistical Center, 87% of persons with spinal cord injuries are sent to private, non-institutional
residences (in most cases, their homes) after hospital discharge. As a result, while almost half of our sales to date have been for use in a Rehabilitation setting,
the primary focus of our commercialization efforts going forward will be marketing ReWalk Personal for routine use at home, work or in the community, and
we expect sales of ReWalk Personal to account for the substantial majority of our revenues in the future.
We expect to generate revenues from a combination of third-party payors, self-payors and institutions. While no uniform policy of coverage and
reimbursement by third-party payors currently exists for electronic exoskeleton technologies such as ReWalk, we plan to pursue various paths of
reimbursement and support fundraising efforts by institutions and clinics. In December 2015, the Veterans’ Administration, or the VA, issued a national policy
for the evaluation, training and procurement of ReWalk
1

Personal exoskeleton systems for all qualifying veterans across the United States. The VA policy, which is exclusive to ReWalk Robotics exoskeleton
systems, is the first national coverage policy in the United States for qualifying individuals who have suffered spinal cord injury. Additionally, to date several
private insurers in the United States and Europe have provided reimbursement for ReWalk in certain cases.
Overview of Spinal Anatomy and Spinal Cord Injury
Spinal Anatomy
The spine is the central core of the human skeleton and provides structural support, alignment and flexibility to the body. It consists of 24
interlocking bones, called vertebrae, which are stacked on top of one another. The spine is comprised of five regions, of which there are three primary regions:
cervical, thoracic and lumbar. In addition, there is also the sacral region, or sacrum, a triangular-shaped bone and the coccyx, or “tailbone,” the bottom portion
of the spine.
The spinal cord, housed inside the bony spinal column, is a complex bundle of nerves serving as the main pathway for information connecting the
brain and nervous system. The spinal cord is divided into 31 segments that feed sensory impulses into the spinal cord, which in turn relays them to the brain.
Conversely, motor impulses generated in the brain are relayed by the spinal cord to the spinal nerves, which pass the impulses to muscles and glands. The
spinal cord mediates the reflex responses to some sensory impulses directly, without recourse to the brain, for example, when a person’s leg is tapped,
producing the knee jerk reflex.
Spinal Cord Injury
Spinal cord injury is the result of a direct trauma to the nerves themselves or damage to the
surrounding bones and soft tissues which ultimately impacts the spinal cord. Spinal cord damage results in a
loss of function, such as mobility or feeling. In most people who have spinal cord injury, the spinal cord is
intact. Spinal cord injury is not the same as back injury, which may result from pinched nerves or ruptured
disks. Even when a person sustains a break in a vertebra or vertebrae, there may not be any spinal cord
injury if the spinal cord itself is not affected. There are two types of spinal cord injury – complete and
incomplete. In a complete injury, a person loses all ability to feel and voluntarily move below the level of
the injury. In an incomplete injury, there is some functioning below the level of the injury.
Upon examination, a patient is assigned a level of injury depending on the location of the spinal
cord injury. Cervical level injuries cause paralysis or weakness in both arms and legs and is referred to as
quadriplegia. Sometimes this type of injury is accompanied by loss of physical sensation, respiratory issues,
bowel, bladder, and sexual dysfunction. Thoracic level injuries can cause paralysis or weakness of the legs
(paraplegia) along with loss of physical sensation, bowel, bladder, and sexual dysfunction. In most cases,
arms and hands are not affected. Lumbar level injuries result in paralysis or weakness of the legs
(paraplegia). Loss of physical sensation, bowel, bladder, and sexual dysfunction can occur. The shoulder,
arm, and hand functions are usually unaffected. Sacral level injuries primarily cause loss of bowel and
bladder function as well as sexual dysfunction.
Image of Separated Spinal Cord of an
Adult
The history of exoskeleton development began in the 19th century, with the first patent for a mechanical suit appearing in 1890. The use of motors
and gears to power these suits is not new, with General Electric developing an early exoskeleton device in the 1960s. Called the Hardiman, it was a hydraulic
and electric body suit, but its weight and bulk made practical use prohibitive. Innovation of an advanced exoskeleton that restores a natural walking
experience has been a key technological goal of the industry, and the lack of such a system has hindered sector growth. Advances in computer hardware and
software and proprietary technological breakthroughs pioneered by us have resulted in the development of an advanced exoskeleton, ReWalk, that restores
walking with a natural gait and functional speed.
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Market Opportunity
Confinement to a wheelchair can cause severe physical and psychological deterioration, resulting in bad health, poor quality of life, low self-esteem
and high medical expenses. In addition, the secondary medical consequences of paralysis can include difficulty with bowel and urinary tract function,
osteoporosis, loss of lean mass, gain in fat mass, insulin resistance, diabetes and heart disease. The cost of treating these conditions is substantial. The
National Spinal Cord Injury Statistical Center, or the NSCISC, estimates that complications related to paraplegia cost, excluding indirect costs such as losses
in wages, fringe benefits and productivity, approximately $500,000 in the first year post-injury and significant additional amounts over the course of an
individual’s lifetime. Further, secondary complications related to spinal cord injury can reduce life expectancies for spinal cord injury, or SCI, patients.
The NSCISC estimates as of 2014 that there were 276,000 people in the United States living with spinal cord injury, with an annual incidence of
approximately 12,500 new cases per year. Approximately 42,000 of such patients are veterans, and are eligible for medical care and other benefits from the
VA. With 24 VA spinal cord injury centers, the VA has the largest single network of spinal cord injury care in the United States.
The University of Alabama-Birmingham Department of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation operates the NSCISC, which maintains the world’s
largest database on spinal cord injury research. Between September 2005 and March 2015, motor vehicle crashes have been the leading cause of reported
spinal cord injury cases (39%), followed by falls (30%), acts of violence (14%) and sports injuries (8%). Nearly 80% of spinal cord injuries occur among the
male population. According to NSCISC data, upon hospital discharge, 87% of persons with spinal cord injuries are sent to private, non-institutional residence
(in most cases, their homes prior to injury).
Three published ReWalk trials for SCI patients had an aggregate screening acceptance rate of 81%, when exclusions due to logistics, scheduling and
weight were removed. The weight exclusion can be considered potentially short term addressable, as focus was on determining medical exclusions such as
insufficient bone material density. This indicates that approximately 80% of the SCI population could be candidates for current or future ReWalk products.
The young average age at time of injury and significant remaining life expectancy, the likelihood of living at home and lifetime cost of treatment highlight the
need for an out-of-hospital solution with demonstrated health and social benefits.
In addition to developing the next generation of ReWalk, we are currently engaged in research and development efforts to adapt ReWalk to address
the mobility needs of multiple sclerosis and stroke patients.
According to the Multiple Sclerosis Foundation, as many as 400,000 Americans suffer from multiple sclerosis. Research indicates that
approximately half of these individuals would be classified as somewhere between a 4.0 and a 7.0 on the Kurtzke Disability Status Scale (DSS), a measure of
the need for walking assistance. Individuals with DSS 4.0 suffer from relatively severe disability while individuals with DSS 7.0 are generally restricted to a
wheelchair. Multiple sclerosis is a progressive disease, as approximately one-third of multiple sclerosis patients end up with full paralysis while two-thirds
remain able to walk, though many will need an aid, such as a cane or crutches, and some will use a scooter or wheelchair due to fatigue, weakness or balance
problems, or due to a need to conserve energy.
Over five million Americans have suffered a stroke, with 780,000 new incidences expected each year. Physical limitations after stroke vary from
case to case, but approximately 60% of these individuals will have lower limb disability, which could require them to seek additional assistance in walking.
Our Solutions
ReWalk is a breakthrough product that can fundamentally change the quality of life for individuals with lower limb disability through the creation and
development of market leading robotic technologies. Published clinical studies demonstrate ReWalk’s ability to deliver a natural gait and functional walking
speed. ReWalk’s patented tilt-sensor technology and an on-board computer and motion sensors drive motorized legs that power knee and hip movement and
allow self-initiated walking. ReWalk controls movement using subtle changes in the user’s center of gravity. A forward tilt of the upper body is sensed by the
system, which initiates the first step. Repeated body shifting generates a sequence of steps, which allows natural ambulation with functional walking speed.
While ReWalk does not allow side-to-side actuation, users are able to turn by shifting their weight to the side. ReWalk also allows users to sit, stand and,
depending on local regulatory approvals, climb and descend stairs. Use on stairs is not cleared by the FDA in the United States.
Designed for all-day use and worn over the clothes of users, ReWalk consists of a light wearable exoskeleton with integrated motors at the joints, an
array of sensors and a backpack or waist pack that contains the batteries and the computer-based control system. The control system utilizes proprietary
algorithms to analyze upper-body motions and trigger and maintain gait patterns and other modes of operation (such as stair-climbing and shifting from sitting
to standing), leaving the user’s hands free for self-support and other functions. Because the exoskeleton supports its own weight, users do not expend
unnecessary energy while walking. Safety measures include crutches, which provide additional stability, fall protection, which lowers users slowly and safely
in the event of a malfunction, and the secure “stand” mode, which automatically initiates if the user does not begin walking within
3

two seconds. ReWalk is also equipped with maintenance alarms, warnings and backup batteries. The rechargeable batteries are easily accessible and can be
recharged in any standard power outlet. Upon completion of training, which generally consists of approximately 15 one-hour sessions, most users are able to
put on and remove the device by themselves while sitting, typically in less than 15 minutes.
Current ReWalk designs are intended for people with paraplegia who have the use of their upper bodies and arms. We currently offer two ReWalk
products: ReWalk Personal and ReWalk Rehabilitation. For a breakdown of our revenues from sales of each of ReWalk Personal and ReWalk Rehabilitation,
see Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."
ReWalk Personal 6.0
• ReWalk Personal: intended for everyday use at home, at work or in the community.
We began marketing ReWalk Personal in Europe with CE mark clearance at the end of
2012. We received clearance to market ReWalk Personal in the United States in June
2014. ReWalk Personal units are all manufactured according to the same specifications.
Each unit is then permanently sized to fit the individual user and the software is
configured for the user’s specifications by the rehabilitation center, clinic or distributor.
• ReWalk Rehabilitation: designed for the clinical rehabilitation environment, ReWalk
Rehabilitation has adjustable sizing enabling multiple patient use. ReWalk
Rehabilitation provides a valuable means of exercise and therapy. It also enables
individuals to evaluate their capacity for using ReWalk Personal in the future. We
began marketing ReWalk Rehabilitation for use in hospitals, rehabilitation centers and
stand-alone training centers in the United States, Europe and Asia in 2011. ReWalk
Rehabilitation units are all manufactured according to the same specifications and are
equipped with adjustable sizing for multi-patient use.

Our interim analysis of an ongoing clinical study and our experience working with health care practitioners and ReWalk users suggest that ReWalk has
the potential to provide secondary health benefits. These benefits include reducing pain and spasticity and improving bowel and urinary tract function, body
and bone composition, metabolism and physical fitness, as well as reducing hospitalizations and dependence on medications. Because of these secondary
medical benefits, we believe that ReWalk has the ability to reduce the lifetime healthcare costs of individuals with spinal cord injuries, making it
economically attractive for individuals, healthcare providers such as hospitals and rehabilitation centers, and third-party payors.
We intend to continue to develop future generations of ReWalk, with a range of improvements including additional functionality, more efficient drive
mechanism, slimmer profile and lighter body, as well as other improvements. We plan to expand the designs and indications that we address beyond
paraplegia to include other disabilities affecting gait and ability to walk, such as multiple sclerosis, stroke and cerebral palsy.
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Third-Party Reimbursements
United States
In the United States, purchasers of ReWalk Rehabilitation have received reimbursement in certain cases. Private rehabilitation centers generally
purchase ReWalk Rehabilitation out-of-pocket and then charge patients for ReWalk therapy on a per-session basis. Patients can then seek reimbursement from
their insurance companies. Academic facilities such as teaching hospitals generally purchase ReWalk Rehabilitation out-of-pocket and provide patients the
opportunity to use the ReWalk without charging for each session. These institutions may then seek reimbursement from insurance companies and may be
willing to accept lower reimbursement rates than private facilities due to fewer pricing pressures.
In December 2015, the VA issued a national policy for the evaluation, training and procurement of ReWalk Personal exoskeleton systems for all
qualifying veterans across the United States. The VA policy, which is exclusive to ReWalk Robotics exoskeleton systems, is the first national coverage policy
in the United States for qualifying individuals who have suffered spinal cord injury.
While in some cases insurance companies have provided reimbursement for ReWalk Rehabilitation upon request, certain insurance companies view
ReWalk as an experimental therapy and therefore will not provide coverage at this time. Medicaid and Medicare have provided reimbursement for ReWalk
Rehabilitation sessions, although this coverage may have limits in terms of number or frequency of sessions. Worker’s Compensation has also provided
reimbursement.
Private insurance companies do not currently cover or provide reimbursement for any personal medical exoskeleton products, including ReWalk
Personal, and are limited to case-by-case decisions.
As part of our plan for growth, we intend to work with ReWalk users, health care practitioners, researchers, and the spinal cord injury community to
support efforts to demonstrate to insurance companies the health benefits and the economic case for reimbursement of ReWalk Personal. Initially, coverage
from private payers will be made on a case-by-case basis. Once a sufficient number of these cases have been approved, applications for local coverage
decisions from the private payers will be made. We currently sponsor clinical studies and academic publications that demonstrate the medical benefits of
ReWalk. In the future, we will pursue economic benefit clinical studies for the Centers for Medicare/Medicaid Services, or CMS, which would demonstrate
the secondary medical benefits and long-term cost savings potential of ReWalk. We believe that a positive response from CMS in respect of such studies will
broaden coverage by private insurers. We expect that it could take three to five years to receive a decision from CMS, but we believe that other sources of
payment will be sufficient to support our business.
Western Europe
Reimbursement for ReWalk in Europe varies by country. While we are not aware of any public or private payor that regularly covers ReWalk for
rehabilitation or personal use, third-party payors have provided reimbursement for our products in certain cases in Germany, France and Italy.
We are initially focusing our efforts in Europe in Germany, which has a single-payer system and where we believe we have made significant
progress toward achieving ReWalk coverage from the government. Because ReWalk is not currently covered in Germany, a patient who wishes to use ReWalk
must apply for coverage and receive an official denial. He or she must then appeal the decision in court, relying on supporting documentation from a health
care provider and other medical evidence. There are approximately 61 such cases pending in Germany, and we believe that these will result in eventual
coverage. We plan to continue to pursue this case-by-case strategy and expect that once the precedent for coverage is established, seeking coverage will
become easier and more routine. We continue to support clinical research and academic publications, which we believe will further support the case for
coverage.
We are also pursuing reimbursement by private insurers and worker’s compensation in various European countries.
Other Funding Sources
In addition to being funded by third-party payors, including private insurance plans, government programs such as the VA, and Worker's
Compensation, ReWalk is also funded by self-payers. Self-payers also include individuals who purchase ReWalk with funds from legal settlements with
insurance companies or third parties.
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Research and Development
We are committed to investing in a robust research and development program to enhance our current ReWalk products and to develop our pipeline of
new and complementary products, and we believe that ongoing research and development efforts are essential to our success. Our research and development
team includes engineers, machinists, researchers, marketing, quality, manufacturing, regulatory and clinical personnel, who work closely together to design,
enhance and validate our technologies. This research and development team conceptualizes technologies and then builds and tests prototypes before refining
and/or redesigning as necessary. Our regulatory and clinical personnel work in parallel with engineers and researchers, allowing us to anticipate and resolve
potential issues at early stages in the development cycle.
We plan to increase our investment in research and development in the future by continually improving our functional technological platform,
developing our next generation of ReWalk with design improvements and building upon our technological platform to address new medical indications that
affect the ability to walk such as quadriplegia, multiple sclerosis, stroke and cerebral palsy.
We conduct our research and development efforts at our facility in Yokneam, Israel. We believe that the close interaction among our research and
development, marketing and manufacturing groups allows for timely and effective realization of our new product concepts.
Our research and development efforts have been financed, in part, through funding from the Office of the Chief Scientist in the Israel Ministry of
Economy, or the OCS, and from the BIRD Foundation. From our inception through December 31, 2015, we received funding totaling $740,000 from the OCS
and $500,000 from the BIRD Foundation. Our research and development expenses, net were approximately $5.9 million, $8.6 million and $2.5 million for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. For more information regarding our research and
development financing arrangements and expenses, see Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Components of Our Statements of Operations - Operating Expenses," "—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “—Grants and Other Funding.”
In September 2013, we entered into a strategic alliance with Yaskawa Electric Corporation, pursuant to which, among other arrangements, Yaskawa
can apply its expertise in product and quality improvements to ReWalk. Yaskawa is a global leader in the fields of industrial robotics and automation, and we
believe that this relationship provides us with opportunities for product improvement and increased product offerings in the future. For more information
regarding our relationship with Yaskawa, see “—Sales and Marketing” and Item 13. “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independence.”
Clinical Studies
There have been multiple clinical studies to establish the effectiveness and benefits of ReWalk for individuals with spinal cord injuries that have
resulted in publications in peer-reviewed journals, as follows:

•

The first study, published in The Journal of Spinal Cord Medicine in 2012, included six participants and was designed to assess the safety and
tolerance of use of ReWalk by patients with a spinal cord injury. The participants were all able to walk 100 meters with ReWalk. The study
found no adverse safety events (which included falls, status of the skin, status of the spine and joints, blood pressure, pulse and
electrocardiography) and concluded that use of ReWalk was well-tolerated by participants with no increase in pain and a moderate level of
fatigue after use. The participants generally had positive feedback regarding ReWalk. No adverse effects were noted.

•

The second study included 24 participants and was designed to assess the safety and performance of ReWalk in enabling individuals with
paraplegia to carry out routine ambulatory functions. Results with respect to a 12-participant subset were published in the American Journal of
Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation in 2012. The results from this subset demonstrated that all participants were able to independently walk,
without assistance from another person, for at least 50 meters and at least five minutes. Some participants reported improvements in pain, bowel
function, bladder function and spasticity. All participants had strong positive feedback regarding the emotional and psychosocial benefits of
using ReWalk. ReWalk was found to hold significant potential as a safe ambulatory powered orthotic for spinal cord injury patients. Significant
performance variability was noted between participants. There were no serious adverse events reported. Five participants reported mild to
moderate adverse effects, consisting of skin abrasions, lightheadedness and edema of the lower limbs. These adverse effects were managed by
the appropriate use of padding, caffeine intake and adjustment of blood pressure medication, elastic stockings and rest.

•

The third study, published in The Journal of Spinal Cord Medicine in 2013, included six participants and found that participants with spinal cord
injury, walking independently with ReWalk, demonstrated a stance and gait similar to that of an able-bodied individual. No adverse effects were
noted.

•

The fourth study, which is ongoing and includes 30 participants, was designed to assess the mobility skills and levels of training and assistance
needed to use and benefit from ReWalk. Results with respect to a seven-participant subset
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have been finalized and were presented at the STO Human Factors and Medicine Panel Symposium, Milan, Italy, in 2013. The results from this
subset demonstrated that over the course of the training, all of the participants learned to move from sitting to standing and standing to sitting
and to walk 50 to 166 meters in six minutes. Some assistance was needed for participants with the most limiting spinal cord injuries. Four of the
participants were able to climb and descend stairs. The study concluded that ReWalk assisted walking can be performed independently by
individuals with certain cases of spinal cord injury and that future technological advances and ongoing training could improve mobility and
independence. Certain participants reported adverse effects in the form of mild to moderate skin abrasions, which were resolved with equipment
adjustments, additional padding, and, in certain cases, allowing the skin to heal.
•

The fifth study, published in International Journal of Physical Therapy and Rehabilitation in November 2014 reported on 16 patients who had
undergone gait training using the ReWalk Rehabilitation device. These subjects demonstrated significant increases in joint range of motions for
the hip and ankle joints. No adverse results were reported.

•

A sixth study, which was a continuation of the fourth study mentioned above, was presented at a scientific session of the 2015 American
Academy of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. This study demonstrated improvements in quality of life measurements for pain reduction,
fatigue, and improved sleep. Restoration of physiological loading to the legs. Improvements in bowel function, seated balance and reduction in
fat mass were also documented.

•

A seventh study published in the Journal of Rehabilitation Research and Development in 2015 assessed heart rate and oxygen demand of
powered exoskeleton-assisted walking in person with paraplegia. As part of an ongoing clinical study, eight non-ambulatory persons with
paraplegia were trained to ambulate with a powered exoskeleton. Measurements of oxygen uptake and heart rate were recorded for six minutes
each during each maneuver while sitting, standing, and walking. The average value of oxygen uptake and heart rate response during walking
were significantly higher than for sitting and standing. Persons with paraplegia were able to ambulate efficiently using the powered exoskeleton
for over-ground ambulation, providing the potential for functional gain and improved fitness. This report is the first to determine energy
expenditure of powered exoskeletal-assisted walking by use of the ReWalk system in persons with SCI. Although the results of this study did
not address long-term changes in oxygen demand with habitual use, routine use of the device to increase activity energy expenditure would be
expected to have positive cardiopulmonary and metabolic benefits.

•

An eighth study published in Topics in Spinal Cord Injury Rehabilitation in April 2015 assessed in-hospital walking velocity and level of
assistance in a powered exoskeleton for persons with SCI. Twelve individuals that had SCI for 1.5 years or more who were wheelchair-users
participated, and seven were able to ambulate greater than 0.4 meters per second, which is a velocity that may be conductive to outdoor activity
related community ambulation. The maximum velocity recorded was 0.74 meters per second.

•

A ninth publication is a case report on the effects of training with the ReWalk exoskeleton on quality of life in incomplete spinal cord injury. The
study was carried out at a hospital for neurological rehabilitation in Germany. One patient, initially unable to walk independently after suffering
a traumatic spinal cord injury, was recruited for this study one year after suffering such injury. The progress of the first six months of training
was documented and as a primary outcome measure the quality of life was measured using the industry-standard SF-36 questionnaire. At the
end of the six-month study period the patient was able to walk independently supervised by one person. Quality of life, mobility, risk of falling,
motor skills and control of bladder and bowel functions were improved. A positive effect of robot-assisted gait training on various areas of
quality of life was shown.

Although study participants and other ReWalk users have reported secondary physical and mental health benefits such as reduced pain and spasticity
and improved bowel function and urinary tract function, fewer hospitalizations, reduced dependence on medications and improvements in mood, currently
there is no formal clinical data establishing any secondary health benefits of ReWalk.
Community Engagement and Education
We devote significant resources to engagement with and education of the spinal cord injury community with respect to the benefits of ReWalk. We
actively seek opportunities to partner with hospitals, rehabilitation centers and key opinion leaders to engage in research and development and clinical
activities. We also seek to support educational and charitable organizations with fundraising and outreach programs. We believe that our success has been, and
will continue to be driven in part by, our reputation and acceptance within the spinal cord injury community.
Sales and Marketing
We market and sell our products directly to third party payors, institutions, including rehabilitation centers, individuals and through third-party
distributors. We sell our products directly in Germany and the United States and primarily through
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distributors in our other markets. In our direct markets, we have established relationships with rehabilitation centers and the spinal cord injury community,
and in our indirect markets, our distributors maintain these relationships. Sales of ReWalk Personal are generated primarily from the patient base at our
rehabilitation centers, referrals through the spinal cord injury community and direct inquiries from potential users. One customer accounted for 14.8% and
15.0% of our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
We have established centers of operations in Marlborough, Massachusetts, Berlin, Germany and Yokneam, Israel, to manage sales in North America,
Europe, and the rest of world, respectively.
Services and Customer Support
Our centers of operations in Marlborough, Massachusetts and Berlin, Germany coordinate all customer support and product service functions for
North America and Europe, respectively, through dedicated technical service personnel who provide product services and customer support through training
to healthcare providers and support to product users.
Competition
The market in which we operate is characterized by active competition and rapid technological change, and we expect competition to increase.
Competition arises from providers of other mobility systems and prosthetic devices.
We are aware of a number of other companies developing competing technology and devices, and some of these competitors may have greater
resources, greater name recognition, broader product lines, or larger customer bases than we do. Our principal competitors in the medical exoskeleton market
consist of Ekso Bionics (OTC: EKSO), Rex Bionics (London Stock Exchange: RXB), Cyberdyne (Tokyo Stock Exchange: 7779), and Parker Hannifin
(NYSE: PH). We believe we have key competitive advantages over these companies, such as our tilt-sensor technology that provides a self-initiated walking
experience, more natural gait and faster functional walking speed, ReWalk’s ability to support its own weight and broad user specifications. Additionally, we
are not aware of any medical exoskeleton product that is cleared by the FDA for personal use. ReWalk Personal is the first and only medical exoskeleton
cleared by the FDA for personal use in the United States.
In addition, we compete with alternative devices and alternative therapies, including treadmill-based gait therapies, such as those offered by
Hocoma, AlterG, Aretech and Reha Technology. Other medical device or robotics companies, academic and research institutions, or others may develop new
technologies or therapies that provide a superior walking experience, are more effective in treating the secondary medical conditions that we target or are less
expensive than our current or future products. Our technologies and products could be rendered obsolete by such developments.
We may also compete with other treatments and technologies that address the secondary medical conditions that ReWalk seeks to mitigate.
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Intellectual Property
Protection of our intellectual property is important to our business. We seek to protect our intellectual property through a combination of patents,
trademarks, confidentiality and assignment agreements with our employees and certain of our contractors and confidentiality agreements with certain of our
consultants, scientific advisors and other vendors and contractors. In addition, we rely on trade secrets law to protect our proprietary software and product
candidates/products in development.
As of February 1, 2016, we have four issued patents in the United States and one issued patent in Europe, as well as eight pending patent
applications in various countries around the world for our technology. As such, we have apparatus patent claims in the United States and Europe covering
aspects of ReWalk and similar devices which use a plurality of sensors to empower tilt-sensor technology. In addition, in the United States, we have method
patent claims covering certain methods of user activation and control of systems such as ReWalk, including by sensing the user's torso lean or weight shifts.
While our apparatus claims focus on protecting ReWalk in terms of its physical and structural characteristics, we believe that our method claims, which
protect the process behind how ReWalk is controlled by the user, provide additional protection for our tilt sensor technology. We do not currently license any
of the technology contained in our products other than with respect to technology that is generally publicly available, but we may do so in the future.
Patents filed both in the United States and Europe generally have a life of 20 years from the filing date. As the oldest of our issued patents relating to
our tilt-sensor technology was filed in May 2001, our patents on that technology do not begin to expire until May 2021.
We currently hold a registered trademark in Israel for the mark “ReWalk” and are in the process of registering this trademark in the United States.
The employment agreement of our founder and former President and Chief Technology Officer, Dr. Amit Goffer, provides that a patent pending
relating to a standing wheelchair is his individual property and that he may independently engage in the development of a standing wheelchair. The agreement
also provides that we and any of our affiliates or successors have the royalty-free right to the exclusive use in the field of exoskeletons of any intellectual
property developed by Dr. Goffer, alone or jointly with others (whether or not as part of the development of a standing wheelchair and whether or not
developed through a company), while he is our employee, consultant or board member and for three years thereafter. Mr. Goffer ceased serving as our
President and Chief Technology Officer on November 18, 2015, and as a member of our board of directors on December 3, 2015. See Item 13. “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.”
We cannot be sure that our intellectual property will provide us with a competitive advantage or that we will not infringe on the intellectual property
rights of others. In addition, we cannot be sure that any patents will be granted in a timely manner or at all with respect to any of our patent pending
applications. For a more comprehensive discussion of the risks related to our intellectual property, see Item 1A. “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our
Intellectual Property.”
Government Regulation
U.S. Regulation
Our medical products and manufacturing operations are subject to regulation by the FDA and other federal and state agencies. Our products are
regulated as medical devices in the United States under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or the FFDCA, as implemented and enforced by the FDA.
The FDA regulates the development, testing, manufacturing, labeling, storage, installation, servicing, advertising, promotion, marketing, distribution, import,
export, and market surveillance of our medical devices.
Premarket Regulation
Unless an exemption applies, each medical device commercially distributed in the United States requires either a substantial equivalence
determination under a 510(k) premarket notification submission, or an approval of a premarket approval application (PMA). Under the FFDCA, medical
devices are classified into one of three classes—Class I, Class II or Class III—depending on the degree of risk associated with each medical device and the
extent of control needed to provide reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness. Classification of a device is important because the class to which a
device is assigned determines, among other things, the necessity and type of FDA review required prior to marketing the device. Class I devices are those for
which reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness can be assured by adherence to general controls that include compliance with the applicable portions
of the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, or QSR, facility registration and product listing, reporting of adverse medical events, and appropriate, truthful and
non-misleading labeling, advertising, and promotional materials. Class I also includes devices for which there is insufficient information to determine that
general controls are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance of the safety and effectiveness of the device or to establish special controls to provide such
assurance, but that are not life-supporting or life-sustaining or for a use which is of substantial importance in preventing impairment of human health, and that
do not present a potential unreasonable risk of illness of injury.
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Class II devices are those for which general controls alone are insufficient to provide reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness and there is
sufficient information to establish “special controls.” These special controls can include performance standards, postmarket surveillance, patient registries and
FDA guidance documents. While most Class I devices are exempt from the 510(k) premarket notification requirement, only about 60 types of Class II devices
are exempt from premarket notification. As a result, manufacturers of most Class II devices are required to submit to the FDA premarket notifications under
Section 510(k) of the FFDCA requesting classification of their devices in order to market or commercially distribute those devices. To obtain a 510(k), a
substantial equivalence determination for their devices, manufacturers must submit to the FDA premarket notifications demonstrating that the proposed
device is “substantially equivalent” to a predicate device already on the market. A predicate device is a legally marketed device that is not subject to
premarket approval, i.e., a device that was legally marketed prior to May 28, 1976 (pre-amendments device) and for which a PMA is not required, a device
that has been reclassified from Class III to Class II or I, or a device that was found substantially equivalent through the 510(k) process. If the FDA agrees that
the device is substantially equivalent to a predicate device currently on the market, it will grant 510(k) clearance to commercially market the device. If the
device is not “substantially equivalent” to a previously cleared device, the device is automatically a Class III device. The device sponsor must then fulfill
more rigorous premarket approval requirements, or can request a risk-based classification determination for the device in accordance with the “de novo”
process, which is a route to market for medical devices that are low to moderate risk, but are not substantially equivalent to a predicate device.
Devices that are intended to be life sustaining or life supporting, devices that are implantable, devices that present a potential unreasonable risk of
harm or are of substantial importance in preventing impairment of health, and devices that are not substantially equivalent to a predicate device are placed in
Class III and generally require approval of a PMA, unless the device is a pre-amendment device not yet subject to a regulation requiring premarket approval.
The PMA process is more demanding than the 510(k) premarket notification process. In a PMA, the manufacturer must demonstrate that the device is safe
and effective, and the PMA must be supported by extensive data, including data from preclinical studies and clinical trials. The PMA must also contain a full
description of the device and its components, a full description of the methods, facilities and controls used for manufacturing, and proposed labeling.
Following receipt of a PMA, the FDA determines whether the application is sufficiently complete to permit a substantive review. If the FDA accepts the
application for review, it has 180 days under the FFDCA to complete its review of a PMA, although in practice, the FDA’s review often takes significantly
longer, and can take up to several years.
Clinical trials are almost always required to support PMAs and are sometimes required to support 510(k) submissions. All clinical investigations of
devices to determine safety and effectiveness must be conducted in accordance with the FDA’s investigational device exemption, or IDE, regulations that
govern investigational device labeling, prohibit promotion of the investigational device, and specify recordkeeping, reporting and monitoring responsibilities
of study sponsors and study investigators. If the device presents a “significant risk,” as defined by the FDA, the agency requires the device sponsor to submit
an IDE application to the FDA, which must become effective prior to commencing human clinical trials. The IDE will automatically become effective 30
days after receipt by the FDA, unless the FDA denies the application or notifies the company that the investigation is on hold and may not begin. If the FDA
determines that there are deficiencies or other concerns with an IDE that requires modification, the FDA may permit a clinical trial to proceed under a
conditional approval. In addition, the study must be approved by, and conducted under the oversight of, an Institutional Review Board, or IRB, for each
clinical site. If the device presents a non-significant risk to the patient, a sponsor may begin the clinical trial after obtaining approval for the trial by one or
more IRBs without separate approval from the FDA, but must still comply with abbreviated IDE requirements, such as monitoring the investigation, ensuring
that the investigators obtain informed consent, and labeling and record-keeping requirements.
In June 2014, the FDA granted our petition for “de novo” classification, which provides a route to market for medical devices that are low to
moderate risk, but are not substantially equivalent to a predicate device, and classified ReWalk as Class II subject to special controls. The ReWalk is intended
to enable individuals with spinal cord injuries to perform ambulatory functions under supervision of a specially trained companion, and inside rehabilitation
institutions. The special controls established in the de novo order include compliance with medical device consensus standards; clinical study demonstrating
testing to safe and effective use considering the level of supervision necessary and the use environment; non-clinical performance testing of the system’s
function durability and performance to demonstrate that the device performs as intended under anticipated conditions of use; a training program; and labeling
related to device use and user training. The special controls of this de novo order also apply to competing products seeking FDA clearance.
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Postmarket Regulation
After a device is cleared for marketing, and prior to marketing, numerous regulatory requirements apply. These include:

•

establishment registration and device listing;

•

development of a quality assurance system, including establishing and implementing procedures to design and manufacture devices;

•

labeling regulations that prohibit the promotion of products for unapproved or “off-label” uses and impose other restrictions on labeling; and

•

medical device reporting regulations that require manufacturers to report to the FDA if a device may have caused or contributed to a death or
serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a death or serious injury if it were to recur; and corrections and
removal reporting regulations that require manufacturers report to the FDA field corrections and product recalls or removals if undertaken to
reduce a risk to health posed by the device or to remedy a violation of the U.S. Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act that may present a risk to health.

Our manufacturing processes are required to comply with the applicable portions of the Quality System Regulation that covers the methods and the
facilities and controls for the design, manufacture, testing, production, processes, controls, quality assurance, labeling, packaging, distribution, installation and
servicing of finished devices intended for human use. We actively maintain compliance with the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, 21 CFR Part 820, and the
European Union’s Quality Management Systems requirements, ISO 13485:2003.
As a manufacturer, we are subject to periodic scheduled or unscheduled inspections by the FDA. If the FDA believes we or any of our contract
manufacturers are not in compliance with the quality system requirements, or other postmarket requirements, it has significant enforcement authority.
Specifically, if the FDA determines that we failed to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, it can take a variety of compliance or enforcement
actions, which may result in any of the following sanctions:

•

warning letters, untitled letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and civil penalties;

•

recalls, withdrawals, or administrative detention or seizure of our products;

•

operating restrictions or partial suspension or total shutdown of production;

•

refusing or delaying requests for 510(k) marketing clearance or PMA approvals of new products or modified products;

•

refusal to grant export approvals for our products; or

•

criminal prosecution.

Any such action by the FDA would have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, these regulatory controls, as well as any changes in
FDA policies, can affect the time and cost associated with the development, introduction and continued availability of new products. Where possible, we
anticipate these factors in our product development processes.
Foreign Regulation
In addition to regulations in the United States, we are subject to a variety of foreign regulations governing clinical trials and commercial sales and
distribution of our products. In particular, we are subject to regulation in the E.U., which has directives and standards regulating the design, manufacture,
clinical trials, labeling and adverse event reporting for medical devices. Devices that comply with the requirements of a relevant directive are entitled to bear
the CE conformity marking, indicating that the device conforms to the essential requirements of the applicable directive and, accordingly, can be
commercially distributed throughout Europe. The method of assessing conformity varies depending on the class of the product, but normally involves a
combination of self-assessment by the manufacturer and a third party assessment by a “Notified Body.” This third party assessment may consist of an audit of
the manufacturer’s quality system or specific testing of the manufacturer’s product. We comply with the E.U. requirements and have received the CE mark for
all of our ReWalk systems distributed in the E.U.
In Australia, the TGA is responsible for administering the Australian Therapeutics Goods Act. The Office of Devices, Blood and Tissues is the
department within the TGA responsible for devices. The TGA recognizes five classes of medical devices and ReWalk falls under the category of Class II for
low-medium risk medical devices.
The Australian Register of Therapeutic Goods, or ARTG, is the register of information about therapeutic goods for human use that may be imported,
supplied in, or exported from Australia. Medical devices cannot generally be imported, supplied in, or exported from Australia unless they are included in the
ARTG. To clinically investigate a product that is not included in the ARTG, or to use a registered or listed product in a clinical trial beyond the conditions of
its marketing approval, the sponsor must receive approval of an application from the TGA under the Clinical Trial Exemption Scheme, or must submit a
notification to the Human
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Research Ethics Committee under the Clinical Trial Notification Scheme and receive approval from the institution or organization at which the trial will be
conducted.
In January 2015, we received regulatory approval to sell ReWalk systems commercially in Australia from the TGA, and as such, are subject to
regulation in Australia.
We are also subject to regulation in certain Asian markets in connection with our distribution agreement with Yaskawa. Pursuant to such agreement,
Yaskawa has the rights to distribute ReWalk in Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Singapore and Thailand. The Japanese Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare,
or the MHLW, approved ReWalk in February 2014 as a welfare device due to its ability to restore mobility to users. Yaskawa has begun evaluating ReWalk at
several hospitals and, with such approval of MHLW, Yaskawa may begin selling ReWalk in Japan. In each other country listed above, we will need to obtain
approval from the relevant governmental agency prior to marketing ReWalk. We have begun to evaluate the approval process in China, Taiwan, Korea and
Singapore but have not yet begun to do so in Thailand. Taiwan recently issued a class 1 registration for the rehabilitation device and we expect clearance for
the personal device later this year.
We expect that obtaining the necessary approvals in these countries could take between one and a half and two years after we submit the initial
application.
Foreign sales outside of the E.U., Australia and the Asian markets described above are subject to the foreign government regulations of the relevant
jurisdiction, and we must obtain approval by the appropriate regulatory authorities before we can commence clinical trials or marketing activities in those
countries. The approval process varies from country to country, and the time may be longer or shorter than that required to obtain a marketing authorization in
the U.S., the E.U., Australia or the Asian markets described above. The requirements governing the conduct of clinical trials, product licensing, pricing and
reimbursement vary greatly from country to country.
The policies of the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities may change and additional government regulations may be enacted that could prevent or
delay regulatory approval of our products and could also increase the cost of regulatory compliance. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of
adverse governmental regulation that might arise from future legislative or administrative action, either in the United States or abroad.
U.S. Anti-kickback, False Claims and Other Healthcare Fraud and Abuse Laws
In the United States, there are federal and state anti-kickback laws that prohibit the payment or receipt of kickbacks, bribes or other remuneration
intended to induce the purchase or recommendation of healthcare products and services. Violations of these laws can lead to civil and criminal penalties,
including exclusion from participation in federal healthcare programs. These laws apply to manufacturers of products, such as us, with respect to our financial
relationship with hospitals, physicians and other potential purchasers or acquirers of our products. The U.S. government has published regulations that
identify “safe harbors” or exemptions for certain practices from enforcement actions under the federal anti-kickback statute, and we will seek to comply with
the safe harbors where possible. To qualify for a safe harbor, the activity must fit squarely within the safe harbor. Arrangements that do not meet a safe harbor
are not necessarily illegal, but must be evaluated on a case by case basis. Other provisions of state and federal law provide civil and criminal penalties for
presenting, or causing to be presented, to third-party payers for reimbursement claims that are false or fraudulent, or for items or services that were not
provided as claimed. False claims allegations under federal and some state laws may be brought on behalf of the government by private persons,
“whistleblowers,” who then receive a share of any recovery.
In March 2010, President Obama signed into law the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health Care and Education
Affordability Reconciliation Act, or collectively, the PPACA. The PPACA, among other things, amends the intent requirement of the federal anti-kickback
and criminal healthcare fraud statutes. A person or entity no longer needs to have actual knowledge of these statutes or specific intent to violate them. In
addition, the PPACA provides that the government may assert that a claim that includes items or services resulting from a violation of the federal antikickback statute constitutes a false or fraudulent claim for purposes of the False Claims Act. The PPACA also imposes new reporting and disclosure
requirements on device manufacturers for any “transfer of value” made or distributed to physicians and teaching hospitals. Device manufacturers will also be
required to report and disclose any investment interests held by physicians and their immediate family members during the preceding calendar year. A number
of provisions of PPACA also reflect increased focus on and funding of healthcare fraud enforcement.
Environmental Matters
We are subject to various environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including those governing air emissions, water and wastewater
discharges, noise emissions, the use, transport, management and disposal of chemicals and hazardous materials, the import, export and registration of
chemicals, and the cleanup of contaminated sites. Based on information currently available to us, we do not expect environmental costs and contingencies to
have a material adverse effect on us. The operation of our business and facilities, however, entails risks in these areas. Significant expenditures could be
required in the future to comply with environmental or health and safety laws, regulations or requirements.
12

In Israel, where our contract manufacturer produces all of our products, businesses storing or using certain hazardous materials (including materials
necessary for our manufacturing process) are required, pursuant to the Israeli Dangerous Substances Law 5753-1993, to obtain a toxin permit from the
Ministry of Environmental Protection.
In the European marketplace, electrical and electronic equipment is required to comply with the Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment, which aims to prevent waste by encouraging reuse and recycling, and the Directive on Restriction of Use of Certain Hazardous Substances, which
restricts the use of six hazardous substances in electrical and electronic products. Our products and certain components of such products “put on the market”
in the EU (whether or not manufactured in the EU) are subject to these directives. Additionally, we are required to comply with certain laws, regulations and
directives, including the Toxic Substances Control Act in the United States and REACH in the EU, governing chemicals. These and similar laws and
regulations require the testing, reporting and registration of certain chemicals we use and ship. We believe we are in compliance in all material respects with
applicable environmental laws and regulations.
Manufacturing
ReWalk includes off-the-shelf and custom-made components produced to our specifications by various third parties, for technical and cost
effectiveness. We have contracted with Sanmina Corporation ("Sanmina"), a well-established contract manufacturer with expertise in the medical device
industry, for the manufacture of all of our products. Pursuant to this contract, Sanmina manufactures ReWalk at its facility in Ma’alot, Israel. All ReWalk
Personal units are manufactured pursuant to the same set of specifications, and all ReWalk Rehabilitation units are manufactured pursuant to another set. We
place our manufacturing orders with Sanmina pursuant to purchase orders or by providing forecasts for future requirements. We may terminate our
relationship with Sanmina at any time upon written notice. Either we or Sanmina may terminate the relationship in the event of a material breach, subject to a
30-day cure period. Our agreement with Sanmina contains a limitation on liability that applies equally to both us and Sanmina.
We believe that this relationship allows us to operate our business efficiently by focusing our internal efforts on the development of our technology
and our products and provides us with substantial scale-up capacity. We regularly test quality on-site at Sanmina’s facility and we obtain full quality
inspection reports. We maintain a non-disclosure agreement with Sanmina.
We develop certain of the software components internally and license other software components that are generally available for commercial use as
open source software.
We manufacture products based upon internal sales forecasts. We deliver products to customers and distributors based upon purchase orders
received, and our goal is to fulfill each customer’s order for products in regular production within two weeks of receipt of the order.
Suppliers
We have contracted with Sanmina for the sourcing of all components and raw materials necessary for the manufacture of our products. Components
of our products and raw materials come from suppliers in Europe, China and Israel, and we depend on certain of these components and raw materials,
including certain electronic parts, for the manufacture of our products. To date, we have not experienced significant volatility in the prices of these
components and raw materials. However, such prices are subject to a number of factors, including purchase volumes, general economic conditions, currency
exchange rates, industry cycles, production levels and scarcity of supply.
We believe that our and Sanmina’s facilities, our contracted manufacturing arrangement, and our supply arrangements are sufficient to support our
potential capacity needs for the foreseeable future.
Employees
As of December 31, 2015, we had 87 employees (including full-time and hourly employees), of whom 32 are located in the United States, 39 are
located in Israel and 16 are located in Germany. As of December 31, 2014, we had 66 employees, of whom 20 are located in the United States, 33 are located
in Israel and 13 are located in Germany, and as of December 31, 2013, we had 45 employees, of whom 10 were located in the United States, 27 were located
in Israel and eight were located in Germany. The majority of our employees are, and have been, engaged in sales and marketing and research and
development activities. We do not employ a significant number of temporary or part time employees.
We are subject to Israeli labor laws and regulations with respect to our employees located in Israel. These laws and regulations principally concern
matters such as pensions, paid annual vacation, paid sick days, length of the workday and work week, minimum wages, overtime pay, insurance for workrelated accidents, severance pay and other conditions of employment. Our employees are not represented by a labor union. We consider our relationship with
our employees to be good. To date, we have not experienced any work stoppages.
The employees of our U.S. and German subsidiaries are subject to local labor laws and regulations.

13

Financial Information about Geographic Areas and Significant Customer Information
The following table sets forth the geographical
breakdown of our revenues for each of the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

Revenue:
United States
Europe
Asia - Pacific

$

Israel
Total Revenue

$

2,439 $

2,186 $

941

820

1,254

476

487

511

88

—

—

3,746 $

3,951 $

83
1,588

Additional discussion of financial information by reportable segment and geographic area and sales in excess of 10% of total revenues to certain of our
customers is contained in Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements set forth in Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this annual
report.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Our business faces significant risks. You should carefully consider all of the information set forth in this annual report and in our other filings with
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, including the following risk factors which we face and which are faced by our industry.
Our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected by any of these risks. In that event, the trading price of
our ordinary shares would likely decline and you might lose all or part of your investment. This report also contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Our results could materially differ from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements, as a result of certain factors including
the risks described below and elsewhere in this report and our other SEC filings. See also “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” on page
(iii).
Risks Related to Our Business and Our Industry
We currently rely, and in the future will rely, on sales of our ReWalk systems and related service contracts and extended warranties for our
revenue, and we may not be able to achieve or maintain market acceptance.
We currently rely, and in the future will rely, on sales of our ReWalk systems and related service contracts and extended warranties for our revenue.
We have sold only a limited number of ReWalk systems, and market acceptance and adoption depend on educating people with limited upright mobility and
health care providers as to the distinct features, ease-of-use, positive lifestyle impact and other benefits of ReWalk compared to alternative technologies and
treatments. ReWalk may not be perceived to have sufficient potential benefits compared with these alternatives. Users may also choose other therapies due to
disadvantages of ReWalk, including the time it takes for a user to put on ReWalk, the slower pace of ReWalk compared to a wheelchair, the weight of ReWalk
when carried, which makes it more burdensome for a companion to transport than a wheelchair, and the requirement that users be accompanied by a trained
companion. Also, we believe that healthcare providers tend to be slow to change their medical treatment practices because of perceived liability risks arising
from the use of new products and the uncertainty of third-party reimbursement. Accordingly, healthcare providers may not recommend ReWalk until there is
sufficient evidence to convince them to alter the treatment methods they typically recommend, such as prominent healthcare providers or other key opinion
leaders in the spinal cord injury community recommending ReWalk as effective in providing identifiable immediate and long-term health benefits.
In addition, health insurance companies and other third-party payors may not provide adequate coverage or reimbursement for our products, and the
VA may cancel or materially curtail its current policy of providing coverage in the United States for qualifying individuals who have suffered spinal cord
injury. We may be unable to sell ReWalk systems on a profitable basis if third-party payors deny coverage, limit reimbursement or reduce their levels of
payment, or if our costs of production increase faster than increases in reimbursement levels. In addition, we may not obtain coverage and reimbursement
approvals in a timely manner. Our failure to receive such approvals would negatively impact market acceptance of ReWalk.
Achieving and maintaining market acceptance of ReWalk could be negatively impacted by many other factors, including, but not limited to:
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•

lack of sufficient evidence supporting the benefits of ReWalk over competitive products or other available treatment, or lifestyle management,
methodologies;

•

results of clinical studies relating to ReWalk or similar products;

•

claims that ReWalk, or any component thereof, infringes on patent or other intellectual property rights of third-parties;

•

perceived risks associated with the use of ReWalk or similar products or technologies;

•

the introduction of new competitive products or greater acceptance of competitive products;

•

adverse regulatory or legal actions relating to ReWalk or similar products or technologies; and

•

problems arising from the outsourcing of our manufacturing capabilities, or our existing manufacturing and supply relationships.

Any factors that negatively impact sales of ReWalk would adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.
The market for medical exoskeletons is new and unproven, and important assumptions about the potential market for our products may be
inaccurate.
The market for medical exoskeletons is new and unproven. Accordingly, it is difficult to predict the future size and rate of growth of the market. We
cannot be certain whether the market will continue to develop or if medical exoskeletons will achieve and sustain a level of market acceptance and demand
sufficient for us to continue to generate revenue and achieve profitability.
Limited sources exist to obtain reliable market data with respect to the number of mobility impaired individuals and the incurrence of spinal cord
injuries in our target markets. In addition, there are no third-party reports or studies regarding what percentage of those with limited mobility or spinal cord
injuries would be able to use exoskeletons in general, or our current or planned future products in particular. In order to use our current products marketed to
those with paraplegia, users must have healthy hands and shoulders, weigh less than 220 pounds/100 kilograms and be between 5 ft. 3 inches and 6 ft. 2
inches/1.60 meters and 1.88 meters. Users must also not have balance, brain or vestibular disorders that would affect their balance. Future products for those
with paraplegia, quadriplegia or other mobility impairments or spinal cord injuries may have the same or other restrictions. Our business strategy is based, in
part, on our estimates of the number of mobility impaired individuals and the incurrence of spinal cord injuries in our target markets and the percentage of
those groups that would be able to use our current and future products. Our assumptions may be inaccurate and may change.
If the medical exoskeleton market fails to develop or develops more slowly than we expect, or if we have relied on sources or made assumptions that
are not accurate, our business could be adversely affected.
In addition, because we operate in a new market, the actions of our competitors could adversely affect our business. Adverse events such as product
defects or legal claims with respect to competing or similar products could cause reputational harm to the exoskeleton market on the whole. Further, adverse
regulatory findings or reimbursement-related decisions with respect to other exoskeleton products could negatively impact the entire market and, accordingly,
our business.
We have a limited operating history upon which you can evaluate our business plan and prospects.
Although we were incorporated in 2001, we did not begin selling ReWalk Rehabilitation until 2011, and we did not begin selling ReWalk Personal in
Europe until 2012. We began selling ReWalk Personal in the United States in the third quarter of 2014, as we received FDA clearance to do so in June 2014.
Therefore, we have limited operating history upon which you can evaluate our business plan and prospects. Our business plan and prospects must be
considered in the light of the potential problems, delays, uncertainties and complications encountered in connection with a newly established business. The
risks include, but are not limited to, that:
•

a market will not develop for our products;

•

we will not be able to develop scalable products and services, or that, although scalable, our products and services will not be economical to
market;

•

we will not be able to establish brand recognition and competitive advantages for our products;

•

we will not receive necessary regulatory clearances or approvals for our products; and

•

our competitors market an equivalent or superior product or hold proprietary rights that preclude us from marketing our products.

There are no assurances that we can successfully address these challenges. If we are unsuccessful, our business, financial condition and operating
results could be materially and adversely affected.
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If we are unable to leverage and expand our sales, marketing and training infrastructure, we may fail to increase our sales.
A key element of our long-term business strategy is the continued expansion of our sales and marketing infrastructure, through the hiring, training,
retaining and motivating of skilled sales and marketing representatives with industry experience and knowledge. In order to continue growing our business
efficiently, we must coordinate the expansion of this infrastructure with the timing of regulatory approvals, decisions regarding reimbursements, and other
factors in various geographies. Managing and maintaining our sales and marketing infrastructure is expensive and time consuming and an inability to leverage
such an organization effectively, or in coordination with regulatory or other developments, could inhibit potential sales and the penetration and adoption of
ReWalk into both existing and new markets.
We expect to face significant challenges as we manage and continue to grow our sales and marketing infrastructure and work to retain the individuals
who make up those networks. Recently hired sales representatives require training and take time to achieve full productivity. If we fail to train recent hires
adequately, or if we experience high turnover in our sales force in the future, we cannot be certain that new hires will become as productive as may be
necessary to maintain or increase our sales. In addition, if we are not able to retain and continue to recruit our network of internal trainers, we may not be able
to successfully train customers on the use of ReWalk, which could inhibit new sales and harm our reputation. If we are unable to expand our sales, marketing
and training capabilities, we may not be able to effectively commercialize ReWalk, or enhance the strength of our brand, which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results.
The health benefits of ReWalk have not been substantiated by long-term clinical data, which could limit sales.
Although our interim analysis of an ongoing study demonstrates improvements in secondary physical conditions such as reduction in pain and
spasticity and improving bowel and urinary tract function, decreasing pain, emotional and psychosocial benefits, the health benefits of our current ReWalk
products have not been substantiated by long-term clinical data. As a result, potential customers and healthcare providers may be slower to adopt or
recommend ReWalk and third-party payors may not be willing to provide coverage or reimbursement for our products. In addition, future studies or clinical
experience may indicate that treatment with our current or future ReWalk products is not superior to treatment with alternative products or therapies. Such
results could slow the adoption of our products and significantly reduce our sales.
We may fail to secure or retain adequate coverage or reimbursement for ReWalk by third-party payors.
We expect that in the future a significant source of payment for ReWalk systems will be private insurance plans and managed care programs,
government programs such as the VA, Medicare and Medicaid, worker’s compensation and other third-party payors. In December 2015, the VA issued a
national reimbursement policy for the ReWalk system; however, no other uniform policy of coverage and reimbursement for electronic exoskeleton medical
technology exists among third-party payors in the United States or elsewhere, although reimbursement may be achieved on a case-by-case basis. To date,
payments for our products have been made primarily by self-payors and through case-by-case determinations by third-party payors, and, to a lesser extent,
through the use of funds from insurance and/or accident settlements. There is limited clinical data related to ReWalk, and third-party payors may consider use
of ReWalk to be experimental and therefore refuse to cover it. For example, Aetna has determined that certain lower-limb prostheses, including ReWalk, are
experimental and investigational because there is inadequate evidence of their effectiveness. Generally, private insurance companies do not cover or provide
reimbursement for any medical exoskeleton products for personal use, including ReWalk, and may ultimately provide no coverage at all.
Many private third-party payors use coverage decisions and payment amounts determined by the CMS, which administers the Medicare program, as
guidelines in setting their coverage and reimbursement policies. In the future, we will pursue economic benefit clinical studies for CMS, which we expect to
demonstrate the secondary medical benefits and long-term cost savings potential of ReWalk. While we believe that a positive response from CMS in respect
of such studies will broaden coverage by private insurers, we expect that it could take three to five years to receive a decision from CMS. Even with a positive
decision from CMS regarding ReWalk Personal, future action by CMS or other government agencies may diminish possible payments to physicians,
outpatient centers and/or hospitals that purchase ReWalk Rehabilitation, and possible payments to individuals who purchase ReWalk Personal. Additionally, a
decision by CMS to provide reimbursement could influence other payors, including private insurers. If CMS declines to provide for reimbursements of
ReWalk or if its reimbursement price is lower than that of other payors, ReWalk may not be reimbursed at a cost-effective level or at all. Those private thirdparty payors that do not follow the Medicare guidelines may adopt different coverage and reimbursement policies for purchase of ReWalk, or use of ReWalk
Rehabilitation at a hospital or rehabilitation center. In addition, we expect that the purchase of ReWalk Rehabilitation systems will require the approval of
senior management at hospitals or rehabilitation facilities, inclusion in the hospitals’ or rehabilitation facilities’ budget process for capital expenditures, and in
the case of ReWalk Personal, fundraising and financial planning or assistance.
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Third-party payors are developing increasingly sophisticated methods of controlling healthcare costs. These cost control methods include prospective
payment systems, capitated rates, benefit redesigns and an exploration of other cost-effective methods of delivering healthcare. These cost control methods
potentially limit the amount that healthcare providers may be willing to pay for electronic exoskeleton medical technology, if they provide coverage at all. We
may be unable to sell ReWalk systems on a profitable basis if third-party payors deny coverage or provide insufficient levels of reimbursement.
We depend on a single third party to manufacture ReWalk and a limited number of third-party suppliers for certain components of ReWalk.
We have contracted with Sanmina Corporation, a well-established contract manufacturer with expertise in the medical device industry, for the
manufacture of all of our products and the sourcing of all of our components and raw materials. Pursuant to this contract, Sanmina manufactures ReWalk,
pursuant to our specifications, at its facility in Ma’alot, Israel. We may terminate our relationship with Sanmina at any time upon written notice. In addition,
either we or Sanmina may terminate the relationship in the event of a material breach, subject to a 30-day cure period. For our business strategy to be
successful, Sanmina must be able to manufacture our products in sufficient quantities, in compliance with regulatory requirements and quality control
standards, in accordance with agreed upon specifications, at acceptable costs and on a timely basis. Increases in our product sales, whether forecasted or
unanticipated, could strain the ability of Sanmina to manufacture an increasingly large supply of our current or future products in a manner that meets these
various requirements. In addition, although we are not restricted from engaging an alternative manufacturer, and have the capabilities to manufacture ReWalk
in-house, the process of moving our manufacturing activities would be time consuming and costly, and may limit our ability to meet our sales commitments,
which could harm our reputation and could have a material adverse effect on our business.
We also rely on third-party suppliers, which contract directly with Sanmina, to supply certain components of ReWalk. Sanmina does not have longterm supply agreements with most of its suppliers and, in many cases, makes purchases on a purchase order basis. Sanmina’s ability to secure adequate
quantities of such products may be limited. Suppliers may encounter problems that limit their ability to manufacture components for our products, including
financial difficulties or damage to their manufacturing equipment or facilities. If Sanmina fails to obtain sufficient quantities of high quality components to
meet demand on a timely basis, we could lose customer orders, our reputation may be harmed and our business could suffer.
Sanmina generally uses a small number of suppliers for ReWalk. Depending on a limited number of suppliers exposes us to risks, including limited
control over pricing, availability, quality and delivery schedules. If any one or more of our suppliers ceases to provide sufficient quantities of components in a
timely manner or on acceptable terms, Sanmina would have to seek alternative sources of supply. It may be difficult to engage additional or replacement
suppliers in a timely manner. Failure of these suppliers to deliver products at the level our business requires would limit our ability to meet our sales
commitments, which could harm our reputation and could have a material adverse effect on our business. Sanmina also may have difficulty obtaining similar
components from other suppliers that are acceptable to the FDA or other regulatory agencies, and the failure of Sanmina’s suppliers to comply with strictly
enforced regulatory requirements could expose us to regulatory action including warning letters, product recalls, termination of distribution, product seizures
or civil penalties. It could also require Sanmina to cease using the components, seek alternative components or technologies and we could be forced to modify
our products to incorporate alternative components or technologies, which could result in a requirement to seek additional regulatory approvals. Any
disruption of this nature or increased expenses could harm our commercialization efforts and adversely affect our operating results.
We also rely on a limited number of suppliers for the batteries used by ReWalk and do not maintain any long-term supply agreement with respect to
batteries. If we or our third-party distributors fail to obtain sufficient quantities of batteries in a timely manner, our reputation may be harmed and our business
could suffer.
Our future growth and operating results will depend on our ability to develop and commercialize new products and penetrate new markets.
We are currently engaged in research and development efforts to adapt ReWalk to address the mobility needs of patients with mobility impairments
besides paraplegia, such as multiple sclerosis patients, and, in the future, we plan to address these needs in stroke, cerebral palsy and quadriplegia patients. We
expect that a significant portion of our revenues will be derived, in the next few years, from ReWalk products that we adapt for use by individuals with
multiple sclerosis, and, in later years, from products that we create to address other medical indications affecting the ability to walk, including quadriplegia,
strokes and cerebral palsy. As such, our future results will depend on our ability to successfully develop and commercialize such products. We cannot ensure
you that we will be able to introduce new products, products currently under development and products contemplated for future development for additional
indications in a timely manner, or at all. In addition, we may not be able to clinically demonstrate the medical benefits of our products for new indications,
and we do not yet have any clinical data demonstrating the benefits of our products for indications other than paraplegia. We may also be unable to gain
necessary regulatory approvals to enable us to market ReWalk for additional indications or the regulatory process may be more costly and time consuming
than expected.
Even if we are successful in the design and development of new products, our growth and results of operations will depend on our ability to
penetrate new markets and gain acceptance by non-spinal cord injury markets such as the multiple sclerosis
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community, and, in the longer term, stroke and cerebral palsy patients or individuals with quadriplegia. We may not be able to gain such market acceptance in
these communities in a timely manner, or at all.
While they will utilize the same core technology platform, our new products and products currently under development will have design features and
components that differ from our current products. Accordingly, these products will also be subject to the risks described above under “—We currently rely,
and in the future will rely, on sales of our ReWalk systems and related service contracts and extended warranties for our revenue, and we may not be able to
achieve or maintain market acceptance.” To the extent we are unable to successfully develop and commercialize products to address indications other than
paraplegia, we will not meet our projected results of operations and future growth.
We operate in a competitive industry that is subject to rapid technological change, and we expect competition to increase.
There are several other companies developing technology and devices that compete with ReWalk. Our principal competitors in the medical
exoskeleton market consist of Ekso Bionics, Rex Bionics, Cyberdyne, and Parker Hannifin. These companies have products currently available for
institutional use and Parker Hannifin has filed with the FDA for clearance to commercialize its Indego device for personal use. We expect some of such
products to become available for personal use in the next few years. In addition, we compete with alternative devices and alternative therapies, including
treadmill-based gait therapies, such as those offered by Hocoma, AlterG, Aretech and Reha Technology. These or other medical device or robotics companies,
academic and research institutions, or others, may develop new technologies or therapies that provide a superior walking experience, are more effective in
treating the secondary medical conditions that we target or are less expensive than ReWalk or future products. Our technologies and products could be
rendered obsolete by such developments. We may also compete with other treatments and technologies that address the secondary medical conditions that
ReWalk seeks to mitigate.
Our competitors may respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies, undertake more extensive marketing campaigns, have greater
financial, marketing and other resources than we do or may be more successful in attracting potential customers, employees and strategic partners. In
addition, potential customers, such as hospitals and rehabilitation centers, could have long-standing or contractual relationships with competitors or other
medical device companies. Potential customers may be reluctant to adopt ReWalk, particularly if it competes with or has the potential to compete with or
diminish the need/utilization of products or treatments supported through these existing relationships. If we are not able to compete effectively, our business
and results of operations will be negatively impacted.
We have incurred net losses since our inception.
We have experienced operating losses since our inception in 2001. We expect that we will continue to incur losses for at least the next two years as
we continue to commercialize our ReWalk systems, expand our sales and marketing capabilities, continue our ongoing research and development and
continue to develop the corporate infrastructure necessary to market and sell our products. Additionally, as we became subject to the Exchange Act’s domestic
reporting regime following the loss of our foreign private issuer status as of January 1, 2016, due to the increased reporting requirements applicable to
domestic issuers we may face significantly higher regulatory, compliance and financial costs than those we incurred as a foreign private issuer, and our
general and administrative expenses could increase. Our ability to achieve profitability and positive cash flow is subject to the risks described in this section.
If we are unable to become profitable with positive cash flow, the value of your investment may be adversely affected.
We may not have sufficient funds to meet our future capital requirements.
We believe we have sufficient cash resources to meet our anticipated cash requirements for at least the next 12 months. However, if we require
additional funds during that period or in later periods, we may need to seek additional sources of funds, including potentially by borrowing, selling or
licensing our assets or selling additional equity securities. However, we may be unable to obtain additional funds on reasonable terms, or at all. As a result,
we may be required to reduce the scope of, or delay or eliminate, some or all of our current and planned commercialization and research and development
activities. We also may have to reduce marketing, customer service or other resources devoted to our business. Any of these actions could materially harm our
business and results of operations. Any sale of additional equity may result in dilution to our shareholders and agreements governing any borrowing
arrangement may contain covenants that could restrict our operations.
In the event that we default under our loan agreement with Kreos, Kreos could exercise its lien and take possession over all of our assets.
As described below under Item 7. "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital
Resources," on December 30, 2015, we entered into a loan agreement, or the Loan Agreement, with Kreos Capital V (Expert Fund) Limited, or Kreos,
pursuant to which Kreos extended a line of credit to us in the amount of $20.0 million. On January 4, 2016, we drew down $12.0 million and, in the event that
prior to December 31, 2016 we raise $10.0 million or more in connection with the issuance of shares of our capital stock (including debt convertible into
shares of our capital stock), we will be able to draw down up to an additional $8.0 million in separate tranches until December 31, 2016, with a minimum
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required drawdown of $2.0 million each. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, we granted Kreos a first priority security interest over all of our assets, including
intellectual property and equity interests in our subsidiaries, subject to certain permitted security interests. In the event that we are unable to make the interest
payments when due under the Loan Agreement or to pay the outstanding principal amount following the termination of the Loan Agreement, Kreos could
take actions under the Loan Agreement and seek to take possession of or sell our assets to satisfy our obligations thereunder. Any of these actions would have
an immediate material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.
We utilize independent distributors who are free to market products that compete with ReWalk.
While we expect that the percentage of our sales generated from independent distributors will decrease over time as we continue to increase our
direct sales efforts in the United States in response to the receipt of FDA clearance for ReWalk Personal, we believe that a meaningful percentage of our sales
will continue to be generated by independent distributors in the future. None of our independent distributors has been required to sell our products
exclusively. Our distributor agreements generally have one year initial terms and automatic renewals for an additional year. If any of our key independent
distributors were to cease to distribute our products, our sales could be adversely affected. In such a situation, we may need to seek alternative independent
distributors or increase our reliance on our other independent distributors or our direct sales representatives, which may not prevent our sales from being
adversely affected. Additionally, to the extent that we enter into additional arrangements with independent distributors to perform sales, marketing, or
distribution services, the terms of the arrangements could cause our product margins to be lower than if we directly marketed and sold our products.
We are dependent on a single facility for the manufacturing and assembly of our products.
All manufacturing and assembly of our products is conducted at a single facility of our contract manufacturer, Sanmina, located in Ma’alot, Israel.
Accordingly, we are highly dependent on the uninterrupted and efficient operation of this facility. If operations at this facility were to be disrupted as a result
of equipment failures, earthquakes and other natural disasters, fires, accidents, work stoppages, power outages, acts of war or terrorism or other reasons, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected. In particular, this facility is located in the north of Israel within
range of rockets that have from time to time been fired into the country during armed conflicts with Hezbollah in Lebanon. Although our manufacturing and
assembly operations could be transferred elsewhere, either in-house or to an alternative Sanmina facility, the process of relocating these operations would
cause delays in production. Lost sales or increased costs that we may experience during the disruption, or a forced relocation, of operations may not be
recoverable under our insurance policies, and longer-term business disruptions could result in a loss of customers. If this were to occur, our business, financial
condition and operations could be materially negatively impacted.
We may receive a significant number of warranty claims or our ReWalk system may require significant amounts of service after sale.
Sales of ReWalk generally include a two-year warranty for parts and services, other than for normal wear and tear. We also provide customers with
the option to purchase an extended warranty for up to an additional three years. If product returns or warranty claims are significant or exceed our
expectations, we could incur unanticipated expenditures for parts and services, which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.
Defects in our products or the software that drives them could adversely affect the results of our operations.
The design, manufacture and marketing of ReWalk involve certain inherent risks. Manufacturing or design defects, unanticipated use of ReWalk, or
inadequate disclosure of risks relating to the use of ReWalk can lead to injury or other adverse events. In addition, because the manufacturing of our products
is outsourced to Sanmina, our original equipment manufacturer, we may not be aware of manufacturing defects that could occur. Such adverse events could
lead to recalls or safety alerts relating to ReWalk (either voluntary or required by the FDA or similar governmental authorities in other countries), and could
result, in certain cases, in the removal of ReWalk from the market. A recall could result in significant costs. To the extent any manufacturing defect occurs,
our agreement with Sanmina contains a limitation on Sanmina’s liability, and therefore we could be required to incur the majority of related costs. Product
defects or recalls could also result in negative publicity, damage to our reputation or, in some circumstances, delays in new product approvals.
When a human exoskeleton is used by a paralyzed individual to walk, the individual relies completely on the exoskeleton to hold him or her upright.
In addition, ReWalk incorporates sophisticated computer software. Complex software frequently contains errors, especially when first introduced. Our
software may experience errors or performance problems in the future. If any part of ReWalk’s hardware or software were to fail, the user could experience
death or serious injury. Additionally, users may not use ReWalk in accordance with safety protocols and training, which could enhance the risk of death or
injury. Any such occurrence could cause delay in market acceptance of ReWalk, damage to our reputation, additional regulatory filings, product recalls,
increased service and warranty costs, product liability claims and loss of revenue relating to such hardware or software defects.
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The medical device industry has historically been subject to extensive litigation over product liability claims. We have been, and anticipate that as
part of our ordinary course of business we may be, subject to product liability claims alleging defects in the design, manufacture or labeling of our products.
A product liability claim, regardless of its merit or eventual outcome, could result in significant legal defense costs and high punitive damage payments.
Although we maintain product liability insurance, the coverage is subject to deductibles and limitations, and may not be adequate to cover future claims.
Additionally, we may be unable to maintain our existing product liability insurance in the future at satisfactory rates or adequate amounts.
We may not be able to enhance our product offerings through our research and development efforts.
In order to increase our sales and our market share in the exoskeleton market, we must enhance and broaden our research and development efforts
and product offerings in response to the evolving demands of people with paraplegia or paralysis and healthcare providers, as well as competitive
technologies. We may not be successful in developing, obtaining regulatory approval for, or marketing our proposed products. In addition, notwithstanding
our market research efforts, our future products may not be accepted by consumers, their caregivers, healthcare providers or third-party payors who reimburse
consumers for our products. The success of any proposed product offerings will depend on numerous factors, including our ability to:
•

identify the product features that people with paraplegia or paralysis, their caregivers and healthcare providers are seeking in a medical device
that restores upright mobility and successfully incorporate those features into our products;

•

develop and introduce proposed products in sufficient quantities and in a timely manner;

•

adequately protect our intellectual property and avoid infringing upon the intellectual property rights of third-parties;

•

demonstrate the safety, efficacy and health benefits of proposed products; and

•

obtain the necessary regulatory approvals for proposed products.

If we fail to generate demand by developing products that incorporate features desired by consumers, their caregivers or healthcare providers, or if
we do not obtain regulatory clearance or approval for proposed products in time to meet market demand, we may fail to generate sales sufficient to achieve or
maintain profitability. We have in the past experienced, and we may in the future experience, delays in various phases of product development, including
during research and development, manufacturing, limited release testing, marketing and customer education efforts. Such delays could cause customers to
delay or forego purchases of our products, or to purchase our competitors’ products. Even if we are able to successfully develop proposed products when
anticipated, these products may not produce sales in excess of the costs of development, and they may be quickly rendered obsolete by changing consumer
preferences or the introduction by our competitors of products embodying new technologies or features.
There is no long-term clinical data with respect to the effects of ReWalk, and our products could cause unforeseen negative effects.
While short-term clinical studies have established the safety of ReWalk, there is no long-term clinical data with respect to the safety or physical
effects of ReWalk. Future results and experience could indicate that our products are not safe for long-term use or cause unexpected complications or other
unforeseen negative effects. Because ReWalk users generally do not have feeling in their lower body, users may not immediately notice damaging effects,
which could exacerbate their impact. If in the future ReWalk is shown to be unsafe or cause such unforeseen effects, we could be subject to mandatory
product recalls, suspension or withdrawal of FDA or other regulatory clearance or approval, significant legal liability or harm to our business reputation.
We may enter into collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint ventures, strategic alliances or partnerships with third-parties that may not
result in the development of commercially viable products or the generation of significant future revenues.
In the ordinary course of our business, in the future we may enter into collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint ventures, strategic alliances or
partnerships to develop ReWalk and to pursue new markets. Proposing, negotiating and implementing collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint
ventures, strategic alliances or partnerships may be a lengthy and complex process. We may not identify, secure, or complete any such transactions or
arrangements in a timely manner, on a cost-effective basis, on acceptable terms or at all. We have limited institutional knowledge and experience with respect
to these business development activities, and we may also not realize the anticipated benefits of any such transaction or arrangement. In particular, these
collaborations may not result in the development of products that achieve commercial success or result in significant revenues and could be terminated prior
to developing any products. For example, we have entered into arrangements with Yaskawa for the distribution of our products in certain Asian markets and
with Making Strides for the distribution of our products in Australia. Additionally, on December 17, 2015, the VA issued a national policy, which is exclusive
to ReWalk Robotics exoskeleton systems, for the evaluation, training and procurement of ReWalk Personal exoskeleton systems for all qualifying veterans
suffering spinal cord injury across the United States. Our arrangement with Yaskawa and any arrangement we enter into with the VA pursuant to its policy
may not be as productive or successful as we hope.
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If we pursue collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint ventures, strategic alliances or partnerships, we may not be in a position to exercise sole
decision making authority regarding the transaction or arrangement, which could create the potential risk of creating impasses on decisions, and our
collaborators may have economic or business interests or goals that are, or that may become, inconsistent with our business interests or goals. It is possible
that conflicts may arise with our collaborators. Our collaborators may act in their self-interest, which may be adverse to our best interest, and they may breach
their obligations to us. Any such disputes could result in litigation or arbitration which would increase our expenses and divert the attention of our
management. Further, these transactions and arrangements are contractual in nature and may be terminated or dissolved under the terms of the applicable
agreements.
Exchange rate fluctuations between the U.S. dollar, the Euro and the NIS may negatively affect our earnings.
The U.S. dollar is our functional and reporting currency. In 2015, most of our revenues were denominated in U.S. dollars and the remainder of our
revenues was denominated in euros, and most of our expenses were denominated in U.S. dollars and the remainder of our expenses was denominated in NIS
and euros. In 2016, we expect that the denominations of our revenues and expenses will be consistent with what we experienced in 2015. Accordingly, any
appreciation of the NIS or Euro relative to the U.S. dollar would adversely impact our net loss or net income, if any. For example, we are exposed to the risks
that the shekel may appreciate relative to the dollar, or, if the shekel instead devalues relative to the dollar, that the inflation rate in Israel may exceed such rate
of devaluation of the shekel, or that the timing of such devaluation may lag behind inflation in Israel. In any such event, the dollar cost of our operations in
Israel would increase and our dollar-denominated results of operations would be adversely affected. We cannot predict any future trends in the rate of
inflation in Israel or the rate of devaluation (if any) of the shekel against the dollar. For example, the rate of devaluation of the shekel against the dollar was
approximately 0.3% in 2015, and approximately 12.0% in 2014, respectively. This had the effect of increasing the dollar cost of our operations in Israel. If the
dollar cost of our operations in Israel increases, our dollar-measured results of operations will be adversely affected. Our operations also could be adversely
affected if we are unable to effectively hedge against currency fluctuations in the future.
We have in the past engaged in limited hedging activities, and any hedging strategies that we may implement in the future to mitigate currency risks,
such as forward contracts, options and foreign exchange swaps related to transaction exposures, may not eliminate our exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations. For further information, see Item 7A. “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk"
We may seek to grow our business through acquisitions of complementary products or technologies, and the failure to manage acquisitions, or
the failure to integrate them with our existing business, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
From time to time, we may consider opportunities to acquire other products or technologies that may enhance our product platform or technology,
expand the breadth of our markets or customer base, or advance our business strategies. Potential acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:
•

problems assimilating the acquired products or technologies;

•

issues maintaining uniform standards, procedures, controls and policies;

•

unanticipated costs associated with acquisitions;

•

diversion of management’s attention from our existing business;

•

risks associated with entering new markets in which we have limited or no experience; and

•

increased legal and accounting costs relating to the acquisitions or compliance with regulatory matters.

We have no current commitments with respect to any acquisition. We do not know if we will be able to identify acquisitions we deem suitable,
whether we will be able to successfully complete any such acquisitions on favorable terms or at all, or whether we will be able to successfully integrate any
acquired products or technologies. Our potential inability to integrate any acquired products or technologies effectively may adversely affect our business,
operating results and financial condition.
If there are significant disruptions in our information technology systems, our business, financial condition and operating results could be
adversely affected.
The efficient operation of our business depends on our information technology systems. We rely on our information technology systems to
effectively manage sales and marketing data, accounting and financial functions, inventory management, product development tasks, research and
development data, customer service and technical support functions. Our information technology systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from
earthquakes, fires, floods and other natural disasters, terrorist attacks, attacks by computer viruses or hackers, power losses, and computer system or data
network failures. In addition, our data management application is hosted by a third-party service provider whose security and information technology systems
are subject to similar risks, and ReWalk systems contain software which could be subject to computer virus or hacker attacks or other failures.
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The failure of our or our service providers’ information technology systems or ReWalk’s software to perform as we anticipate or our failure to
effectively implement new information technology systems could disrupt our entire operation or adversely affect our software products and could result in
decreased sales, increased overhead costs, and product shortages, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial
condition and operating results.
If we fail to properly manage our anticipated growth, our business could suffer.
Our rapid growth has placed, and we expect that it will continue to place, a significant strain on our management team and on our financial
resources. Failure to manage our growth effectively could cause us to misallocate management or financial resources, and result in losses or weaknesses in
our infrastructure, which could materially adversely affect our business. Additionally, our anticipated growth will increase the demands placed on our
suppliers, resulting in an increased need for us to manage our suppliers and monitor for quality assurance. Any failure by us to manage our growth effectively
could have an adverse effect on our ability to achieve our business objectives.
We depend on the knowledge and skills of our senior management.
We have benefited substantially from the leadership and performance of our senior management. For example, we depend on our Chief Executive
Officer’s experience successfully scaling an early stage medical device company, as well as the experience of other members of management. Our success
will depend on our ability to retain our current management. Competition for senior management in our industry is intense and we cannot guarantee that we
will be able to retain our personnel. Additionally, we do not carry key man insurance on any of our current executive officers. The loss of the services of
certain members of our senior management could prevent or delay the implementation and completion of our strategic objectives, or divert management’s
attention to seeking qualified replacements.
Risks Related to Government Regulation
We are subject to extensive governmental regulations relating to the manufacturing, labeling and marketing of our products, and a failure to
comply with such regulations could lead to withdrawal or recall of our products from the market.
Our medical products and manufacturing operations are subject to regulation by the FDA, the European Union, the Ministry of Health in Israel, the
TGA in Australia, and other governmental authorities both inside and outside of the United States. These agencies enforce laws and regulations that govern
the development, testing, manufacturing, labeling, storage, installation, servicing, advertising, promoting, marketing, distribution, import, export and market
surveillance of ReWalk.
Our products are regulated as medical devices in the United States under the FFDCA as implemented and enforced by the FDA. Under the FFDCA,
medical devices are classified into one of three classes-Class I, Class II or Class III-depending on the degree of risk associated with the medical device, what
is known about the type of device, and the extent of control needed to provide reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness. Classification of a device is
important because the class to which a device is assigned determines, among other things, the necessity and type of FDA review required prior to marketing
the device. See Item 1. “Business - Government Regulation.”
In June 2014, the FDA granted our petition for “de novo” classification, which provides a route to market for medical devices that are low to
moderate risk, but are not substantially equivalent to a predicate device, and classified ReWalk as Class II subject to certain special controls. The ReWalk is
intended to enable individuals with spinal cord injuries to perform ambulatory functions under supervision of a specially trained companion, and inside
rehabilitation institutions. The special controls established in the de novo order include compliance with medical device consensus standards; clinical study
demonstrating testing to safe and effective use considering the level of supervision necessary and the use environment; non-clinical performance testing of
the system’s function and durability; and performance to demonstrate that the device performs as intended under anticipated conditions of use; a training
program; and labeling related to device use and user training. In order for us to market ReWalk, we must comply with both general controls, including
controls related to quality, facility registration, reporting of adverse events and labeling, and the special controls established for the device. Failure to comply
with the general and special controls could lead to removal of ReWalk from the market, which would have a material adverse effect on our business.
Following the introduction of a product, the governmental agencies will periodically review our manufacturing processes and product performance,
and we are under a continuing obligation to ensure that all applicable regulatory requirements continue to be met. The process of complying with the
applicable good manufacturing practices, adverse event reporting and other requirements can be costly and time consuming, and could delay or prevent the
production, manufacturing or sale of the ReWalk. In addition, if we fail to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, it could result in fines, delays or
suspensions of regulatory clearances, closure of manufacturing sites, seizures or recalls of products and damage to our reputation. Recent changes in
enforcement practice by the FDA, European Union and other agencies have resulted in increased enforcement activity, which increases the compliance risk
that we and other companies in our industry are facing.
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In addition, governmental agencies may impose new requirements regarding registration, labeling or prohibited materials that may require us to
modify or re-register ReWalk once it is already on the market or otherwise impact our ability to market ReWalk in those countries. The process of complying
with these governmental regulations can be costly and time consuming, and could delay or prevent the production, manufacturing or sale of ReWalk. For
instance, the FDA may issue mandates, known as 522 orders, requiring us to conduct post-market studies of products for which the FDA has already granted
us pre-market clearance. Failure to comply could result in enforcement of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act against us or our products.
Additionally, the agency could request that we recall our ReWalk Personal 6.0 device.
In February 2016, the FDA sent us a letter citing deficiencies in the protocol for the mandatory post-market study (conducted pursuant to a 522
order) on our ReWalk Personal 6.0 model and expressing the FDA’s belief that we should submit a second premarket notification for the device. We intend
to meet and discuss the February 2016 letter with the FDA. We expect that we may continue to sell our ReWalk Personal 6.0 model notwithstanding the
outcome because of our good faith belief that our past 510(k) clearance covers the ReWalk Personal 6.0 and the public health significance of the device.
Further, we currently expect that we will be able to address any deficiencies in our post-market study protocol. However, if the FDA were to decide instead
to seek enforcement against us, the ReWalk Personal 6.0 model or any other product due to failure to satisfy this or any other 522 order, we could be
prevented from selling the product in the United States, which could materially adversely affect our revenues and results of operations.
If we or our third-party manufacturers or suppliers fail to comply with the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, or QSR, our manufacturing
operations could be interrupted.
We, Sanmina and some of our suppliers are required to comply with the FDA’s QSR which covers the methods and documentation of the design,
testing, production, control, quality assurance, labeling, packaging, sterilization, storage and shipping of our products. We and Sanmina and our suppliers are
also subject to the regulations of foreign jurisdictions regarding the manufacturing process if we or our distributors market our products abroad. We continue
to monitor our quality management in order to improve our overall level of compliance. Our facilities are subject to periodic and unannounced inspection by
U.S. and foreign regulatory agencies to audit compliance with the QSR and comparable foreign regulations. If our facilities or those of Sanmina or our
suppliers are found to be in violation of applicable laws and regulations, or if we or Sanmina or our suppliers fail to take satisfactory corrective action in
response to an adverse inspection, the regulatory authority could take enforcement action, including any of the following sanctions:
•

untitled letters, warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and civil penalties;

•

customer notifications or repair, replacement or refunds;

•

detention or seizure of our products;

•

operating restrictions or partial suspension or total shutdown of production;

•

refusing or delaying requests for 510(k) marketing clearance or PMA approvals of new products or modified products;

•

withdrawing 510(k) marketing clearances or PMA approvals that have already been granted;

•

refusing to provide Certificates for Foreign Government;

•

refusing to grant export approval for our products; or

•

pursuing criminal prosecution.

Any of these sanctions could impair our ability to produce ReWalk in a cost-effective and timely manner in order to meet our customers’ demands,
and could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition. We may also be required to bear other costs
or take other actions that may have a negative impact on our future sales and our ability to generate profits.
We are subject to various laws and regulations, including “fraud and abuse” laws and anti-bribery laws, which, if violated, could subject us to
substantial penalties.
Medical device companies such as ours have faced lawsuits and investigations pertaining to alleged violations of numerous statutes and regulations,
including anti-corruption laws and health care “fraud and abuse” laws, such as the federal False Claims Act, the federal Anti-Kickback Statute and the U.S.
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or the FCPA. See Item 1. “Business—Government Regulation.” U.S. federal and state laws, including the federal Physician
Payments Sunshine Act, or the Sunshine Act, and the implementation of Open Payments regulations under the Sunshine Act, require medical device
companies to disclose certain payments or other transfers of value made to healthcare providers and teaching hospitals or funds spent on marketing and
promotion of medical device products. It is widely believed that public reporting under the Sunshine Act and implementing Open
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Payments regulations results in increased scrutiny of the financial relationships between industry, physicians and teaching hospitals. These anti-kickback,
anti-bribery, public reporting and aggregate spending laws affect our sales, marketing and other promotional activities by limiting the kinds of financial
arrangements, including sales programs, we may have with hospitals, rehabilitation centers, physicians or other potential purchasers or users of ReWalk. They
also impose additional administrative and compliance burdens on us. In particular, these laws influence, among other things, how we structure our sales
offerings, including discount practices, customer support, education and training programs and physician consulting and other service arrangements. If we are
in violation of any of these requirements or any actions are instituted against us, and we are not successful in defending ourselves or asserting our rights, those
actions could have a significant impact on our business, including the imposition of significant criminal and civil fines and penalties, exclusion from federal
healthcare programs or other sanctions.
The FCPA applies to companies, including ours, with a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act. The FCPA and other anti-bribery laws
to which various aspects of our operations may be subject generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to officials
for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. In various jurisdictions, our operations require that we and third parties acting on our behalf routinely
interact with government officials, including medical personnel who may be considered government officials for purposes of these laws because they are
employees of state-owned or controlled facilities. Other anti-bribery laws to which various aspects of our operations may be subject, including the
United Kingdom Bribery Act, also prohibit improper payments to private parties and prohibit receipt of improper payments. Our policies prohibit our
employees from making or receiving corrupt payments, including, among other things, to require compliance by third parties engaged to act on our behalf.
Our policies mandate compliance with these anti-bribery laws; however, we operate in many parts of the world that have experienced governmental and/or
private corruption to some degree. As a result, the existence and implementation of a robust anti-corruption program cannot eliminate all risk that
unauthorized reckless or criminal acts have been or will be committed by our employees or agents. Violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations,
could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and reputation.
If we are found to have violated laws protecting the confidentiality of patient health information, we could be subject to civil or criminal
penalties, which could increase our liabilities and harm our reputation or our business.
There are a number of federal, state and foreign laws protecting the confidentiality of certain patient health information, including patient records,
and restricting the use and disclosure of that protected information. In particular, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS, promulgated
patient privacy rules under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA. These privacy rules protect medical records and other
personal health information by limiting their use and disclosure, giving individuals the right to access, amend and seek accounting of their own health
information and limiting most use and disclosures of health information to the minimum amount reasonably necessary to accomplish the intended purpose. If
we or any of our service providers are found to be in violation of the promulgated patient privacy rules under HIPAA, we could be subject to civil or criminal
penalties, which could increase our liabilities, harm our reputation and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results.
Compliance with various regulations, including those related to our status as a U.S. public company and the manufacturing, labeling and
marketing of our products, may result in heightened general and administrative expenses and costs, divert management’s attention from revenuegenerating activities and pose challenges for our management team, which has limited time, personnel and finances to devote to regulatory compliance.
As a U.S. public company, we are subject to various regulatory and reporting requirements, including those imposed by the SEC, the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, the listing requirements of the NASDAQ Global Market and other applicable
securities rules and regulations. Additionally, our medical products and manufacturing operations are regulated by the FDA, the European Union, the Ministry
of Health in Israel, the TGA in Australia and other governmental authorities both inside and outside of the United States. Compliance with the rules and
regulations applicable to us as a publicly traded company in the United States and medical device manufacturer has greatly increased, and may continue to
increase, our legal, general and administrative and financial compliance costs and has made, and may continue to make, some activities more difficult, timeconsuming or costly. Additionally, these regulatory requirements have diverted, and may continue to divert, management’s attention from revenue-generating
activities and may increase demands on management’s already-limited resources. Our management team consists of few employees, as the majority of our
employees are engaged in sales and marketing and research and development activities, and we do not employ in-house counsel. In light of such constraints
on its time, personnel and finances, our management may not be able to implement programs and policies in an effective and timely manner to respond
adequately to the heightened legal, regulatory and reporting requirements applicable to us. In the past, for example, we have not always been able to respond
on a timely basis to requests from regulators, although we have not to date experienced any material adverse consequences as a result. Similar deficiencies,
weaknesses or lack of compliance with public company, medical device and other regulations could harm our reputation in the capital markets or for quality
and safety, negatively affect our ability to maintain our public company status and to develop, commercialize or continue selling our products on a timely and
effective basis, and cause us to incur sanctions, including fines, injunctions and penalties.
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In addition, complying with public disclosure rules makes our business more visible, which we believe may result in threatened or actual litigation,
including by competitors and other third parties. If such claims are successful, our business and operating results could be harmed, and even if the claims do
not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our
management and harm our business and operating results.
Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property
Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain and maintain protection for the intellectual property relating to or incorporated into our
products.
Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain and maintain protection for the intellectual property relating to or incorporated into our products.
We seek to protect our intellectual property through a combination of patents, trademarks, confidentiality and assignment agreements with our employees and
certain of our contractors and confidentiality agreements with certain of our consultants, scientific advisors and other vendors and contractors. In addition, we
rely on trade secrets law to protect our proprietary software and product candidates/products in development.
The patent position of robotic and exoskeleton inventions can be highly uncertain and involves many new and evolving complex legal, factual and
technical issues. Patent laws and interpretations of those laws are subject to change and any such changes may diminish the value of our patents or narrow the
scope of protection. In addition, we may fail to apply for or be unable to obtain patents necessary to protect our technology or products or enforce our patents
due to lack of information about the exact use of technology or processes by third parties. Also, we cannot be sure that any patents will be granted in a timely
manner or at all with respect to any of our patent pending applications or that any patents that are granted will be adequate to protect our intellectual property
for any significant period of time or at all.
Litigation to establish or challenge the validity of patents, or to defend against or assert against others infringement, unauthorized use, enforceability
or invalidity claims, can be lengthy and expensive and may result in our patents being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and our not being granted new
patents related to our pending patent applications. Even if we prevail, litigation may be time consuming and force us to incur significant costs, and any
damages or other remedies awarded to us may not be valuable and management’s attention could be diverted from managing our business. In addition, U.S.
patents and patent applications may be subject to interference proceedings, and U.S. patents may be subject to re-examination and review proceedings in the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. Foreign patents may also be subject to opposition or comparable proceedings in the corresponding foreign patent offices.
Any of these proceedings may be expensive and could result in the loss of a patent or denial of a patent application, or the loss or reduction in the scope of
one or more of the claims of a patent or patent application.
In addition, we seek to protect our trade secrets, know-how and confidential information that is not patentable by entering into confidentiality and
assignment agreements with our employees and certain of our contractors and confidentiality agreements with certain of our consultants, scientific advisors
and other vendors and contractors. However, we may fail to enter into the necessary agreements, and even if entered into, these agreements may be breached
or otherwise fail to prevent disclosure, third-party infringement or misappropriation of our proprietary information, may be limited as to their term and may
not provide an adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized disclosure or use of proprietary information. Enforcing a claim that a third party illegally
obtained and is using our trade secrets is expensive and time consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable.
We also have taken precautions to initiate reasonable safeguards to protect our information technology systems. However, these measures may not be
adequate to safeguard our proprietary information, which could lead to the loss or impairment thereof or to expensive litigation to defend our rights against
competitors who may be better funded and have superior resources. In addition, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or reverse engineer certain aspects
of our products that we consider proprietary or our proprietary information may otherwise become known or may be independently developed by our
competitors or other third parties. If other parties are able to use our proprietary technology or information, our ability to compete in the market could be
harmed.
Further, unauthorized use of our intellectual property may have occurred, or may occur in the future, without our knowledge.
If we are unable to obtain or maintain adequate protection for intellectual property, or if any protection is reduced or eliminated, competitors may be
able to use our technologies, resulting in harm to our competitive position.
Our patents and proprietary technology and processes may not provide us with a competitive advantage.
Robotics and exoskeleton technologies have been developing rapidly in recent years. We are aware of several other companies developing competing
exoskeleton devices for individuals with limited mobility and we expect the level of competition and the pace of development in our industry to increase. See
Item 1. “Business—Competition.” While we believe our tilt-sensor technology provides a more natural and superior method of exoskeleton activation, which
creates a better user experience, a variety of other activation and control methods exist for exoskeletons, several of which are being developed by our
competitors, or may
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be developed in the future. As a result, our patent portfolio and proprietary technology and processes may not provide us with a significant advantage over our
competitors, and competitors may be able to design and sell alternative products that are equal to or superior to our products without infringing on our patents.
In addition, upon the expiration of our current patents, we may be unable to adequately develop new technologies and obtain future patent protection to
preserve our competitive advantage. If we are unable to maintain a competitive advantage, our business and results of operations may be materially adversely
affected.
Even in instances where others are found to infringe on our patents, many countries have laws under which a patent owner may be compelled to
grant licenses for the use of the patented technology to other parties. In addition, many countries limit the enforceability of patents against other parties,
including government agencies or government contractors. In these countries, a patent owner may have limited remedies, which could diminish the value of a
patent in those countries. Further, the laws of some countries do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States,
particularly in the field of medical products, and effective enforcement in those countries may not be available. The ability of others to market comparable
products could adversely affect our business.
We are not able to protect our intellectual property rights in all countries.
Filing, prosecuting, maintaining and defending patents on each of our products in all countries throughout the world would be prohibitively
expensive, and thus our intellectual property rights outside the United States are limited. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries, especially
developing countries, do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as federal and state laws in the United States. Also, it may not be possible
to effectively enforce intellectual property rights in some countries at all or to the same extent as in the United States and other countries. Consequently, we
are unable to prevent third parties from using our inventions in all countries, or from selling or importing products made using our inventions in the
jurisdictions in which we do not have (or are unable to effectively enforce) patent protection. Competitors may use our technologies in jurisdictions where we
have not obtained patent protection to develop, market or otherwise commercialize their own products, and we may be unable to prevent those competitors
from importing those infringing products into territories where we have patent protection, but enforcement is not as strong as in the United States. These
products may compete with our products and our patents and other intellectual property rights may not be effective or sufficient to prevent them from
competing in those jurisdictions. Moreover, competitors or others in the chain of commerce may raise legal challenges against our intellectual property rights
or may infringe upon our intellectual property rights, including through means that may be difficult to prevent or detect.
Many companies have encountered significant problems in protecting and defending intellectual property rights in foreign jurisdictions. Proceedings
to enforce our patent rights in the United States or foreign jurisdictions could result in substantial costs and divert our efforts and attention from other aspects
of our business, could put our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and our patent applications at risk of not issuing, and could provoke
third parties to assert patent infringement or other claims against us. We may not prevail in any lawsuits that we initiate and the damages or other remedies
awarded, if any, may not be commercially meaningful. Accordingly, our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights in the United States and around the
world may be inadequate to obtain a significant commercial advantage from the intellectual property that we develop or license from third parties.
We may be subject to patent infringement claims, which could result in substantial costs and liability and prevent us from commercializing our
current and future products.
The medical device industry is characterized by competing intellectual property and a substantial amount of litigation over patent rights. In
particular, our competitors in both the United States and abroad, many of which have substantially greater resources and have made substantial investments in
competing technologies, have been issued patents and filed patent applications with respect to their products and processes and may apply for other patents in
the future. The large number of patents, the rapid rate of new patent issuances, and the complexities of the technology involved increase the risk of patent
litigation.
Determining whether a product infringes a patent involves complex legal and factual issues and the outcome of patent litigation is often uncertain.
Even though we have conducted research of issued patents, no assurance can be given that patents containing claims covering our products, technology or
methods do not exist, have not been filed or could not be filed or issued. In addition, because patent applications can take years to issue and because
publication schedules for pending applications vary by jurisdiction, there may be applications now pending of which we are unaware and may result in issued
patents which our current or future products infringe. Also, because the claims of published patent applications can change between publication and parent
grant, published applications may issue with claims that potentially cover our products, technology or methods.
Infringement actions and other intellectual property claims brought against us, with or without merit, may cause us to incur substantial costs and
could place a significant strain on our financial resources, divert the attention of management and harm our reputation. We cannot be certain that we will
successfully defend against any allegations of infringement. If we are found to infringe another party’s patents, we could be required to pay damages. We
could also be prevented from selling our products that infringe, unless we could obtain a license to use the technology covered by such patents or could
redesign our products so that they do not infringe. A license may be available on commercially reasonable terms or none at all, and we may not be able to
redesign our products to avoid infringement. Further, any modification to our products could require us to conduct clinical trials
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and revise our filings with the FDA and other regulatory bodies, which would be time consuming and expensive. In these circumstances, we may not be able
to sell our products at competitive prices or at all, and our business and operating results could be harmed.
We rely on trademark protection to distinguish our products from the products of our competitors.
We rely on trademark protection to distinguish our products from the products of our competitors. We have registered the trademark “ReWalk” in
Israel and are in the process of registering our trademark in the United States. In jurisdictions where we have not registered our trademark and are using it,
and as permitted by applicable local law, we rely on common law trademark protection. Third-parties may oppose our trademark applications, or otherwise
challenge our use of the trademarks, and may be able to use our trademarks in jurisdictions where they are not registered or otherwise protected by law. If our
trademarks are successfully challenged or if a third party is using confusingly similar or identical trademarks in particular jurisdictions before we do, we
could be forced to rebrand our products, which could result in loss of brand recognition, and could require us to devote additional resources to marketing new
brands. If others are able to use our trademarks, our ability to distinguish our products may be impaired, which could adversely affect our business. Further,
we cannot assure you that competitors will not infringe upon our trademarks, or that we will have adequate resources to enforce our trademarks.
We may be subject to damages resulting from claims that our employees or we have wrongfully used or disclosed alleged trade secrets of their
former employers.
Many of our employees were previously employed at other medical device companies, including our competitors or potential competitors, and we
may hire employees in the future that are so employed. We could in the future be subject to claims that these employees, or we, have inadvertently or
otherwise used or disclosed trade secrets or other proprietary information of their former employers. If we fail in defending against such claims, a court could
order us to pay substantial damages and prohibit us from using technologies or features that are found to incorporate or be derived from the trade secrets or
other proprietary information of the former employers. If any of these technologies or features that are important to our products, this could prevent us from
selling those products and could have a material adverse effect on our business. Even if we are successful in defending against these claims, such litigation
could result in substantial costs and divert the attention of management.
Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares
Our share price may be volatile, and you may lose all or part of your investment.
Our ordinary shares were first publicly offered in our initial public offering in September 2014, at a price of $12.00 per share and our ordinary shares
have subsequently traded as high as $43.71 per share and as low as $5.55 per share through February 22, 2016. The market price of our ordinary shares could
be highly volatile and may fluctuate substantially as a result of many factors, including, but not limited to:
•

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our growth rate or results of operations or those of our competitors;

•

customer acceptance of our products;

•

announcements by us or our competitors of new products or services, commercial relationships, acquisitions or expansion plans;

•

announcements by us or our competitors of other material developments;

•

our involvement in litigation;

•

changes in government regulation applicable to us and our products;

•

sales, or the anticipation of sales, of our ordinary shares, warrants and debt securities by us, or sales of our ordinary shares by our insiders or
other shareholders, including upon expiration of contractual lock-up agreements;

•

developments with respect to intellectual property rights;

•

competition from existing or new technologies and products;

•

changes in key personnel;

•

the trading volume of our ordinary shares;

•

changes in the estimation of the future size and growth rate of our markets; and

•

general economic and market conditions.

In addition, the stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. Broad market and industry factors may materially harm the
market price of our ordinary shares, regardless of our operating performance. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s
securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against
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that company. If we were involved in any similar litigation, we could incur substantial costs and our management’s attention and resources could be diverted.
If we do not meet the expectations of equity research analysts, if they do not continue to publish research or reports about our business or if they
issue unfavorable commentary or downgrade our ordinary shares, the price of our ordinary shares could decline.
The trading market for our ordinary shares relies in part on the research and reports that equity research analysts publish about us and our business.
The analysts’ estimates are based upon their own opinions and are often different from our estimates or expectations. If our results of operations are below the
estimates or expectations of public market analysts and investors, our share price could decline. Moreover, the price of our ordinary shares could decline if
one or more securities analysts downgrade our ordinary shares or if those analysts issue other unfavorable commentary or do not publish research or reports
about us or our business.
A small number of our shareholders have a significant influence over matters requiring shareholder approval, which could delay or prevent a
change of control.
The largest beneficial owners of our shares, entities affiliated with SCP Vitalife Partners and Yaskawa Electric Corporation, beneficially own in the
aggregate 27.0% of our ordinary shares. As a result, these shareholders, should they choose to act together or and even if they act individually, will exert
significant influence over our operations and business strategy and would together have sufficient voting power to influence significantly the outcome of
matters requiring shareholder approval. These matters may include:
•

the composition of our board of directors, which has the authority to direct our business and to appoint and remove our officers;

•

approving or rejecting a merger, consolidation or other business combination;

•

raising future capital; and

•

amending our articles of association, which govern the rights attached to our ordinary shares.

This concentration of ownership of our ordinary shares could delay or prevent proxy contests, mergers, tender offers, open-market purchase
programs or other purchases of our ordinary shares that might otherwise give you the opportunity to realize a premium over the then-prevailing market price
of our ordinary shares. This concentration of ownership may also adversely affect our share price.
As of January 1, 2016, we are required to comply with the Exchange Act’s domestic reporting regime, which may cause us to incur significant legal,
accounting and other expenses and resources.
Prior to January 1, 2016, we were a foreign private issuer and therefore were not required to comply with all of the periodic disclosure and current
reporting requirements of the Exchange Act applicable to U.S. domestic issuers. As we are no longer a foreign private issuer as of January 1, 2016, we are
required to comply with all of the periodic disclosure and current reporting requirements of the Exchange Act applicable to U.S. domestic issuers, which are
more detailed and extensive than the requirements for foreign private issuers. In addition, our officers, directors and principal shareholders are no longer
exempt from the reporting and short-swing profit recovery provisions contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act and are no longer exempt from the
requirements of Regulation FD. We are also no longer permitted to follow our home country rules in lieu of the corporate governance obligations imposed by
the NASDAQ, and may be required to comply with the governance practices required of U.S. domestic issuers. The regulatory and compliance costs
associated with the reporting and governance requirements applicable to U.S. domestic issuers may be significantly higher than the costs we previously
incurred as a foreign private issuer. As a result, we expect that the loss of foreign private issuer status will increase our legal and financial compliance costs
and will make some activities highly time consuming and costly. In addition, we need to develop our reporting and compliance infrastructure and may face
challenges in complying with the new requirements applicable to us.
We are an “emerging growth company” and we cannot be certain whether the reduced requirements applicable to emerging growth companies
will make our ordinary shares less attractive to investors.
We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. As a result, we may take
advantage of certain exemptions from various requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies.” For
instance, we are subject to reduced compensation disclosure obligations under the JOBS Act, and we are not required to conduct votes seeking shareholder
approval on an advisory basis of (i) the compensation of our named executive officers or the frequency with which such votes must be conducted or (ii)
compensation arrangements and understandings in connection with merger transactions, known as “golden parachute” arrangements. Additionally, we are not
required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, for up to five
fiscal years after the date of our initial public offering. We will remain an emerging growth company
28

until the earliest of: (a) the last day of our fiscal year during which we have total annual gross revenues of at least $1.0 billion; (b) the last day of our fiscal
year following the fifth anniversary of the completion of our initial public offering; (c) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period,
issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt; or (d) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under the Exchange Act. When
we are no longer deemed to be an emerging growth company, we will not be entitled to the exemptions provided in the JOBS Act discussed above. We cannot
predict if investors will find our ordinary shares less attractive as a result of our reliance on exemptions under the JOBS Act. If some investors find our
ordinary shares less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our ordinary shares and our share price may be more volatile.
The market price of our ordinary shares could be negatively affected by future sales of our ordinary shares.
Sales by us or our shareholders of a substantial number of ordinary shares in the public market, or the perception that these sales might occur, could
cause the market price of our ordinary shares to decline or could impair our ability to raise capital through a future sale of, or pay for acquisitions using, our
equity securities. If we or our existing shareholders, particularly our largest shareholders, our directors, their affiliates, or our executive officers, sell a
substantial number of our ordinary shares in the public market, the market price of our ordinary shares could decrease significantly. The perception in the
public market that we or these shareholders might sell our ordinary shares could also depress the market price of our ordinary shares and could impair our
future ability to obtain capital, especially through an offering of equity securities.
We are party to an Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Rights Agreement with certain of our shareholders. Pursuant to that agreement, as of
February 1, 2016, the beneficial owners of 4,317,883 of our ordinary shares are entitled to require that we register their shares under the Securities Act for
resale into the public markets. All shares sold pursuant to an offering covered by such registration statement will be freely transferable. See Item 13. “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.”
In addition, as of February 1, 2016, 1,846,334 ordinary shares were subject to outstanding option awards granted to employees under our equity
incentive plans, including 680,020 ordinary shares issuable under currently exercisable share options. As of February 1, 2016, 2,743,892 shares remained
available for issuance under our equity incentive plans, which amount includes 1,846,334 ordinary shares subject to outstanding awards. Shares issued
pursuant to our share incentive plans may be freely sold in the public market upon issuance, subject to vesting provisions, except for shares held by affiliates
who have certain restrictions on their ability to sell.
Our U.S. shareholders may suffer adverse tax consequences if we are characterized as a passive foreign investment company.
Generally, if for any taxable year 75% or more of our gross income is passive income, or at least 50% of the average quarterly value of our assets
(which may be determined in part by the market value of our ordinary shares, which is subject to change) are held for the production of, or produce, passive
income, we would be characterized as a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Passive income for this purpose
generally includes, among other things, certain dividends, interest, royalties, rents and gains from commodities and securities transactions and from the sale or
exchange of property that gives rise to passive income. Passive income also includes amounts derived by reason of the temporary investment of funds,
including those raised in a public offering. In determining whether a non-U.S. corporation is a PFIC, a proportionate share of the income and assets of each
corporation in which it owns, directly or indirectly, at least a 25% interest (by value) is taken into account. Based on our gross income and assets and the
nature of our business, we do not believe that we were a PFIC for the taxable year ended December 31, 2015. There can be no assurance that we will not be
considered a PFIC for 2016 or any taxable year. PFIC status is determined as of the end of the taxable year and depends on a number of factors, including the
value of a corporation’s assets and the amount and type of its gross income. Further, because the value of our gross assets is likely to be determined in large
part by reference to our market capitalization (assuming we are treated as publicly traded for purposes of PFIC rules), a decline in the value of our ordinary
shares may result in our becoming a PFIC. If we are characterized as a PFIC, our U.S. shareholders may suffer adverse tax consequences, including having
gains realized on the sale of our ordinary shares treated as ordinary income, rather than a capital gain, the loss of the preferential rate applicable to dividends
received on our ordinary shares by individuals who are U.S. Holders (as defined below), and having interest charges apply to distributions by us and the
proceeds of share sales. Certain elections exist that may alleviate some of the adverse consequences of PFIC status and would result in an alternative
treatment (such as mark-to-market treatment) of our ordinary shares; however, we do not intend to provide the information necessary for U.S. holders to make
qualified electing fund elections if we are classified as a PFIC. For purposes of the above discussion, a “U.S. Holder” is a citizen or resident of the United
States; a corporation (or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United
States or any state thereof, including the District of Columbia; an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its
source; or a trust if such trust has validly elected to be treated as a United States person for U.S. federal income tax purposes or if (1) a court within the
United States is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and (2) one or more United States persons have the authority to control all of the
substantial decisions of such trust.
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We are subject to ongoing costs and risks associated with determining whether our existing internal controls over financial reporting systems are
compliant with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and if we fail to achieve and maintain adequate internal controls it could have a material adverse
effect on our stated results of operations and harm our reputation.
Starting in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, we are required to comply with the internal control, evaluation, and certification requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board. Unless we lose our status as an emerging growth company
under the JOBS Act prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the fifth anniversary of our IPO occurred, we will not be required to obtain an auditor
attestation under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act until the year ended December 31, 2019. However once we no longer qualify as an emerging growth
company under the JOBS Act our independent registered public accounting firm will need to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting under Section 404.
The process of determining whether our existing internal controls over financial reporting systems are compliant with Section 404 and whether there
are any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our existing internal controls requires the investment of substantial time and resources, including by
our Chief Financial Officer and other members of our senior management. This determination and any remedial actions required could divert internal
resources and take a significant amount of time and effort to complete and could result in us incurring additional costs that we did not anticipate, including the
hiring of outside consultants. We could experience higher than anticipated operating expenses and higher independent auditor fees during and after the
implementation of these changes.
Irrespective of compliance with Section 404, any failure of our internal controls could have a material adverse effect on our stated results of
operations and harm our reputation. If we are unable to implement any of the required changes to our internal control over financial reporting effectively or
efficiently or are required to do so earlier than anticipated, it could adversely affect our operations, financial reporting and/or results of operations and could
result in an adverse opinion on internal controls from our management and, once we lose our emerging growth company status, our independent auditors.
Further, if our internal control over financial reporting is not effective, the reliability of our financial statements may be questioned and our share price may
suffer.
Risks Relating to Our Incorporation and Location in Israel
Our technology development and quality headquarters and the manufacturing facility for our products are located in Israel and, therefore, our
results may be adversely affected by economic restrictions imposed on, and political and military instability in, Israel.
Our technology development and quality headquarters, which houses substantially all of our research and development and our core research and
development team, including engineers, machinists, researchers, and clinical and regulatory personnel, as well as the facility of our contract manufacturer,
Sanmina, are located in Israel. Many of our employees, directors and officers are residents of Israel. Accordingly, political, economic and military conditions
in Israel and the surrounding region may directly affect our business. Since the establishment of the State of Israel in 1948, a number of armed conflicts have
taken place between Israel and its Arab neighbors, Hamas (an Islamist militia and political group in the Gaza Strip) and Hezbollah (an Islamist militia and
political group in Lebanon). Any hostilities involving Israel or the interruption or curtailment of trade within Israel or between Israel and its trading partners
could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and could make it more difficult for us to raise capital. In
particular, an interruption of operations at the Tel Aviv airport related to the conflict in the Gaza Strip or otherwise could prevent or delay shipments of our
components or products. Although we maintain inventory in the United States and Germany, an extended interruption could materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations. Recent political uprisings, social unrest and violence in various countries in the Middle East and
North Africa, including Israel’s neighbors Egypt and Syria, are affecting the political stability of those countries. This instability may lead to deterioration of
the political relationships that exist between Israel and these countries and has raised concerns regarding security in the region and the potential for armed
conflict. Our commercial insurance does not cover losses that may occur as a result of an event associated with the security situation in the Middle East. Any
losses or damages incurred by us could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, Iran has threatened to attack Israel and is widely believed
to be developing nuclear weapons. Iran is also believed to have a strong influence among parties hostile to Israel in areas that neighbor Israel, such as the
Syrian government, Hamas in Gaza and Hezbollah in Lebanon. Any armed conflicts, terrorist activities or political instability in the region could materially
and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our operations and the operations of our contract manufacturer, Sanmina, may be disrupted as a result of the obligation of Israeli citizens to
perform military service.
Many Israeli citizens are obligated to perform one month, and in some cases more, of annual military reserve duty until they reach the age of 45 (or
older, for reservists with certain occupations) and, in the event of a military conflict, may be called to active duty. In response to terrorist activity, there have
been periods of significant call-ups of military reservists. For example, the Israeli armed forces called up a significant number of reservists to active duty in
connection with the recent conflict in the
30

Gaza Strip. It is possible that there will be additional military reserve duty call-ups in the future in connection with this conflict or otherwise. Some of our
executive officers and employees, as well as those of Sanmina, the manufacturer of all of our products, are required to perform annual military reserve duty in
Israel and may be called to active duty at any time under emergency circumstances. Although these call-ups have not had a material impact on our operations
or on Sanmina’s ability to manufacture our products, our operations and the operations of Sanmina could be disrupted by such call-ups.
Our sales may be adversely affected by boycotts of Israel.
Several countries, principally in the Middle East, restrict doing business with Israel and Israeli companies, and additional countries may impose
restrictions on doing business with Israel and Israeli companies whether as a result of hostilities in the region or otherwise. In addition, there have been
increased efforts by activists to cause companies and consumers to boycott Israeli goods based on Israeli government policies. Such actions, particularly if
they become more widespread, may adversely impact our ability to sell our products.
The tax benefits that are available to us require us to continue to meet various conditions and may be terminated or reduced in the future, which
could increase our costs and taxes.
Some of our operations in Israel, referred to as “Beneficiary Enterprises,” carry certain tax benefits under the Israeli Law for the Encouragement of
Capital Investments, 5719-1959, or the Investment Law. Substantially all of our future income before taxes can be attributed to these programs. If we do not
meet the requirements for maintaining these benefits or if our assumptions regarding the key elements affecting our tax rates are rejected by the tax
authorities, they may be reduced or cancelled and the relevant operations would be subject to Israeli corporate tax at the standard rate, which is currently set at
25.0% for 2016 and thereafter. In addition to being subject to the standard corporate tax rate, we could be required to refund any tax benefits that we may
receive in the future, plus interest and penalties thereon. Even if we continue to meet the relevant requirements, the tax benefits that our current “Beneficiary
Enterprises” receive may not be continued in the future at their current levels or at all. If these tax benefits were reduced or eliminated, the amount of taxes
that we pay would likely increase, as all of our Israeli operations would consequently be subject to corporate tax at the standard rate, which could adversely
affect our results of operations. Additionally, if we increase our activities outside of Israel, for example, by way of acquisitions, our increased activities may
not be eligible for inclusion in Israeli tax benefit programs. See Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our current tax
obligations.
We have received Israeli government grants for certain of our research and development activities and we may receive additional grants in the
future. The terms of those grants restrict our ability to manufacture products or transfer technologies outside of Israel, and we may be required to pay
penalties in such cases or upon the sale of our company.
From our inception through December 31, 2015, we received a total of $740,000 from the OCS. We may in the future apply to receive additional
grants from the OCS to support our research and development activities. With respect to such grants we are committed to pay royalties at a rate of 3% to 3.5%
on sales proceeds up to the total amount of grants received, linked to the dollar and bearing interest at an annual rate of LIBOR applicable to dollar deposits.
Even after payment in full of these amounts, we will still be required to comply with the requirements of the Israeli Encouragement of Industrial Research and
Development Law, 1984, or the R&D Law, and related regulations, with respect to those past grants. When a company develops know-how, technology or
products using OCS grants, the terms of these grants and the R&D Law restrict the transfer outside of Israel of such know-how, and the manufacturing or
manufacturing rights of such products, technologies or know-how, without the prior approval of the OCS. Therefore, if aspects of our technologies are
deemed to have been developed with OCS funding, the discretionary approval of an OCS committee would be required for any transfer to third parties outside
of Israel of know-how or manufacturing or manufacturing rights related to those aspects of such technologies. Furthermore, the OCS may impose certain
conditions on any arrangement under which it permits us to transfer technology or development out of Israel or may not grant such approvals at all.
The transfer of OCS-supported technology or know-how outside of Israel may involve the payment of significant amounts to the OCS, depending
upon the value of the transferred technology or know-how, the amount of OCS support, the time of completion of the OCS-supported research project and
other factors. These restrictions and requirements for payment may impair our ability to sell our technology assets outside of Israel or to outsource or transfer
development or manufacturing activities with respect to any product or technology outside of Israel. Furthermore, the consideration available to our
shareholders in a transaction involving the transfer outside of Israel of technology or know-how developed with OCS funding (such as a merger or similar
transaction) may be reduced by any amounts that we are required to pay to the OCS.
In addition to the above, any non-Israeli citizen, resident or entity that, among other things, (i) becomes a holder of 5% or more of our share capital
or voting rights, (ii) is entitled to appoint one or more of our directors or our chief executive officer or (iii) serves as one of our directors or as our chief
executive officer (including holders of 25% or more of the voting power, equity or the right to nominate directors in such direct holder, if applicable) is
required to notify the OCS and undertake to comply with the rules and regulations applicable to the grant programs of the OCS, including the restrictions on
transfer described above.
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We may become subject to claims for remuneration or royalties for assigned service invention rights by our employees, which could result in
litigation and adversely affect our business.
A significant portion of our intellectual property has been developed by our employees in the course of their employment for us. Under the Israeli
Patent Law, 5727-1967, or the Patent Law, and recent decisions by the Israeli Supreme Court and the Israeli Compensation and Royalties Committee, a body
constituted under the Patent Law, employees may be entitled to remuneration for intellectual property that they develop for us unless they explicitly waive
any such rights, although the validity of any such waivers remains open to judicial review. Although we enter into agreements with our employees pursuant to
which they agree that any inventions created in the scope of their employment or engagement are owned exclusively by us, we may face claims demanding
remuneration. As a consequence of such claims, we could be required to pay additional remuneration or royalties to our current and former employees, or be
forced to litigate such claims, which could negatively affect our business.
Provisions of Israeli law and our articles of association may delay, prevent or otherwise impede a merger with, or an acquisition of, us, even
when the terms of such a transaction are favorable to us and our shareholders.
Israeli corporate law regulates mergers, requires tender offers for acquisitions of shares above specified thresholds, requires special approvals for
transactions involving directors, officers or significant shareholders and regulates other matters that may be relevant to such types of transactions. For
example, a tender offer for all of a company’s issued and outstanding shares can only be completed if the acquirer receives positive responses from the
holders of at least 95% of the issued share capital. Completion of the tender offer also requires approval of a majority of the offerees that do not have a
personal interest in the tender offer, unless at least 98% of the company’s outstanding shares are tendered. Furthermore, the shareholders, including those who
indicated their acceptance of the tender offer (unless the acquirer stipulated in its tender offer that a shareholder that accepts the offer may not seek appraisal
rights), may, at any time within six months following the completion of the tender offer, petition an Israeli court to alter the consideration for the acquisition.
Our articles of association provide that our directors (other than external directors) are elected on a staggered basis, such that a potential acquirer
cannot readily replace our entire board of directors at a single annual general shareholder meeting. This could prevent a potential acquirer from receiving
board approval for an acquisition proposal that our board of directors opposes.
Furthermore, Israeli tax considerations may make potential transactions unappealing to us or to our shareholders whose country of residence does not
have a tax treaty with Israel exempting such shareholders from Israeli tax. For example, Israeli tax law does not recognize tax-free share exchanges to the
same extent as U.S. tax law. With respect to mergers involving an exchange of shares, Israeli tax law allows for tax deferral in certain circumstances but
makes the deferral contingent on the fulfillment of a number of conditions, including, in some cases, a holding period of two years from the date of the
transaction during which sales and dispositions of shares of the participating companies are subject to certain restrictions. Moreover, with respect to certain
share swap transactions, the tax deferral is limited in time, and when such time expires, the tax becomes payable even if no disposition of the shares has
occurred. These and other similar provisions could delay, prevent or impede an acquisition of us or our merger with another company, even if such an
acquisition or merger would be beneficial to us or to our shareholders.
It may be difficult to enforce a judgment of a U.S. court against us, our officers and directors, to assert U.S. securities laws claims in Israel or to
serve process on our officers and directors.
We are incorporated in Israel. Although the majority of our directors and executive officers reside within the United States and most of the assets of
these persons are also likely located within the United States, some of our directors and officers reside and may have the majority of their assets outside the
United States. Additionally, most of our assets are located outside of the United States. Therefore, a judgment obtained against us, or those of our directors
and executive officers residing outside of the United States, including a judgment based on the civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal securities laws,
may not be collectible in the United States and may not be enforced by an Israeli court. It also may be difficult for you to effect service of process in the
United States on those directors and executive officers residing outside of the United States or to assert U.S. securities law claims in original actions instituted
in Israel. Israeli courts may refuse to hear a claim based on an alleged violation of U.S. securities laws reasoning that Israel is not the most appropriate forum
in which to bring such a claim In addition, even if an Israeli court agrees to hear a claim, it may determine that Israeli law and not U.S. law is applicable to the
claim. If U.S. law is found to be applicable, the content of applicable U.S. law must be proven as a fact by expert witnesses, which can be a time-consuming
and costly process. Certain matters of procedure will also be governed by Israeli law. There is little binding case law in Israel that addresses the matters
described above. As a result of the difficulty associated with enforcing a judgment against us in Israel, you may be able to collect only limited, or may be
unable to collect any, damages awarded by either a U.S. or foreign court.
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Your rights and responsibilities as a shareholder will be governed by Israeli law which differs in some material respects from the rights and
responsibilities of shareholders of U.S. companies.
The rights and responsibilities of the holders of our ordinary shares are governed by our articles of
association and by Israeli law. These rights and responsibilities differ in some material respects from the rights and responsibilities of shareholders in U.S.based corporations. In particular, a shareholder of an Israeli company has a duty to act in good faith and in a customary manner in exercising its rights and
performing its obligations towards the company and other shareholders, and to refrain from abusing its power in the company, including, among other things,
in voting at a general meeting of shareholders on matters such as amendments to a company’s articles of association, increases in a company’s authorized
share capital, mergers and acquisitions and related party transactions requiring shareholder approval. In addition, a shareholder who is aware that it possesses
the power to determine the outcome of a shareholder vote or to appoint or prevent the appointment of a director or executive officer in the company has a
duty of fairness toward the company. There is limited case law available to assist us in understanding the nature of this duty or the implications of these
provisions. These provisions may be interpreted to impose additional obligations and liabilities on holders of our ordinary shares that are not typically
imposed on shareholders of U.S. corporations.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our corporate headquarters are located in Yokneam, Israel, our U.S. headquarters are located in Marlborough, Massachusetts, and our European
headquarters are located in Berlin, Germany.
All of our facilities are leased and we do not own any real property. The table below sets forth details of the square footage of our current leased
properties, all of which are fully utilized. We have no material tangible fixed assets apart from the properties described below.
Square
feet(approximate)

Marlborough, Massachusetts

3,300

Yokneam, Israel

11,080

Berlin, Germany

600

Total

14,980
We believe our facilities are adequate and suitable for our current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
In the ordinary course of our business, we are party to various legal proceedings and claims that we believe are incidental to the operation of our
business. We do not believe that the outcomes of these legal proceedings have had in the recent past, or will have (with respect to any pending proceedings),
significant effects on our financial position or profitability. For more information, see the information in Note 2t and Note 8e to our consolidated financial
statements set forth in Item 8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of this annual report.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information
Our ordinary shares began trading publicly on the Nasdaq Global Market on September 12, 2014 under the symbol “RWLK”. The following table
sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices of our ordinary shares as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market.
High

Low

2015
Fourth quarter 2015

$

17.40

$

Third quarter 2015

$

11.90

$

5.55
7.20

Second quarter 2015

$

14.65

$

10.35

First quarter 2015

$

22.74

$

12.03

Fourth quarter 2014

$

34.29

$

18.01

Third quarter 2014 (beginning on September 12, 2014)

$

43.71

$

11.50

2014

As of February 1, 2016, there were 41 record holders of our ordinary shares.
Dividend Policy
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our ordinary shares. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance operations and expand our business. Our board of directors has sole discretion whether to pay
dividends. Any future determination relating to our dividend policy will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on a number of
factors, including future earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and future prospects and other factors our board of directors may deem relevant.
The distribution of dividends may also be limited by Israeli law, which permits the distribution of dividends only out of retained earnings or otherwise upon
the permission of an Israeli court.
Israeli Taxes Applicable to U.S. Holders
A non-Israeli resident who derives capital gains from the sale of shares in an Israeli resident company that were purchased after the company was
listed for trading on a stock exchange outside of Israel will be exempt from Israeli tax so long as the shares were not held through a permanent establishment
that the non-resident maintains in Israel. However, non-Israeli corporations will not be entitled to the foregoing exemption if Israeli residents (i) have a
controlling interest of more than 25% in such non-Israeli corporation or (ii) are the beneficiaries of, or are entitled to, 25% or more of the revenues or profits
of such non-Israeli corporation, whether directly or indirectly. Such exemption is not applicable to a person whose gains from selling or otherwise disposing
of the shares are deemed to be a business income. Additionally, under the United States-Israel Tax Treaty, or the treaty, the disposition of shares by a
shareholder who (i) is a U.S. resident (for purposes of the treaty), (ii) holds the shares as a capital asset, and (iii) is entitled to claim the benefits afforded to
such person by the treaty, is generally exempt from Israeli capital gains tax, subject to certain exceptions. In some instances where our shareholders may be
liable for Israeli tax on the sale of their ordinary shares, the payment of the consideration may be subject to the withholding of Israeli tax at source. If the
above exemptions from capital gains tax are not available, individuals will be subject to a 25% tax rate on real capital gains derived from the sale of shares as
long as the individual is not a substantial shareholder of the corporation issuing the shares (in which case the individual will be subject to a 30% tax rate), and
corporations will be subject to a 25% corporate tax rate. A substantial shareholder is generally a person who alone or together with such person’s relative or
another person who collaborates with such person on a permanent basis, holds, directly or indirectly, at least 10% of any of the means of control of the
corporation, including the right to vote, receive profits, nominate a director or an executive officer, receive assets upon liquidation, or order someone who
holds any of the aforesaid rights how to act, regardless of the source of such right.
Dividends paid on publicly traded shares, like our ordinary shares, to non-Israeli residents are generally subject to Israeli withholding tax at a rate of
25%, unless a different rate is provided under an applicable tax treaty, provided that a certificate from the Israeli Tax Authority allowing for a reduced
withholding tax rate is obtained in advance. Under the treaty, the maximum rate
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of tax withheld at source in Israel on dividends paid to a holder of our ordinary shares who is a U.S. resident (for purposes of the treaty) is 25%. The treaty
provides for reduced tax rates on dividends if (a) the shareholder is a U.S. corporation holding at least 10% of our issued voting power during the part of the
tax year that precedes the date of payment of the dividend and held such minimal percentage during the whole of its prior tax year, and (b) not more than 25%
of the Israeli company’s gross income consists of interest or dividends, other than dividends or interest received from subsidiary corporations or corporations
50% or more of the outstanding voting shares of which is owned by the Israeli company. The reduced treaty rate, if applicable, is 15% in the case of dividends
paid from income derived from Beneficiary or Preferred Enterprise or 12.5% otherwise. We cannot assure you that in the event we declare a dividend we will
designate the income out of which the dividend is paid in a manner that will reduce shareholders’ tax liability. If the dividend is attributable partly to income
derived from a Beneficiary or Preferred Enterprise and partly to other sources of income, the withholding rate will be a blended rate reflecting the relative
portions of the two types of income. U.S. residents who are subject to Israeli withholding tax on a dividend may be entitled to a credit or deduction for U.S.
federal income tax purposes in the amount of the taxes withheld.
Stock Performance Graph
The following stock performance graph represents the cumulative total shareholder return for the period September 12, 2014 (the date upon which
trading of our ordinary shares commenced) through December 31, 2015 for our ordinary shares, compared to the NASDAQ Composite Index and the
NASDAQ Medical Equipment Index. The returns shown in the graph below may not be indicative of future performance.

*$100 invested on 9/12/14 in ordinary shares of ReWalk or in the applicable indexes, including reinvestment of dividends.
The above stock performance graph shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act
except to the extent that we specifically request that such information be treated as soliciting material or specifically incorporates it by reference into a filing
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
As described below under Item 7. “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources,” on December 30, 2015, we entered into a loan
agreement, or the Loan Agreement, with Kreos Capital V (Expert Fund) Limited, or Kreos, pursuant to which Kreos extended a line of credit to us in the
amount of $20.0 million. In connection with the Loan Agreement we issued to Kreos a warrant, or the Warrant, to purchase up to 119,295 of our ordinary
shares at an exercise price of $9.64 per share, which represented the average of the closing prices of our ordinary shares for the thirty-day calendar period
prior to the date of the issuance of the Warrant, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Warrant. In the event we draw down any additional amounts under the
line of credit the amount of the Warrant will be increased by 5.75% of any such additional draw down.
No underwriters or underwriter discounts or commissions were involved in these issuances. We believe that the issuance of the Warrant was exempt
from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on Regulation D or Regulation S under the Securities Act or pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act regarding transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering or involving offers and sales of securities outside the United States. The recipient of the
Warrant represented its intention to acquire the Warrant and the ordinary shares underlying the Warrant for investment only and not with a view to, or in
connection with, the sale or distribution thereof. No general advertising or solicitation was used in selling the securities and the Warrant was offered only to
Kreos, a non-U.S. entity, in an offshore transaction outside the United States.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
None.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table presents our selected historical consolidated financial data, which is derived from our consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, or U.S. GAAP. The selected consolidated statements of operations
data for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements set forth in Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this annual report. The selected
consolidated statement of operations data for the year ended December 31, 2012 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2013
and 2012 has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this annual report.
You should read the following selected consolidated financial data in conjunction with Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” and it is qualified in its entirety by, reference to our consolidated financial statements and the related notes set forth in
Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this annual report. The historical results set forth below are not necessarily indicative of the results
to be expected in future periods.
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Year Ended December 31,

2015

2014

2013

2012

(in thousands, except per share data)

Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues

$

3,746

Cost of revenues

$

3,951

3,532

Expense related to settlement of BIRD Foundation grants
Gross profit (loss)

$

1,588

4,106

$

972

2,017

983

—

466

—

—

214

(621)

(429)

(11)

Operating expenses:
Research and development, net
Sales and marketing, net

5,937

8,563

2,463

1,757

13,056

7,389

4,091

2,334

6,395

3,352

1,762

1,657

25,388

19,304

8,316

5,748

(25,174)

(19,925)

(8,745)

(5,759)

1,698

3,410

(21,623)

(12,155)

General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Financial expenses, net

188

Loss before income taxes

(25,362)

Income taxes

53

45

878
(6,637)

22

21

Net loss

$

(25,415)

$

(21,668)

$

(12,177)

$

(6,658)

Net loss per ordinary share, basic and diluted(1)

$

(2.10)

$

(6.34)

$

(74.53)

$

(41.26)

Weighted average number of shares used in computing net loss per
ordinary share, basic and diluted

12,115,038

3,766,694

185,688

185,688

As of December 31,

2015

2014

2013

2012

(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

17,869

Total assets
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity

$

$

41,829

$

8,860

$

769

25,574

47,665

11,059

2,094

(73,989)

(48,574)

(26,906)

(14,729)

20,920

$

43,853

$

5,631

$

(2,264)

_____________________________
(1) Net loss per ordinary share, basic and diluted, is calculated by dividing our net loss excluding dividends accrued on our convertible preferred shares
outstanding during the period presented by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period presented. See Note 2s to our
consolidated financial statements set forth in Item 8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of this annual report.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with Item 6.“Selected Financial Data” and our consolidated financial
statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this annual report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that are based on our
management’s current expectations, estimates and projections for our business, which are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Our actual results
may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those set forth under “Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”
Overview
We are an innovative medical device that derives revenue from selling the ReWalk Personal and ReWalk Rehabilitation exoskeleton devices that
allow individuals with paraplegia the ability to stand and walk once again. Since obtaining FDA clearance in June 2014 we have continued to increase our
focus on selling the Personal device through third party payors in the U.S. and Germany, and through distributors in other parts of the world.
We expect to generate revenues from a combination of third-party payors, self-payors and institutions. While no uniform policy of coverage and
reimbursement by third-party payors currently exists for electronic exoskeleton technologies such as ReWalk, we plan to pursue various paths of
reimbursement and support fundraising efforts by institutions and clinics. In December 2015, the VA issued a national policy for the evaluation, training and
procurement of ReWalk Personal exoskeleton systems for all qualifying veterans across the United States. The VA policy, which is exclusive to ReWalk
Robotics exoskeleton systems, is the first national coverage policy in the United States for qualifying individuals who have suffered spinal cord injury.
Additionally, to date several private insurers in the United States have provided reimbursement for ReWalk in certain cases. For more information regarding
reimbursement of our products, see Item 1. “Business—Third party reimbursement and Other Funding Sources.”
We have incurred net losses and negative cash flows from operations since inception and anticipate this to continue in the near term as we continue
to focus our efforts on expanding reimbursement and developing the next generation of ReWalk devices.
Components of Our Statements of Operations
Revenues
We currently rely, and in the future will rely, on sales and rentals of our ReWalk systems and related service contracts and extended warranties for
our revenue. Our revenue is generated from a combination of third-party payors, institutions and self-payors. Payments for our products by third party payors
have been made primarily through case-by-case determinations. Third-party payors include, without limitation, private insurance plans and managed care
programs, government programs including the US Department of Veterans Affairs, Workers Compensation and Medicare and Medicaid. We expect that thirdparty payors will be an increasingly important source of revenue in the future. In December 2015, the VA issued a national policy for the evaluation, training
and procurement of ReWalk Personal exoskeleton systems for all qualifying veterans across the United States. The VA policy, which is exclusive to ReWalk
Robotics exoskeleton systems, is the first national coverage policy in the United States for qualifying individuals who have suffered spinal cord injury.
All of our ReWalk systems are covered by a two-year warranty from the date of purchase, which is included in the purchase price. We offer
customers the ability to purchase, any time during the initial warranty period, an extended warranty for up to three additional years. Both warranties cover all
elements of the ReWalk system, including the batteries, other than normal wear and tear.
Revenues are presented net of the amounts of any provision we record for expected future product returns.
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Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit (Loss)
Cost of revenue consists primarily of systems purchased from our outsourced manufacturer, Sanmina Corporation, salaries, personnel costs including
non-cash share based compensation, associated with manufacturing and inventory management, training and inspection, warranty and service costs, shipping
and handling and manufacturing startup and transition costs. Prior to the first quarter of 2014, when we completed the manufacturing transition to Sanmina,
cost of revenues also included costs of components, compensation related costs associated with manufacturing and costs to transition manufacturing to
Sanmina. Cost of revenues also includes royalties and expenses related to royalty-bearing research and development grants and sales and marketing grants.
In the future we expect our unit cost to decrease as our sales increase due to product cost improvements including economies of scale realized in
connection with larger quantities and increased efficiency.
Our gross profit (loss) and gross margin as a percentage of sales is influenced by a number of factors, including primarily the volume and price of
our products sold and fluctuations in our cost of revenues. Certain one-time expenses also impact gross margins including a 2014 expense relating to the early
settlement, at a discount, of a royalty-bearing grant to the BIRD Foundation, and the 2015 cost to transition manufacturing to the ReWalk Personal 6.0 model.
We expect gross profit (loss) as a percentage of sales will improve in the future as we increase our sales volumes and decrease the product manufacturing
costs.
Operating Expenses
Research and Development Expenses, Net
Research and development expenses, net, consist primarily of salaries, related personnel costs including share-based compensation, supplies,
materials and expenses related to product design and development, clinical studies, regulatory submissions, patent costs, sponsored research costs and other
expenses related to our product development and research programs. We expense all research and development expenses as they are incurred. We believe that
continued investment in research and development is crucial to attaining our strategic product objectives.
Research and development expenses are presented net of the amount of any grants we receive for research and development in the period in which
we receive the grant. We previously received grants and other funding from the BIRD Foundation and the Office of the Chief Scientist (OCS). Certain of
those grants require us to pay royalties on sales of ReWalk systems, which are recorded as cost of revenues. See “—Grants and Other Funding.” We may
receive additional funding from these entities or others in the future.
Sales and Marketing Expenses, Net
Our sales and marketing expenses, net, consist primarily of salaries, related personnel costs including share-based compensation for sales, marketing
and reimbursement personnel, travel, marketing and public relations activities and consulting costs. Included in the Sales and Marketing expenses are the
costs associated with our reimbursement activities in the United States and Germany. Sales and marketing expenses in 2013 are presented net of the amount
of any grants we received in such period for sales and marketing.
General and Administrative Expenses
Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, related personnel costs including share-based compensation for our
administrative, finance, and general management personnel, professional services and insurance.
Financial Income (Expenses), Net
Financial income and expenses consist of bank commissions, foreign exchange gains and losses, interest earned on investments in short term
deposits, and revaluation of the fair value of warrants to purchase our preferred shares and expenses related to our convertible loans.
Warrants to purchase our convertible preferred shares were classified as a liability on our consolidated balance sheet at fair value. The warrants were
subject to revaluation at each balance sheet date and any change in fair value is recognized as a component of financial income (expense), net, on our
consolidated statements of operations. All such warrants were exercised, expired or converted into warrants to purchase ordinary shares in connection with
our initial public offering, and therefore as of December 31, 2014 and for periods beginning with the fourth quarter of 2014, we no longer record any liability
in respect of them on our balance sheet or financial expenses in respect of them on our statement of operations.
Interest income and expenses consist of interest earned on our cash and cash equivalent balances and interest accrued on and certain other costs with
respect to any indebtedness. Foreign currency exchange changes reflect gains or losses related to transactions denominated in currencies other than the U.S.
dollar.
As described above in Item 5. “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities –
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities”, on December 30, 2015 we entered into the Loan Agreement with
39

Table of Contents
Kreos pursuant to which Kreos extended a line of credit to us in the amount of $20.0 million. In connection with the Loan Agreement we issued to Kreos the
Warrant to purchase up to 119,295 of our ordinary shares at an exercise price of $9.64.
Taxes on Income
As of December 31, 2015, we had not yet generated taxable income in Israel. As of that date, our net operating loss carry forwards for Israeli tax
purposes amounted to approximately $56.5 million. After we utilize our net operating loss carry forwards, we are eligible for certain tax benefits in Israel
under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959. Our benefit period currently ends ten years after the year in which we first have taxable
income in Israel provided that the benefit period will not extend beyond 2024.
Our taxable income generated outside of Israel will be subject to the regular corporate tax rate in the applicable jurisdictions. As a result, our
effective tax rate will be a function of the relative proportion of our taxable income that is generated in those locations compared to our overall net income.
Grants and Other Funding
BIRD Foundation and AO&P
In July 2009, we entered into a grant agreement with the BIRD Foundation and Allied Orthotics & Prosthetics Inc., or the AO&P. AO&P was the
distributor of our products at the time. We received $500,000 and AO&P received $60,000. The agreement with the BIRD Foundation required us to pay a
royalty at a rate of 5% on sales of ReWalk systems and related services. The repayment requirement is equal to the amount of the grant multiplied by an
increasing contractual percentage in an amount up to 150%.
Under the agreement AO&P is responsible for repayment of its grant. However, pursuant to the agreement, we are required to make any payments on
which AO&P defaults. As of December 31, 2015, there was no contingent liability to the BIRD Foundation.
In 2014, we recorded an expense of $466,000 as a settlement for the prepayment, at a discount, of amounts due under the agreement.
Office of the Chief Scientist
We have also received a total of $740,000 in funding from the OCS, $340,000 of which are royalty-bearing grants, while $400,000 were received in
consideration for an investment in our preferred shares. Out of the royalty-bearing grants received, we have paid royalties to the OCS in the total amount of
$50,000. We may apply to receive additional grants to support our research and development activities in 2016. The agreements with OCS require us to pay
royalties at a rate of 3% to 3.5% on sales of ReWalk systems and related services up to the total amount of funding received, linked to the dollar and bearing
interest at an annual rate of LIBOR applicable to dollar deposits. If we transfer OCS-supported technology or know-how outside of Israel, we will be liable
for additional payments to OCS depending upon the value of the transferred technology or know-how, the amount of OCS support, the time of completion of
the OCS-supported research project and other factors. As of December 31, 2015, the aggregate contingent liability to the OCS was $300,000.
Fund for Promoting Overseas Marketing
We also received a total of $100,000 in funding from the Fund for Promoting Overseas Marketing under the Israeli Ministry of Economy, which are
non-royalty-bearing grants, to support our marketing activities. We may in the future apply to receive additional grants to support our marketing activities.
Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014
Revenues
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Our revenues for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (dollars in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Personal units placed

53

43

Rehabilitation units placed

20

31

Total units placed

73

74

Personal unit revenues

$

2,766

$

2,191

Rehabilitation unit revenues
Revenues

$

980

$

1,760

$

3,746

$

3,951

Revenues decreased $205,000, or 5%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Increased sales of the
Personal devices of $575,000, or 26%, were offset by a decrease in sales of Rehabilitation devices by $780,000, or 44%. During 2015 our sales transitioned to
focus on third party payors of our Personal devices, compared to 2014 when initial demand from FDA clearance in June 2014 drove a majority of self funded
and donated Personal device sales. In the future we expect our growth to be driven by sales of our Personal device to third party payors.
Gross Profit (Loss)
Our gross profit (loss) for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015
$

Gross profit (loss)

2014
214

$

(621)

Gross profit was 6% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to gross loss of 16% of revenue for the year ended December 31,
2014. The increase of gross profit is driven by completing the transition of our manufacturing to Sanmina in the second half of 2014 and the manufacturing
economies of scale that resulted therefrom, partially offset by costs associated with the transition of manufacturing to the ReWalk Personal 6.0 in 2015.
Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2014 we incurred a one-time charge related to the early settlement, at a discount, of a royalty-bearing grant from the
BIRD Foundation in the amount of $466,000.
We expect our gross profit to increase in the future as we increase revenue and lower our unit manufacturing costs through specific cost reduction
projects and economies of scale.
Research and Development Expenses, Net
Our research and development expenses, net for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015
$

Research and development expenses, net

2014
5,937

$

8,563

Research and development expenses, net, decreased $2.6 million, or 31%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. The decrease in expenses is attributable to a one-time, non-cash, share-based compensation award to our founder at the time of our initial
public offering in 2014, which is offset by increased personnel and personnel-related costs related to regulatory, quality and research and development
activities for the year ended December 31, 2015.
We expect research and development costs to increase in the near future as we continue to devote resources to developing the next generation of our
products and increase spending on clinical studies.
41

Table of Contents
Sales and Marketing Expenses
Our sales and marketing expenses for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015
$

Sales and marketing expenses

2014

13,056

$

7,389

Sales and marketing expenses increased $5.7 million, or 77%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31,
2014. This increase is attributable to an increase in personnel and personnel-related costs and marketing and reimbursement related costs associated with
expanding our sales, marketing and reimbursement activities as we expand commercialization of the ReWalk Personal and Rehabilitation systems.
Over the near future we expect growth in our sales and an increase in our marketing expense will be driven by our continued investment in our
reimbursement efforts, as we continue to pursue insurance claims on a cases by case basis, manage claims through the review process and through external
appeals, and invest in efforts to expand coverage.
General and Administrative Expenses
Our general and administrative expenses for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015
$

General and administrative

2014
6,395

$

3,352

General and administrative expenses increased $3.0 million, or 91%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December
31, 2014. The increase in expenses is primarily attributable to personnel and personnel-related costs, professional services and other expenses related to our
being a publicly traded company for the first full consecutive year.
Financial Expenses, Net
Our financial expenses, net for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015
$

Financial expenses, net

2014
188

$

1,698

Financial expenses, net, decreased $1.5 million, or 89% for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.
This decrease is attributable mainly to the revaluation of the fair value of warrants to purchase preferred shares and the issuance of convertible preferred
shares and warrants to purchase convertible preferred shares in the year ended December 31, 2014.
Income Tax
Our income tax for 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2015
$

Income tax

Income taxes increased $8,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.
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2014
53

$
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Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013
Revenues
Our revenues for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (dollars in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014

2013

Personal units placed

43

8

Rehabilitation units placed

31

17

Total units placed

74

25

Personal unit revenues

$

2,191

$

442

Rehabilitation unit revenues

$

1,760

$

1,146

Revenues

$

3,951

$

1,588

Revenues increased $2.4 million, or 149%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. This increase is
attributable primarily to an increase in the number of ReWalk systems sold, in particular an increase in sales in the United States as a result of our June 2014
FDA clearance.
Gross Loss
Our gross loss for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014
$

Gross loss

2013
621

$

429

Gross loss was 16% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 27% of revenue, for the year ended December 31, 2013. The
decrease of gross loss as a percentage of revenue is primarily attributable to an increase in the number of ReWalk system sold and lower manufacturing cost
per unit, partially offset by costs related to the transition of manufacturing to Sanmina and a one-time expense relating to the early repayment, at a discount,
of a royalty-bearing grant to the BIRD Foundation in the amount of $466,000.
Research and Development Expenses, Net
Our research and development, net for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014
$

Research and development expenses, net

2013
8,563

$

2,463

Research and development expenses increased $6.1 million, or 248%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December
31, 2013. The increase in expenses is attributable to a one-time, non-cash, share-based compensation award to our founder and increased personnel and
personnel-related costs related to regulatory, quality and research and development activities.
Sales and Marketing Expenses, Net
Our sales and marketing expenses, net for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014
$

Sales and marketing expenses, net

2013
7,389

$

4,091

Sales and marketing expenses, net, increased $3.3 million, or 81%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31,
2013. This increase is attributable to an increase in personnel and personnel-related costs and
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marketing-related costs associated with expanding our sales and marketing activities as we expand commercialization of the ReWalk Personal and
Rehabilitation systems.
General and Administrative Expenses
Our general and administrative expenses for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014

2013
3,352

General and administrative

1,762

General and administrative expenses increased $1.6 million, or 90%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December
31, 2013. The increase in expenses is primarily attributable to personnel and personnel-related costs, professional services and other expenses related to our
being a publicly traded company.
Financial Expenses, Net
Our financial expenses, net for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014

2013
1,698

Financial expenses, net

3,410

Financial expenses, net, decreased $1.7 million, or 50%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.
This decrease is attributable mainly to a decrease in financial expenses related to the revaluation of the fair value of warrants to purchase preferred shares in
an amount of $1.9 million and a decrease in financial expenses related to convertible loans in an amount of $2.2 million, offset by an increase in financial
expenses related to issuance of convertible preferred shares in an amount of $800,000 and an increase in financial expenses related to issuance of warrants to
purchase preferred shares in an amount of $1.1 million.
Income Tax
Our income tax for 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2014
$

Income tax

2013
45

$

22

Income taxes increased $23,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 due to tax in respect of prior
years.
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Critical Accounting Policies
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of our
financial statements requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We base
our estimates, judgments and assumptions on historical experience and other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Materially
different results can occur as circumstances change and additional information becomes known. Besides the estimates identified above that are considered
critical, we make many other accounting estimates in preparing our financial statements and related disclosures. See Note 2 to our audited consolidated
financial statements presented elsewhere in this annual report for a description of the significant accounting policies that we used to prepare our consolidated
financial statements. The critical accounting policies that were impacted by the estimates, judgments and assumptions used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements are discussed below.
Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenues in accordance with ASC 605, “Revenue Recognition,” when delivery has occurred, persuasive evidence of an agreement
exists, the fee is fixed and determinable, collectability is reasonably assured and no further obligations exist. Provisions are made at the time of revenue
recognition for any applicable warranty cost expected to be incurred. The timing for revenue recognition among the various products and customers is
dependent upon satisfaction of such criteria and generally varies from either shipment or delivery to the customer depending on the specific shipping terms of
a given transaction, as stipulated in the agreement with each customer. Other than pricing terms which may differ due to the different volumes of purchases
between distributors and end-users, there are no material differences in the terms and arrangements involving direct and indirect customers. Our products sold
through agreements with distributors are non-exchangeable, non-refundable, non-returnable and without any rights of price protection or stock rotation.
Accordingly, we consider all the distributors as end-users. We generally do not grant a right of return for our products. There have been a few occasions in
which we experienced a return of our products. Therefore, we record reductions to revenue for expected future product returns based on our historical
experience.
For the majority of sales of Rehabilitation systems, we include training and consider the elements in the arrangement to be a single unit of
accounting. In accordance with ASC 605, we have concluded that the training is essential to the functionality of our systems. Therefore, we recognize revenue
for the system and training only after delivery, in accordance with the agreement delivery terms, to the customer and after the training has been completed,
once all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. For sales of Personal systems to end users, and for sales of Personal or Rehabilitation systems to
third party distributors, we do not provide training to the end user as this training is completed by the rehabilitation centers or by the distributor that have
previously completed the ReWalk Training program. In certain cases, when product arrangements are bundled with an extended warranty, the separation of
the extended warranty falls under the scope of ASC 605- 20-25-1 through 25-6, and the separate price of the extended warranty stated in the agreement is
deferred and recognized ratably over the extended warranty period. Deferred revenue includes primarily unearned amounts received in respect of service
contracts but not yet recognized as revenues.
Share-Based Compensation – Option Valuations
We account for share-based compensation in accordance with ASC No. 718, “Compensation-Stock Compensation.” ASC No. 718 requires
companies to estimate the fair value of equity-based payment awards on the date of grant using an Option-Pricing Model, or OPM. The value of the portion of
the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as an expense over the requisite service periods in our consolidated statements of operations.
We selected the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as the most appropriate method for determining the estimated fair value of options. The
resulting cost of an equity incentive award is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period of the award, which is usually the vesting period. We
recognize compensation expense over the vesting period using the straight-line method and classify these amounts in the consolidated financial statements
based on the department to which the related employee reports.
The determination of the grant date fair value of options using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model is affected by estimates and
assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. These variables include the expected volatility of our share price over the expected term
of the options, share option exercise and cancellation behaviors, risk-free interest rates and expected dividends, which are estimated as follows:
Fair Value of Our Ordinary Shares. Prior to our initial public offering, due to the absence of a public market for our ordinary shares, the fair value
for our ordinary shares for purposes of determining the exercise price for award grants was determined in good faith by our management and approved by our
board of directors. In connection with preparing our financial statements, our management considered the fair value of our ordinary shares based on a number
of objective and subjective factors consistent with the methodologies outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Aid,
Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation, referred to as the AICPA Practice Aid. We also considered independent
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third party valuations. The fair value of our ordinary shares is now determined based on the trading price on the Nasdaq Global Market.
Risk-free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield from U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with a term equivalent to the
contractual life of the options.
Dividend Yield. We have never declared or paid any cash dividends and do not presently plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Consequently, we used an expected dividend yield of zero.
Expected Volatility. We estimated the expected share price volatility for our ordinary shares by considering the historic price volatility for industry
peers based on price observations over a period equivalent to the expected term of the share option grants. Industry peers consist of public companies in the
medical device and healthcare industries. We intend to continue to consistently apply this process using the same or similar industry peers until a sufficient
amount of historical information regarding the volatility of our ordinary share price becomes available, or unless circumstances change such that the
identified companies are no longer similar to us, in which case, more suitable companies whose share prices are publicly available would be utilized in the
calculation.
Expected Term. The expected term of options granted represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding, and is
determined based on the simplified method in accordance with ASC No. 718-10-S99-1 (SAB No. 110), as adequate historical experience is not available to
provide a reasonable estimate. ASC No. 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates.
Income Taxes
As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which
we operate. We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes,” or ASC Topic 740. ASC Topic 740 prescribes the use of an
asset and liability method whereby deferred tax asset and liability account balances are determined based on the difference between book value and the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and carryforward tax losses. Deferred taxes are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. We exercise judgment and provide a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to their
estimated realizable value if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. We have established a full
valuation allowance with respect to our deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets are classified as short or long-term based on the classification of the related asset or liability for financial reporting, or according
to the expected reversal dates of the specific temporary differences, if not related to an asset or liability for financial reporting. We account for uncertain tax
positions in accordance with ASC 740 and recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements
from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
Accordingly, we report a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. We
recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense.
New and Revised Financial Accounting Standards
The JOBS Act permits emerging growth companies such as us to delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those
standards apply to private companies. We have irrevocably elected not to avail ourselves of this and, therefore, we are subject to the same new or revised
accounting standards as other public companies that are not emerging growth companies.
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” (ASU 2014-09), which creates a new Topic, Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 606. The standard is principle-based and provides a five-step model to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The
core principle of ASU 2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The effective date of ASU 2014-09 is for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. In July 2015, the FASB decided to defer by one year the effective date of this ASU and early adoption
is permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. ASU 2014-09 has not yet been adopted
We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this guidance.
On August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of
Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. ASU 2014-15 is intended to define management’s responsibility to evaluate whether
there is substantial doubt about an organization’s ability to continue as a going
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concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. The amendments in this ASU are effective for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2016, with
early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this guidance.
On July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, "Inventory (Topic 330), Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory," which changes the measurement
principle for inventory from the lower of cost or market to lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is defined as the estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. ASU 2015-11 eliminates the guidance that
entities consider replacement cost or net realizable value less an approximately normal profit margin in the subsequent measurement of inventory when cost is
determined on a first-in, first-out or average cost basis. The provisions of ASU 2015-11 are effective for public entities with fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this
guidance.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17," Income Taxes (Topic 740) Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes," which will require
that the presentation of deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. The amendments in this
update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods.
Earlier application is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an interim or annual reporting period. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting
this guidance.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Since inception, we have funded our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities and convertible notes to investors in private
placements and the sale of our ordinary shares in our initial public offering. Our September 2014 initial public offering generated $36.3 million in net
proceeds.
On December 30, 2015, we entered into the Loan Agreement with Kreos pursuant to which Kreos extended a line of credit to us in the amount of
$20.0 million. On January 4, 2016, we drew down $12.0 million and, in the event that prior to December 31, 2016 we raise $10.0 million or more in
connection with the issuance of shares of our capital stock (including debt convertible into shares of our capital stock), we will be able to draw down up to an
additional $8.0 million in separate tranches until December 31, 2016, with a minimum required drawdown of $2.0 million each. Interest is payable monthly in
arrears on any amounts drawn down at a rate of 10.75% per year from the applicable drawdown date through the date on which all principal is repaid.
Principal is repayable monthly over a period of 24 months commencing 12 months after the applicable drawdown date, which period will be extended to 36
months if we raise $20.0 million or more in connection with the issuance of shares of our capital stock (including debt convertible into shares of our capital
stock) prior to the expiration of the 24-month period. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, we paid Kreos a transaction fee equal to 1.0% of the total available
amount of the line of credit upon the execution of the agreement and will be required to pay Kreos an end of loan payment equal to 1.0% of the amount of
each tranche drawn down upon the expiration of each such tranche. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, we granted Kreos a first priority security interest over
all of our assets, including intellectual property and equity interests in its subsidiaries, subject to certain permitted security interests.
In connection with the Loan Agreement we issued to Kreos the Warrant to purchase up to 119,295 of our ordinary shares at an exercise price of
$9.64 per share, which represented the average of the closing prices of our ordinary shares for the thirty-day calendar period prior to the date of the issuance
of the Warrant, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Warrant. In the event we draw down any additional amounts under the line of credit the amount of the
Warrant will be increased by 5.75% of any such additional draw down. The Warrant is exercisable, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the earliest of (i)
December 30, 2025 or (ii) immediately prior to the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or reorganization of our company with or into, or the sale or
license of all or substantially all our assets or shares to, any other entity or person, other than a wholly-owned subsidiary of our company, excluding any
transaction in which our shareholders prior to the transaction will hold more than 50% of the voting and economic rights of the surviving entity after the
transaction.
As of December 31, 2015, we had cash and cash equivalents of $17.9 million.
We believe we have sufficient cash resources to meet our anticipated cash requirements for at least the next 12 months. Our anticipated primary uses
of cash are sales, marketing and reimbursement expenses related to market development activities and broadening third party payor coverage, and research
and development costs for enhancements to our current product and activities related to the development of the next generation of ReWalk systems.
Our future cash requirements will depend on many factors, including our rate of revenue growth, the expansion of our sales and marketing activities,
the timing and extent of our spending on research and development efforts and international expansion. If our current estimates of revenue, expenses or
capital or liquidity requirements change or are inaccurate, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities, or arrange debt financing. We cannot be
certain that additional funds will be available to us on favorable terms when required, or at all.
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Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Net cash used in operating activities increased from $15.3 million in 2014 to $25.2 million in 2015 primarily as a result of higher operating expenses
and working capital change.Net cash used in operating activities increased from $8.8 million in 2013 to $15.3 million in 2014 primarily as a result of higher
operating expenses partially offset by higher non-cash financial expenses. Our net losses in 2013 were offset primarily by non-cash expenses and also by net
changes in our working capital.
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities increased from ($1.8 million) in 2014 to $1.1 million in 2015 primarily as a result of cash
provided by disposing of a net investment in short-term deposits partially offset by cash used for the purchases of property and equipment. Net cash used in
investing activities increased from $200,000 in 2013 to $1.8 million in 2014 primarily as a result of net investment in short-term deposits. Investing activities
in these periods consisted of purchases of property and equipment and, to a lesser extent, increases and decreases in long-term deposits.
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities
We generated $137,000 from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2015, due to the exercise of stock options by our employees and
non employees. We generated $50.1 million in cash from financing activities in the year ended December 31, 2014, which reflects $36.3 million of net
proceeds from our initial public offering, and $12.8 million received in an investment in our preferred shares and warrants in our series E investment round
and $1.1 million received upon exercise of our warrants. Our financing activities in 2013 consisted of the issuance of convertible notes and the sale of
preferred shares. In 2013, we issued convertible notes in anticipation of new issuances of preferred shares. Upon our subsequent issuance of preferred shares
to holders of the convertible notes and others, the convertible notes were converted into preferred shares. As of December 31, 2013, no convertible loans
remained outstanding. Net cash provided by financing activities was $17.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.
Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2015.
Payments due by period (in dollars, in thousands)
Contractual obligations
Purchase obligations

Total

Less than 1 year

1-3 years

3-5 years

More than 5 years

958

958

-

-

-

Operating lease obligations

3,593

322

972

1,014

1,285

Total

4,551

1,280

972

1,014

1,285

Our purchase obligations consist of purchase commitments to our manufacturer, our operating leases consist of leases for our facilities and motor vehicles.
We calculated the payments due under our operating lease obligation for our Israeli ofice that were paid in NIS at a rate of exchange of NIS 3.9 : $1.00, and
the payments due under our operating lease obligation for our German subsidiary that were paid in euros at a rate of exchange of 0.9 Euro: $1:00, both of
which were the applicable exchange rates as of December 31, 2015.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements or guarantees of third-party obligations during the periods presented.
Trend Information
For information on significant known trends, please see Item 1. “Business - Overview” in this annual report.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our results of operations and cash flows are affected by fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. In 2013, most of our
revenues were denominated in U.S. dollars, approximately half of our expenses were denominated in U.S. dollars, and the remainder of our expenses were
denominated in NIS and euros. In each of 2014 and 2015, most of our revenues were denominated in U.S. dollars and the remainder of our revenues was
denominated in euros, most of our expenses were denominated in U.S. dollars and the remainder of our expenses was denominated in NIS and euros.
Accordingly, changes in the value of the NIS and Euro relative to the U.S. dollar in each of 2013, 2014 and 2015 impacted amounts recorded on our
consolidated
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statements of operations for those periods. We expect that the denominations of our revenue and expenses in 2016 will be consistent with what we
experienced in 2014 and 2015.
The following table presents information about the changes in the exchange rates of the NIS and Euro against the U.S. dollar in 2013, 2014 and
2015:
Change in Average Exchange Rate
NIS against the
U.S. Dollar (%)

Period
2013
2014
2015

Euro against the
U.S. Dollar (%)

(6.4)

(3.4)

(0.89)

(0.01)

8.24

16.44

The figures above represent the change in the average exchange rate in the given period compared to the average exchange rate in the immediately
preceding period. Negative figures represent depreciation of the U.S. dollar compared to the NIS or Euro. A 10% increase or decrease in the value of the NIS
against the U.S. dollar would have decreased or increased our net loss by approximately $800,000 million in 2015. A 10% increase or decrease in the value of
the Euro against the U.S. dollar would have decreased or increased our net loss by approximately $300,000 in 2015.
From time to time, we enter into limited hedging arrangements with financial institutions. We do not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes.
Other Market Risks
We do not believe that we have material exposure to interest rate risks or to inflationary risks.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information required hereunder is set forth under Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Consolidated Balance Sheets,
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity (Deficiency), Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Consolidated Financial Statements that are a part of this Report. Other financial information is included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements that are a part of this Report.
.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure.
As of the end of the period covered by this Report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based upon, and as of the date of, this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective such that the information required to be disclosed by us in our
SEC reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
•

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets;

•

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors;
and

•

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015. In making its assessment,
management used the criteria described in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.
Based on management’s assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,
2015 to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal controls over financial
reporting because the JOBS Act provides an exemption from such requirement as we qualify as an emerging growth company.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Effective December 3, 2015, at the annual general meeting of shareholders, our shareholders adopted an amendment to Article 23 of our articles of
association. This amendment replaces our previous quorum requirement with a quorum requirement that complies with NASDAQ rules applicable to
domestic issuers. This amendment was adopted effective December 3, 2015, in preparation for our transition to becoming a domestic filer effective January 1,
2016.
This summary of the amendment is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete copy of the amendment to the articles of association, a copy
of which is attached as Exhibit 3.1 to this annual report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference herein.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Identification of Executive Officers
The following table sets forth the name, age and position of each of our executive officers as of February 1, 2016:
Name

Age

Position

Larry Jasinski

58

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Kevin Hershberger

51

Chief Financial Officer

Ofir Koren

46

Vice President, Research & Development

Jodi Gricci

48

Vice President, Global Marketing and Training

John Hamilton
_____________________________________________________

62

Vice President, Regulatory and Clinical

Larry Jasinski has served as our Chief Executive Officer and as a member of our board since February 2012. From 2005 until 2012, Mr. Jasinski
served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Soteira, Inc., a company engaged in development and commercialization of products used to treat
individuals with vertebral compression fractures, which was acquired by Globus Medical in 2012. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. Jasinski was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Cortek, Inc., a company that developed next-generation treatments for degenerative disc disease, which was acquired by Alphatec in
2005. From 1985 until 2001, Mr. Jasinski served in multiple sales, research and development, and general management roles at Boston Scientific Corporation.
Mr. Jasinski has served on the board of directors of Massachusetts Bay Lines since 2015 and of LeMaitre Vascular, Inc. since 2003. Mr. Jasinski holds a B.Sc.
in marketing from Providence College and an MBA from the University of Bridgeport.
Kevin Hershberger has served as our Chief Financial Officer since January 2015. From 2008 to 2014, Mr. Hershberger served as Vice President,
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer at NxStage Medical Inc., a manufacturer of dialysis products. Prior to NxStage Mr. Hershberger served in multiple
finance and management roles with Boston Scientific and USG Corporation. Mr. Hershberger holds a B.S. in accounting from West Virginia University.
Ofir Koren has served as our Vice President, Research and Development since joining us in February 2013. From 2009 to 2013, Mr. Koren served as
General Manager of RuggedCOM Israel, a developer of communications equipment. From 2007 to 2009, he served as the Vice President of Research and
Development of Alvarion Technologies Ltd., an Israeli provider of wireless services. Mr. Koren holds a B.Sc. in electrical engineering from Tel Aviv
University and an MBA from the University of Herriot Watt, Scotland.
Jodi Gricci has served as our Vice President, Global Marketing and Training since June 2012. Prior to joining us, Ms. Gricci was the Managing
Director of Soteira GmbH, a medical device company based in Berlin, Germany, from November 2008 to June 2012.
John Hamilton has served as our Vice President, Regulatory and Clinical since he joined us in June 2012. From 2006 to 2012, he was Director,
Regulatory at Soteira, Inc. Prior to that, he held a variety of management and engineering positions at Smith & Nephew, Tensegra and Johnson & Johnson.
Mr. Hamilton holds a B.Sc. in chemistry from Canisius College and a M.Sc. in mechanical engineering from Northeastern University.
The remaining information required by this Item will be included in and is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive proxy statement for
our 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of our 2015 fiscal year ended
December 31, 2015, or our Proxy Statement.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item will be included in and is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS
The information required by this Item will be included in and is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this Item will be included in and is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item will be included in and is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements.
The Consolidated Financial Statements filed as part of this annual report are identified in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-1
hereto.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules.
Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the
financial statements or notes thereto.
(a)(3) Exhibits.
See accompanying Exhibit Index included after the signature page of this report for a list of the exhibits filed or furnished with or incorporated by
reference in this report.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
ReWalk Robotics Ltd.
By:

/s/ Larry Jasinski
Larry Jasinski
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 29, 2016
POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT: That the undersigned officers and directors of ReWalk Robotics Ltd. do hereby constitute and
appoint Larry Jasinski and Kevin Hershberger the lawful attorney and agent with power and authority to do any and all acts and things and to execute any and
all instruments which said attorney and agent determines may be necessary or advisable or required to enable ReWalk Robotics Ltd. to comply with the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules or regulations or requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection
with this report. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing power and authority, the powers granted include the power and authority to sign the names of
the undersigned officers and directors in the capacities indicated below to this report or amendments or supplements thereto, and each of the undersigned
hereby ratifies and confirms all that said attorneys and agents, or either of them, shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. This Power of Attorney may be
signed in several counterparts.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ Larry Jasinski

Title

Date

Director and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 29, 2016

February 29, 2016

Kevin Hershberger

Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Jeff Dykan

Chairman of the Board

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Director

February 29, 2016

Larry Jasinski
/s/ Kevin Hershberger

Jeff Dykan
/s/ Dr. John William Poduska
Dr. John William Poduska
/s/ Deborah DiSanzo
Deborah DiSanzo
/s/ Wayne B. Weisman
Wayne B. Weisman
/s/ Yasushi Ichiki
Yasushi Ichiki
/s/ Aryeh Dan
Aryeh Dan
/s/ Glenn Muir
Glenn Muir
/s/ Jay Kalish
Jay Kalish
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number

Description

3.1

Second Amended and Restated Articles of Association of the Company, as amended by the First Amendment thereto.

4.1

Specimen share certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1/A (File No. 333197344), filed with the SEC on August 20, 2014).

4.2

Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Rights Agreement, dated July 14, 2014, among the Company and the other parties named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1/A (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC
on July 16, 2014).

4.3

Fourth Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement, dated July 14, 2014, among the Company and the shareholders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1/A (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC
on July 16, 2014).

4.4

Form of Indenture relating to debt securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-3
(File No. 333-207219), filed with the SEC on October 1, 2015).

10.1

Letter of Agreement, dated July 11, 2013, between the Company and Sanmina Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014).*

10.2

Strategic Alliance Agreement, dated September 24, 2013, between the Company and Yaskawa Electric Corporation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014).

10.3

Exclusive Distribution Agreement, dated September 24, 2013, between the Company and Yaskawa Electric Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014).*

10.4

Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement, dated September 24, 2013, between the Company and Yaskawa Electric Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on
July 10, 2014).

10.5

Side Letter, dated September 30, 2013, between the Company and Yaskawa Electric Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014).

10.6

Series E Preferred Securities Purchase Agreement, dated June 26, 2014, among the Company and the parties named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1/A (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 16, 2014).

10.7

Loan Agreement, dated December 30, 2015, between the Company and Kreos Capital V (Expert Fund) Limited (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 4, 2016).

10.8

Warrant, dated December 30, 2015, between the Company and Kreos Capital V (Expert Fund) Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 4, 2016).

10.9

Form of indemnification agreement between the Company and each of its directors and executive officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1/A (File No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on August 20, 2014).

10.10

2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014). **

10.11

2012 Israeli Equity Incentive Sub Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File
No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014). **

10.12

2012 U.S. Equity Incentive Sub Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File
No. 333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014). **

10.13

2006 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014). **

10.14

2014 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1/A (File No. 333197344), filed with the SEC on August 20, 2014). **

10.15

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 17, 2014, between the Company and Kevin Hershberger.**

10.16

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of January 17, 2011, between the Company and Larry Jasinski.**

10.17

Employment Agreement, dated of June 18, 2012, between the Company and John Hamilton.**

10.18

2014 Incentive Compensation Plan Form of Option Award Agreement.**

10.19

2014 Incentive Compensation Plan Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for employees and executives.**
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10.20

2014 Incentive Compensation Plan Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for directors.**

10.21

ReWalk Robotics Ltd. Compensation Policy for Executive Officers and Non-Executive Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of
Exhibit 99.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 6-K, furnished to the SEC on November 10, 2014). **

21.1

List of subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company's registration statement on Form F-1 (File No.
333-197344), filed with the SEC on July 10, 2014).

23.1

Consent of Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer.

31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002.

31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002.

32.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.***

32.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.***

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document

101.DEF
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
__________________________
*

Portions of the agreement were omitted and a complete copy of the agreement has been provided separately to the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to the Company’s application requesting confidential treatment under Rule 406 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

**

Management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.

***

Furnished herewith.
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Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer
3 Aminadav St.
Tel-Aviv 6706703, Israel

Tel: +972-3-6232525
Fax: +972-3-5622555
ey.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ReWalk Robotics Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31,
2015, and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity (deficiency) and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2015. These financial statements are the responsibility of Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not
engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Tel-Aviv, Israel

/s/ KOST FORER GABBAY & KASIERER

February 29, 2016

KOST FORER GABBAY & KASIERER
A Member of Ernst & Young Global
F-2

Table of Contents
REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
U.S. dollars in thousands
December 31,
2015

2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Short-term deposit

17,869

$

41,829

—

1,667

Trade receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $144 and $36, respectively

2,146

1,955

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

1,227

756

Inventories

2,534

777

23,776

46,984

Total current assets
LONG-TERM ASSETS
Other long term assets

470

267

Property and equipment, net

1,328

414

Total long-term assets

1,798

681

$

Total assets
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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25,574

$

47,665
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)
December 31,
2015

2014

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Trade payables

$

Employees and payroll accruals

2,474

$

1,390

1,221

872

Deferred revenues and customers advances

199

77

Other current liabilities

449

769

—

466

4,343

3,574

Deferred revenues

171

172

Other long-term liabilities

140

66

Total long-term liabilities

311

238

4,654

3,812

Other liabilities related to settlement of BIRD Foundation grants (see Note 8c)
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital
Ordinary share of NIS 0.01 par value-Authorized: 250,000,000 shares at December 31, 2015 and 2014;
Issued and outstanding: 12,222,583 and 11,978,554 shares at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity
$

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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33

32

94,876

92,395

(73,989)

(48,574)

20,920

43,853

25,574

$

47,665
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)
Year ended
December 31
2015
Revenues

$

Cost of revenues
Expense related to settlement of BIRD Foundation grants (see Note 8c)
Gross profit (loss)

2014
3,746

$

2013
3,951

$

1,588

3,532

4,106

2,017

—

466

—

214

(621)

(429)

Operating expenses:
Research and development, net
Sales and marketing, net
General and administration
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

5,937

8,563

2,463

13,056

7,389

4,091

6,395

3,352

1,762

25,388

19,304

8,316

(25,174)

(19,925)

(8,745)

1,698

3,410

(21,623)

(12,155)

188

Financial expenses, net
Loss before income taxes

(25,362)
53

Income taxes

45

22

Net loss

$

(25,415)

$

(21,668)

$

(12,177)

Net loss per ordinary share, basic and diluted

$

(2.10)

$

(6.34)

$

(74.53)

Weighted average number of shares used in computing net loss per ordinary share, basic and
diluted
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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12,115,038

3,766,694

185,688
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share data)
Convertible
Preferred Shares (1)(3)
Number

Balance as of January 1, 2013

Ordinary Share (2)(3)

Amount

Number

Additional
paid-in
capital

Amount

$

12,465

Accumulated
deficit

$

(14,729)

Total
shareholders’
equity
(deficiency)

161,718

*)

185,688

*)

Conversion of convertible loans into Series D convertible
preferred share

$

(2,264)

81,677

*)

—

—

9,896

—

9,896

Issuance of Series D convertible preferred share, net of
issuance expense in an amount of $204

84,008

*)

—

—

9,961

—

9,961

Share-based compensation to employees and non-employees

—

—

—

—

215

—

215

Net loss

—

—

—

—

—

(12,177)

(12,177)

327,403

*)

185,688

*)

32,537

(26,906)

5,631

17,705

*)

—

—

3,825

—

Balance as of December 31, 2013
Exercise of warrants into Series C Convertible preferred
Shares
Exercise of warrants into Series D Convertible preferred
Shares

3,825

263

*)

—

—

57

—

57

4,131

*)

—

—

1,114

—

1,114

Issuance of Series E convertible preferred shares, net of
issuance expense in an amount of $212

75,695

*)

—

—

7,895

—

7,895

Conversion of convertible preferred shares into ordinary
shares

(425,197)

*)

7,838,640

22

—

—

Issuance of Series D convertible preferred shares

(22)

Balance as of
Reclassification of liability warrants to equity warrants

—

—

—

—

5,555

—

5,555

Issuance of ordinary shares in IPO, net
of issuance expenses in an amount of $5,138

—

—

3,450,000

9

36,254

—

36,263

Exercise of warrants into ordinary shares

—

—

157,618

—

—

—

—

Share-based compensation to employees and non employees

—

—

—

—

5,179

—

5,179

Issuance of ordinary share upon exercise of stock options by
employees

—

—

346,608

1

1

Net loss

—

—

—

—

—

(21,668)

(21,668)

Balance as of December 31, 2014

—

—

11,978,554

32

92,395

(48,574)

43,853

Share-based compensation to employees and non employees

—

—

—

—

2,345

—

2,345

Issuance of ordinary share upon exercise of stock options and
RSUs by employees and non employees

—

—

194,345

1

136

—

137

Cashless exercise of warrants into ordinary shares

—

—

49,684

*)

*)

—

—

Net loss

—

—

—

—

—

(25,415)

(25,415)

Balance as of December 31, 2015

—

—

12,222,583

33

94,876

(73,989)

20,920

*)
(1)
(2)
(3)

Represents an amount lower than $1.
The convertible preferred shares consist of several series, see Note 10b.
The ordinary shares consist of two series, see note 10b.
All shares amount have been restated to reflect an 18-for-1 share split, see Note 10a.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
U.S. dollars in thousands
Year ended
December 31
2015

2014

2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

$

(25,415)

$

(21,668)

$

(12,177)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Share-based compensation to employees and non employees
Deferred taxes

438

111

92

2,345

5,179

215

(61)

(60)

Financial expenses related to convertible loans

—

—

2,166

16

Revaluation of fair value of warrants to purchase convertible preferred share

—

(776)

1,111

Issuance of Warrants to venture lending

—

835

—

Issuance of Warrants to service provider

—

73

—

Financial expenses resulted from Issuance of Series D preferred shares to related party

—

1,114

—

Trade receivables, net

(191)

(1,651)

(70)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

(613)

(440)

(305)

(2,525)

196

(413)

1,084

445

10

349

308

269

(72)

272

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Inventories
Trade payables
Employees and payroll accruals
Deferred revenues and advances from customers

121

Other liabilities

(712)
—

Severance pay, net

(25,180)

Net cash used in operating activities

1,105
(18)
(15,319)

2
12
(8,800)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in long-term deposits

—

Investment in short-term deposits

—

Maturities of short-term deposits

1,667
(584)

Purchase of property and equipment

1,083

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

—
(10,000)
8,333

7
—
—

(169)

(187)

(1,836)

(180)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of convertible loans
Issuance of ordinary share upon exercise of stock options by employees and non employees

—

—

7,048

137

2

—

Issuance of Series D convertible preferred share, net

—

—

10,023

Issuance of Series E convertible preferred shares, including warrants, net

—

12,781

—

Exercise of warrants into Series C and D to convertible preferred shares

—

1,078

—
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
U.S. dollars in thousands
Year ended
December 31
2015
Issuance of ordinary shares in IPO, net of issuance expenses in an amount of $5,138
Net cash provided by financing activities

2014

2013

—

36,263

—

137

50,124

17,071

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(23,960)

32,969

8,091

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

41,829

8,860

769

$

17,869

$

41,829

$

8,860

Conversion of convertible loan into Series D convertible preferred share

$

—

$

—

$

9,896

Warrants to purchase Series D convertible preferred share issued to service provider

$

—

$

—

$

62

Exercise of warrants to purchase preferred shares into Series C and D preferred shares

$

—

$

2,804

$

—

Reclassification of liability warrants to equity warrants

$

—

$

5,555

$

—

Classification of inventory to property and equipment, net

$

768

$

—

$

—

$

163

$

—

$

123

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash flow information

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

NOTE 1:- GENERAL
a.

ReWalk Robotics Ltd. (“RRL”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Israel on June 20,
2001 and commenced operations on the same date.

b.

RRL has two wholly-owned subsidiaries: (i) ReWalk Robotics Inc. (“RRI”) incorporated under the laws of Delaware on February 15, 2012 and
(ii) Argo Medical Technologies GmbH (“AMG”) incorporated under the laws of Germany on January 14, 2013.

c.

The Company is designing, developing and commercializing the ReWalk system, an innovative exoskeleton that allow wheelchair-bound persons
with mobility impairments or other medical conditions to stand and walk once again. The ReWalk system consists of a light wearable brace support
suit which integrates motors at the joints, rechargeable batteries, an array of sensors and a computer-based control system to power knee and hip
movement. There are currently two types of products: ReWalk Personal and ReWalk Rehabilitation. ReWalk Personal is designed for everyday use
by individuals at home and in their communities, and is custom fitted for each user. ReWalk Rehabilitation is designed for the clinical rehabilitation
environment where it provides valuable exercise and therapy. It also enables individuals to evaluate their capacity for using ReWalk Personal system
in the future.

d.

The Company markets and sells its products directly to institutions and individuals and through third-party distributors. The Company sells its
products directly primarily in Germany and the United States, and primarily through distributors in other markets. In its direct markets, the Company
has established relationships with rehabilitation centers and the spinal cord injury community, and in its indirect markets, the Company’s distributors
maintain these relationships. RRI markets and sells products mainly in the United States and Canada. AMG sell the Company’s products mainly in
Germany and Europe.

e.

In September 2014, the Company completed its Initial Public Offering ("IPO") in which the Company issued and sold
3,000,000 ordinary shares at a public offering price of $12.00 per share and the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 450,000
ordinary shares at the same price per share. The total net proceeds received from the IPO were $36.3 million after deducting underwriting discounts
and commissions of $2.7 million and other offering expenses of $2.5 million (refer also to Note 10c).

f.

The Company depends on one contract manufacturer. Reliance on this vendor makes the Company vulnerable to possible capacity constraints and
reduced control over component availability, delivery schedules, manufacturing yields and costs. This vendor account for 24% and 12% of the
Company's total trade payables as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

g.

The Company has incurred losses in the amount of $25,415 during the year ended December 31, 2015. The Company has an accumulated deficit in
the total amount of $73,989 as of December 31, 2015 and negative cash flow from operating activity is in the amount of $25,180 for the year then
ended. The Company has sufficient funds to support its operations in 2016. See note 7 regarding loan received in January 2016.
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

NOTE 2:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements are prepared according to United States generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”), applied on a
consistent basis, as follows:
a.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. The Company’s management believes that the estimates, judgments and assumptions used are
reasonable based upon information available at the time they are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. On an ongoing basis, the Company’s
management evaluates estimates, including those related to inventories, fair values of share-based awards and warrants, contingent liabilities,
provision for warranty, allowance for doubtful account and sales return reserve. Such estimates are based on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities.

b.

Financial Statements in U.S. Dollars:
Most of the revenues and costs of the Company are denominated in United States dollars (“dollars”). Some of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’
revenues and costs are incurred in Euros and New Israeli Shekels (“NIS”). however, the selling prices are linked to the Company’s price list which is
determined in dollars, the budget is managed in dollars, financing activities including loans and cash investments, are made in U.S. dollars and the
Company’s management believes that the dollar is the primary currency of the economic environment in which the Company and each of its
subsidiaries operate. Thus, the dollar is the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ functional and reporting currency.
Accordingly, transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are re-measured to the functional currency in accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) No. 830, “Foreign Currency Matters” at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction or the
average exchange rate in the relevant reporting period. At the end of each reporting period, financial assets and liabilities are re-measured to the
functional currency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-financial assets and liabilities are re-measured at historical
exchange rates. Gains and losses related to re-measurement are recorded as financial income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations
as appropriate.

c.

Principles of Consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, RRI and AMG. All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

d.

Cash Equivalents:
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less, at the
date acquired.

e.

Short term deposits:
Short term bank deposits are deposits with original maturities of more than three months but less than one year from the balance sheet date.
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

f.

Inventories:
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Inventory reserves are provided to cover risks arising from slow-moving items or
technological obsolescence.
The Company periodically evaluates the quantities on hand relative to historical, current and projected sales volume. Based on this evaluation, an
impairment charge is recorded when required to write-down inventory to its market value.
Cost is determined as follows:
Raw materials, auxiliary materials and spare parts - on the basis of raw materials cost on “first in, first out” basis.
Finished products - on the basis of raw materials and manufacturing costs on an average basis.
The Company regularly evaluates the ability to realize the value of inventory based on a combination of factors, including historical usage rates and
forecasted sales according to outstanding backlogs. Purchasing requirements and alternative usage are explored within these processes to mitigate
inventory exposure. When recorded, the reserves are intended to reduce the carrying value of inventory to its net realizable value. In the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company wrote off inventory in the amount of $127, $76 and $88, respectively. If actual demand for the
Company’s products deteriorates, or market conditions are less favorable than those projected, additional inventory reserves may be required.

g.

Related party:
The Company has a substantial shareholder named Yaskawa Electric Corporation (“YEC”).
In September 2013 the Company entered into a share purchase agreement (see Note 10e) and a strategic alliance with YEC, pursuant to which YEC
has agreed to distribute the Company’s products, in addition to providing sales, marketing, service and training functions, in Japan, China (including
Hong-Kong and Macau), Taiwan, South Korea, Singapore and Thailand.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 related party receivable in the amount of $242 and $215, respectively, were included in trade receivable, net.
Revenues from YEC during the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $246, $394 and $88, respectively.

h.

Property and Equipment:
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets at the following annual rates:
%

Computer equipment

20-33 (mainly 33)

Office furniture and equipment

6 - 10 (mainly 10)

Machinery and laboratory equipment

15

Field service units

50

Leasehold improvements

Over the shorter of the lease
term or estimated useful life
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

i.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:
The Company’s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with ASC No. 360, “Property, Plant and Equipment” whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset (or asset group) may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets (or asset
group) to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be
generated by the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. During the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, no impairment losses
have been recorded.

j.

Other long term assets:
Other long term assets include long-term prepaid expenses and deposits for office and cars leasing.

k.

Revenue Recognition:
The Company and its subsidiaries generate revenues from sales of products. The Company and its subsidiaries sell their products through a direct
sales force and through distributors.
Revenues are recognized in accordance with ASC No. 605, “Revenue Recognition” (“ASC 605”), when delivery has occurred, persuasive evidence
of an agreement exists, the fee is fixed and determinable, collectability is reasonably assured and no further obligations exist. Provisions are made at
the time of revenue recognition for any applicable warranty cost expected to be incurred.
The timing for revenue recognition amongst the various products and customers is dependent upon satisfaction of such criteria and generally varies
from either shipment or delivery to the customer depending on the specific shipping terms of a given transaction, as stipulated in the agreement with
each customer.
Other than pricing terms which may differ due to the different volumes of purchases between distributors and end-users, there are no material
differences in the terms and arrangements involving direct and indirect customers.
The Company’s products sold through agreements with distributors are non-exchangeable, non-refundable, non-returnable and without any rights of
price protection or share rotation. Accordingly, the Company considers all the distributors to be end-users.
The Company generally does not grant a right of return for its products. There have been a few occasions in which the Company experienced a
return of its products. Therefore, the Company records reductions to revenue for expected future product returns based on the Company’s historical
experience.
For systems sold to rehabilitation facilities the Company includes training and considers the elements in the arrangement to be a single unit of
accounting. In accordance with ASC 605, the Company has concluded that the training is essential to the functionality of the Company’s systems.
Therefore the Company recognizes revenue for the system and training only after delivery in accordance with the agreement delivery terms to the
customer and after the training has been completed, once all other revenue recognition criteria have been met.
For sales of Personal systems to end users, and for sales of Personal or Rehabilitation systems to third party distributors, the Company does not
provide training to the end user as this training is completed by the Rehabilitation centers or by the distributor that have previously completed the
ReWalk Training program. Therefore the Company recognizes revenue in such sales upon delivery, assuming the other conditions for revenue
recognition have been met.
In certain cases, when product arrangements are bundled with extended warranty, the separation of the extended warranty falls under the scope of
ASC 605-20-25-1 through 25-6, and the separately price of the extended warranty stated in the agreement is deferred and recognized ratably over the
extended warranty period.
Deferred revenue includes primarily unearned amounts received in respect of service contracts but not yet recognized as revenues.
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REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

l.

Accounting for Share-Based Compensation:
The Company accounts for share-based compensation in accordance with ASC No. 718, “Compensation-Stock Compensation” (“ASC No. 718”).
ASC No. 718 requires companies to estimate the fair value of equity-based payment awards on the date of grant using an Option-Pricing Model
(“OPM”). The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as an expense over the requisite service periods in
the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
The Company recognizes compensation expenses for the value of its awards granted based on the straight-line method over the requisite service
period of each of the awards, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC No. 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Estimated forfeitures are based on actual historical pre-vesting
forfeitures.
The Company selected the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as the most appropriate fair value method for its share-option awards. The
option-pricing model requires a number of assumptions, of which the most significant are the fair market value of the underlying ordinary share,
expected share price volatility and the expected option term. Expected volatility was calculated based upon certain peer companies that the Company
considered to be comparable. The expected option term represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The
expected option term is determined based on the simplified method in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110, as adequate historical
experience is not available to provide a reasonable estimate. The simplified method will continue to apply until enough historical experience is
available to provide a reasonable estimate of the expected term. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield from U.S. treasury bonds with an
equivalent term. The Company has historically not paid dividends and has no foreseeable plans to pay dividends.
The fair value of the ordinary shares underlying the share options has historically been determined by the Company’s board of directors. As prior to
the Company’s IPO, there had been no public market for the Company’s ordinary shares, the board of directors determined fair value of the ordinary
shares at the time of grant of the option by considering a number of objective and subjective factors including data from other comparable
companies, sales of ordinary shares and convertible preferred share to unrelated third parties, operating and financial performance, the lack of
liquidity of capital share and general and industry specific economic outlook, among other factors.
Since the distributions and participation rights to security holders are different in a sale/liquidation scenario versus an IPO, the valuation of the
Company was performed using a weighted average of the values derived from the following scenarios: 1) discounted cash flow (DCF) model, and
the OPM method was then employed to allocate the enterprise value amongst the Company’s various equity classes, deriving a fully marketable
value per share for the ordinary share; 2) IPO scenario; and 3) Implied value approach. Before the per share value was determined, a discount for
lack of marketability and a voting right differential was applied, as applicable, to the ordinary shares and the founders shares.
Following the IPO in September 2014, the fair value of ordinary shares is observable as they are publicly traded.
The fair value of Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) granted is determined based on the price of the Company's ordinary shares on the date of grant.
The fair value for options granted in 2015, 2014 and 2013 is estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model with
the following assumptions:
December 31,

Expected volatility
Risk-free rate
Dividend yield
Expected term (in years)
Share price
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2015

2014

2013

60%

60%-70%

70%-75%

1.60%-1.95%

1.74%-1.95%

0.95%-2.08%

—%

—%

—%

5.73 - 6.11

5.81 - 6.11

6.02 - 6.08

$7.30 - $20.97

$1.49 - $20.77

$3.62 - $5.80
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The Company accounts for options granted to consultants and other service providers under ASC No. 718 and ASC No. 505, “Equity-based
payments to non-employees.” The fair value of these options was estimated using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. In 2015, 2014 and
2013 the non-cash compensation expenses related to nonemployees were immaterial.
The non-cash compensation expenses related to employees and non employees for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
$2,345, $5,179 and $215, respectively.
m. Research and Development Costs:
Research and development costs are charged to the consolidated statement of operations as incurred and are presented net of the amount of any
grants we receive for research and development in the period in which we receive the grant.
n.

Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC No. 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC No. 740”), using the liability method whereby
deferred tax assets and liability account balances are determined based on the differences between financial reporting and the tax basis for assets and
liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company
provides a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts that are more likely-than-not to be realized.
ASC No. 740 contains a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring a liability for uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that,
on an evaluation of the technical merits, the tax position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes.
The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. The
Company accrues interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in its taxes on income.

o.

Warranty:
The Company provides a two-year standard warranty for its products. The Company records a provision for the estimated cost to repair or replace
products under warranty at the time of sale. Factors that affect the Company’s warranty reserve include the number of units sold, historical and
anticipated rates of warranty repairs and the cost per repair.
The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the provision for warranty amounted to $502 and $387, respectively, and was presented under other liabilities
and long-term liabilities.

p.

Concentrations of Credit Risks:
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, cash equivalents and trade
receivables.
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents are deposited in major banks in Israel, the United States and Germany. Such deposits in the United States
may be in excess of insured limits and are not insured in other jurisdictions. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with diverse
financial institutions and monitors the amount of credit exposure to each financial institution.
The Company’s trade receivables are geographically diversified and derived primarily from sales to customers in various countries, mainly in the
United States and Europe. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited by credit limits, ongoing credit evaluation and
account monitoring procedures. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its distributors based upon a specific review of all significant
outstanding invoices. The Company writes off receivables when they are deemed uncollectible and having exhausted all collection efforts. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 trade receivables are presented net of $144 and $36 allowance for doubtful accounts, respectively.
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q.

Accrued Severance Pay:
Pursuant to Israel’s Severance Pay Law, Israeli employees are entitled to severance pay equal to one month’s salary for each year of employment, or
a portion thereof. All of the employees of the RRL elected to be included under section 14 of the Severance Pay Law, 1963 (“section 14”).
According to this section, these employees are entitled only to monthly deposits, at a rate of 8.33% of their monthly salary, made in their name with
insurance companies. Payments in accordance with section 14 release the Company from any future severance payments (under the above Israeli
Severance Pay Law) in respect of those employees; therefore, related assets and liabilities are not presented in the balance sheet.
Total Company expenses related to severance pay amounted to $202, $170 and $126 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

r.

Fair Value Measurements:
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The Company uses a
three-tier fair value hierarchy to classify and disclose all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, as well as assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, in periods subsequent to their initial measurement. The hierarchy requires the Company to
use observable inputs when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value. If a financial instrument uses
inputs that fall in different levels of the hierarchy, the instrument will be categorized based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value calculation. The three-tiers are defined as follows:
• Level 1. Observable inputs based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2. Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3. Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data requiring the Company to develop its own assumptions.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term deposits, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their fair value due to the
short-term maturity of such instruments.

s.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Share:
Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of shares of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.
Diluted net loss per share is computed by giving effect to all potential shares of ordinary shares, including stock options, convertible preferred share
warrants, to the extent dilutive, all in accordance with ASC No. 260, “Earning Per Share”.
The following table sets forth the computation of the Company’s basic and diluted net loss per ordinary share:
Year ended
December 31
2015

Net loss

$

Convertible preferred shares dividend

2014

(25,415)

$

—

Net loss attributable to ordinary shares

$

(2.10)

$

(13,840)

3,766,694
$

(6.34)

(12,177)
(1,663)

(23,897)

12,115,038

Net loss per ordinary share, basic and diluted

(21,668)
(2,229)

(25,415)

Shares used in computing net loss per ordinary shares, basic and diluted

2013

185,688
$

(74.53)

Basic and diluted net loss per share was the same for each period presented as the inclusion of all potential shares of ordinary shares outstanding
would have been anti-dilutive.
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t.

Contingent liabilities
The Company accounts for its contingent liabilities in accordance with ASC No. 450, “Contingencies”. A provision is recorded when it is both
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
With respect to legal matters, provisions are reviewed and adjusted to reflect the impact of negotiations, estimated settlements, legal rulings, advice
of legal counsel and other information and events pertaining to a particular matter.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company is not a party to any ligation that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial position, results of operations or cash flows (see Note 8e).

u.

Government grants
Government grants received by the Company relating to categories of operating expenditures are credited to the consolidated statements of
operations during the period in which the expenditure to which they relate is charged. Royalty and non-royalty-bearing grants from the Israeli Office
of the Chief Scientist (“OCS”), from the Israel-U.S. Binational Industrial Research and Development Foundation (“BIRD”) and from the Israeli
Fund for Promoting Overseas Marketing for funding certain approved research and development projects and sales and marketing activities are
recognized at the time when the Company is entitled to such grants, on the basis of the related costs incurred, and are included as a deduction from
research and development or sales and marketing expenses (see Note 8c).
The Company recorded non-royalty-bearing grants in the amount of $0, $0 and $101 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, as part of the sales and marketing expenses.
The Company recorded royalty-bearing grants in the amount of $214, $76 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, as part of the research and development expenses.
The Company recorded royalty expenses in the amount of $0, $204 and $136 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
as part of the cost of revenues.
On December 2014, the Company recorded a liability of $466 as a settlement for the prepayment of amounts due under its agreement with BIRD,
representing the full balance of the contingent liability related to grants received (including interest), which was paid during 2015 (see Note 8c).

v.

New Accounting Pronouncements
i.

Revenue recognition:
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. ASU 2014-09 requires an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. Insurance contracts do not fall within the scope of this ASU. The effective date of ASU 2014-09 is for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2017. In July 2015, the FASB decided to defer by one year the effective date of this ASU and early
adoption is permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The ASU has not yet been adopted and the
Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

ii. Going Concern:
On August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure
of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern.” The ASU is intended to define management’s responsibility
to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related
footnote disclosures. The amendments in this ASU are effective for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact the adoption of ASU 2014-15 will have on its ongoing financial
reporting.
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iii. Inventory:
On July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330), Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which changes the
measurement principle for inventory from the lower of cost or market to lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is
defined as the “estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and
transportation.” ASU 2015-11 eliminates the guidance that entities consider replacement cost or net realizable value less an
approximately normal profit margin in the subsequent measurement of inventory when cost is determined on a first-in, first-out or
average cost basis. The provisions of ASU 2015-11 are effective for public entities with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the
adoption of ASU 2015-11 on its consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations, and consolidated cash flows
iv.

Deferred tax:
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic740) Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which will
require that the presentation of deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position.
The amendments in this update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods within those annual periods. Earlier application is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an interim or annual
reporting period. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2015-17 on its consolidated financial
statements.

NOTE 3:- PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
December 31,
2015
Government institutions

$

Prepaid expenses

2014
209

$

298

316

227

43

56

Deferred tax

147

86

Other assets

512

89

Deposit

$
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NOTE 4:- INVENTORIES
December 31,
2015
Raw materials

$

2014
450

Finished products

$

41

2,084
$

2,534

736
$

777

NOTE 5:- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
December 31,
2015

2014

Cost:
Computer equipment

$

656

$

338

Office furniture and equipment

286

144

Machinery and laboratory equipment

471

235

Field service units

575

—

Leasehold improvements

113

32

2,101

749

December 31,
2015
Accumulated depreciation

2014
773

$

Property and equipment, net

1,328

335
$

414

Depreciation expenses amounted to $438, $111 and $92 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
NOTE 6:- SHORT TERM CONVERTIBLE LOANS
In December 2012, certain of the Company’s existing shareholders signed an agreement to make several convertible loans in an aggregate principal amount of
$1.5 million with such loans bearing annual interest of 7%. The convertible loans were made during December 2012 and January 2013. Under the loan
agreements, the convertible loan amount and accrued interest was to be repaid by the Company to each lender (in proportion to its portion of the principal
amount), on December 31, 2013, unless earlier there was a closing of an investment by any investor(s), the convertible loan amount was to be automatically
converted into ordinary shares of the Company at a price per share equal to the price per share paid by the investors, reduced by a percentage equal to 0.167%
multiplied by the number of days elapsed from the date of the disbursement of the principal amount by the applicable lender until the conversion date. In no
event could the discount exceed 20%.
During the period between April and June 2013, a number of the Company’s shareholders and a new investor made additional convertible loans (with the
same terms and conditions as the above mentioned convertible loans) in an aggregate principal amount of $6.23 million.
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The Company recorded the convertible loans as a liability in accordance with ASC No. 480, “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity” (“ASC No. 480”) as the
predominant scenario of the convertible loans embodies an obligation to issue variable number of shares that at inception represents a fixed monitory amount.
The fair value is measured at each respective balance sheet date.
Upon the closing of the Series D Transaction, on September 24, 2013, all the above convertible loans were converted into 81,677 convertible preferred D
shares at a price per share of $96.8-$103 (which reflects 14.9%-20% discount rate) in accordance with the series D convertible preferred share purchase
agreement. The total amount of convertible loans converted (including accrued interest and revaluation financial expenses) was $9,896, which was classified
to additional paid-in capital in shareholders’ equity (deficiency).
Financial expenses related to convertible loans amounted to $0, $0 and $2,166 in the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (there
were no convertible loans in 2015 and 2014).
Following the conversion of its existing convertible loans as of series D transaction, no additional loans are obtained by the Company.
NOTE 7:- LOAN AND WARRANTS TO PURCHASE ORDINARY SHARES
On December 30, 2015 (the "Agreement Date"), the Company entered into a loan facility agreement (the "Loan Agreement") with Kreos Capital V (Expert
Fund) Limited (“Kreos”),pursuant to which Kreos agreed to loan the Company up to $20,000. On January 4, 2016, the Company received a total of $12,000,
less $415 loan transaction fees and less $660 of advance payment (the "Loan"). The Loan is for a period of 36 months and bears annual interest of 10.75%,
which is to be paid monthly. The principal of the loan is to be paid in 24 monthly payments, beginning in January 2017, except for the last loan payment
which was paid in advance on the Agreement Date, but will be extended to 36 months if the Company raises $20,000 or more in connection with the issuance
of shares of its capital stock (including debt convertible into shares of our capital stock) prior to the expiration of the 24-months period.
Repayment of the Loan and payment of all other amounts owed to the Lender is to be made in dollars.
Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Company granted Kreos a first priority security interest over all of its assets, including intellectual property and equity
interests in its subsidiaries, subject to certain permitted security interests.
In connection with the Loan Agreement, on the agreement date, the Company granted Kreos 119,295 warrants (see note 10h) to purchase ordinary shares at
an exercise price of $9.64 per share (the "Warrants"). The warrants are exercisable, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the earliest of (i) December 30,
2025 or (ii) immediately prior to the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or reorganization of the Company with or into, or the sale or license of all or
substantially all the assets or shares of the Company to, any other entity or person, other than a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, excluding any
transaction in which shareholders of the Company prior to the transaction will hold more than 50% of the voting and economic rights of the surviving entity
after the transaction.
On the Agreement Date, the Company calculated the value of its freestanding Warrants to purchase its ordinary shares in the amount of $1,161 (net of $42
issuance expenses) , by using the relative fair value method and utilizing an option pricing method.
The following assumptions were used to estimate the value of the Company's warrants to purchase ordinary shares:
December 30, 2015
Expected volatility

60%

Risk-free rate

2.52%

Dividend yield

—%

Expected term (in years)

10
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NOTE 8:- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a.

Purchase commitment
The Company has contractual obligations to purchase goods from its contract manufacturer. Purchase obligations do not include contracts that may
be canceled without penalty. As of December 31, 2015, non-cancelable outstanding obligations amounted to approximately $958.

b.

Lease commitment: the Company operates from leased facilities in Israel, the Unites States and Germany. These leases expire between 2016 and
2025.
The future minimum lease commitments of the Company and its subsidiaries under various non-cancelable operating lease agreements in respect of
premises, that are in effect as of December 31, 2015, are as follows:

2016

322

2017

474

2018

498

2019

507

2020 and Thereafter

1,792

Total

$

3,593

Total rent expenses for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $260, $168 and $156, respectively.
RRL and AMG lease cars for their employees under cancelable operating lease agreements expiring at various dates in 2016-2018.
RRL and AMG have an option to be released from these agreements, which may result in penalties in a maximum amount of approximately $56 as
of December 31, 2015.
c.

Royalties:
The Company’s research and development efforts are financed, in part, through funding from the OCS and BIRD. Since the Company’s inception
through December 31, 2015, the Company received funding from the OCS and BIRD in the total amount of $740 and $500, respectively. Out of the
$740 in funding from the OCS, a total amount of $340 were royalty bearing grants (as of December 31, 2015, the Company paid royalties to the
OCS in the total amount of $50), while a total amount of $400 was received in consideration of 5,237 convertible preferred A shares. The Company
is obligated to pay royalties to the OCS, amounting to 3%-3.5% of the sales of the products and other related revenues generated from such projects,
up to 100% of the grants received. The royalty payment obligations also bear interest at the LIBOR rate. The obligation to pay these royalties is
contingent on actual sales of the applicable products and in the absence of such sales, no payment is required. The Company was obligated to pay
royalties to the BIRD amounting to 5% of the sales of the products and other related revenues generated from such projects, up to 150% of the grants
received. During December 2014, the Company recorded a liability of $466 as a settlement for the prepayment of amounts due under the agreement
with BIRD, representing the full balance of the contingent liability related to grants received (including interest), which was paid in January 2015.
Upon making this payment, the Company eliminated all future royalty obligations related to its anticipated revenues. These expenses are included in
the cost of revenues in the consolidated statement of operations.
For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the royalties expenses recorded in cost of revenues amounted to $0, $204 and $136
respectively.
As of December 31, 2015, the contingent liability to the OCS amounted to $290, and there was no contingent liability to the BIRD. The Israeli
Research and Development Law provides that know-how developed under an approved research and development program may not be transferred to
third parties without the approval of the OCS. Such approval is not required for the sale or export of any products resulting from such research or
development. The OCS,
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under special circumstances, may approve the transfer of OCS-funded know-how outside Israel, in the following cases:
(a) the grant recipient pays to the OCS a portion of the sale price paid in consideration for such OCS-funded know-how or in consideration for the
sale of the grant recipient itself, as the case may be, which portion will not exceed six times the amount of the grants received plus interest (or three
times the amount of the grant received plus interest, in the event that the recipient of the know-how has committed to retain the R&D activities of the
grant recipient in Israel after the transfer); (b) the grant recipient receives know-how from a third party in exchange for its OCS-funded know-how;
(c) such transfer of OCS-funded know-how arises in connection with certain types of cooperation in research and development activities; or (d) If
such transfer of know-how arises in connection with a liquidation by reason of insolvency or receivership of the grant recipient.
d. Liens
In connection with the Loan Agreement, the Company granted Kreos a first priority security interest over all of its assets, including intellectual
property and equity interests in its subsidiaries, subject to certain permitted security interests.
The Company's long-term other assets in the amount of $242 have been pledged as security in respect of a guarantee granted to a third party on April
29, 2015. Such deposit cannot be pledged to others or withdrawn without the consent of such third party.
e.

Legal Claims:
In September 2013, a claim was filed against the Company and the University of Utah Hospital and Medical Center (UUHMC) in the Third Judicial
District Court for the County of Salt Lake, State of Utah, in connection with allegations made by a ReWalk user who was injured while using
ReWalk. The plaintiff claimed that in April 2013 the ReWalk system malfunctioned while transitioning from sitting to standing mode and sought
damages totaling $2,900 from the Company and UUHMC for an injury she alleged was caused by such malfunction. In April 2015, the case was
settled with the plaintiff. The settlement did not have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

NOTE 9:- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis include warrants for convertible preferred share. The warrants were classified as a liability in
accordance with ASC No. 480 (see Note 11). These warrants were classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy since some of the inputs used in the
valuation were determined based on management’s assumptions. The fair value of the warrants on the issuance date and on subsequent reporting dates was
determined using OPM utilizing the assumptions noted below. The fair value of the underlying preferred share price was determined by the board of directors
considering, among others, third party valuations. The valuation of the Company was performed using a DCF model. The OPM method was then employed to
allocate the enterprise value among the Company’s various equity classes, deriving a fully marketable value per share for the preferred share. The expected
terms of the warrants were based on the remaining contractual expiration period. The expected share price volatility for the shares was determined by
examining the historical volatilities of a group of the Company’s industry peers as there is no trading history of the Company’s shares. The risk-free interest
rate was calculated using the average of the published interest rates for U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with maturities that approximate the expected term.
The dividend yield assumption was zero as there is no history of dividend payments.
The following assumptions were used to estimate the value of the warrants to purchase series C convertible preferred shares:
September 17, 2014
(conversion date)

December 31, 2013

Expected volatility

70%

70%

Risk-free rate

0.1%

0.1%

Dividend yield

—%

—%

Expected term (in years)

0
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The following assumptions were used to estimate the value of the warrants to purchase series D convertible preferred shares:

September 11,
2014 (IPO date)

September 24,
2013
(issuance date)

December 31,
2013

Expected volatility

70%

70%

70%

Risk-free rate

1.7%

0.1%

0.2%

Dividend yield

—%

—%

—%

Expected term (in years)

4.80

1.25

1.50

The following assumptions were used to estimate the value of the warrants to purchase series E convertible preferred shares:
September 11,
2014 (IPO date)

June 26,
2014 (issuance date)

Expected volatility

70%

70%

Risk-free rate

1.4%

0.1%

Dividend yield

—%

Expected term (in years)

—%

3.80

4.00

The change in the fair value of warrants to purchase convertible preferred shares liability is summarized below:
Issuance of
warrants to
purchase
preferred
share

Balance at
beginning of
period

December 31, 2014

$

3,341

$

Exercise of
warrants to
purchase
preferred
share

5,794

$

December 31, 2013
$
2,168
$
62
NOTE 10:- SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

$

Change in fair
value

(2,804)
—

$
$

(776)
1,111

Conversion to
Warrants to
purchase ordinary
share following IPO

$
$

Balance at
end of
period

(5,555)
—

$

3,341

a.

All ordinary shares, options, exercise prices and loss per share amounts have been adjusted retroactively for all periods presented in these
financial statements, to reflect the 17-to-one bonus share issuance (equivalent to an 18-for-1 share split) effected on August 26, 2014.

b.

Composition of convertible preferred share capital and ordinary shares:
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2015

Authorized

Issued and outstanding

December 31,

December 31,

2014

2013

2015

2014

2013

Number of shares
Preferred shares of NIS 0.01 par value:
Series A preferred shares

—

—

11,000

—

—

10,677

Series B preferred shares

—

—

100,000

—

—

63,880

Series C-1 preferred shares

—

—

200,000

—

—

67,486

Series C-2 preferred shares

—

—

40,000

—

—

19,675

Series D-1 preferred shares

—

—

100,000

—

—

84,008

Series D-2 preferred shares

—

—

69,387

—

—

69,387

Series D-3 preferred shares

—

—

10,323

—

—

10,323

Series D-4 preferred shares

—

—

1,967

—

—

1,967

Series E preferred shares

—

—

—

—

—

—

Total preferred shares

—

—

532,677

—

—

327,403

Ordinary shares of NIS 0.01 par value:
Ordinary shares

250,000,000

250,000,000

—

12,222,583

11,978,554

—

Ordinary A shares

—

—

168,613,056

—

—

180,000

Ordinary B non-voting shares

—

—

1,800,000

—

—

5,688

250,000,000

250,000,000

170,413,056

12,222,583

11,978,554

185,688

Total ordinary shares
c.

Initial Public Offering:
In September 2014, the Company completed its IPO in which the Company issued and sold 3,000,000 ordinary shares at a public offering
price of $12.00 per share. During the IPO the underwriters received an option to purchase 450,000 ordinary shares of the company at the
price of $12.00 for a period of 30 days following the IPO date.
During September 2014, the underwriters exercised their option to purchase additional 450,000 ordinary shares at the same IPO price per
share.
The total net proceeds received from the IPO were $36.3 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $2.7 million
and other offering expenses of $2.5 million.

d.

1. Ordinary shares:
The ordinary shares of the Company confer on the holders thereof voting rights, rights to receive dividends and rights to participate in
distribution of assets upon liquidation after any outstanding preferred shares receive their preference amount. The ordinary A shares and
ordinary B shares were restated as ordinary shares in accordance with the following:
On August 26, 2014, in a duly convened extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company, the shareholders (i) duly
approved an amendment of the Company's Articles of Association which subsequently entered effect upon the Company's initial public
offering, under which the Company's authorized share capital was increased and restated as NIS 2,500,000 divided into 250,000,000
ordinary shares, par value NIS 0.01, and (ii) ratified an updated capitalization table of the Company, which represented each shareholder's
holdings in the Company following the aforementioned restatement of the Company's authorized share capital.
F-23

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Convertible preferred shares:
Following the Company's IPO, as described in Note 9c above, all of the Company's convertible preferred shares were automatically
converted into 7,838,640 ordinary shares in a conversion ratio of 1-to-1
e.

Preferred Share purchase agreements:
The Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement dated as of September 24, 2013 (the “Series D SPA”) with several existing
shareholders and with a new investor, YEC, for the private placement of Series D-1, Series D-2, Series D-3 and Series D-4 convertible
preferred shares in connection with the conversion of previously-issued convertible loans. Pursuant to the Series D SPA, the Company
issued a total of 84,008 Series D-1 convertible preferred shares for an aggregate purchase price of $9,961 (net of $204 issuance expenses)
and a total of 81,677 Series D-2, Series D-3 and Series D-4 convertible preferred shares, converting convertible loans of $9,896 (including
financial expenses), including interest. The price per share was $121.00 per Series D-1 convertible preferred share, $96.80 per Series D-2
convertible preferred share, $101.197 per Series D-3 convertible preferred share and $103.016 per Series D-4 convertible preferred share.
The Series D SPA provides that YEC shall be issued additional shares for no consideration on certain specified dates, beginning on April 1,
2014 and ending on September 1, 2014, if the following two events have not occurred as of such date: (i) receipt of FDA clearance to
market ReWalk Personal in the United States and (ii) reimbursement by any German insurance provider of the full cost of at least one
ReWalk Personal. An aggregate of 8,264 shares are issuable pursuant to the Series D SPA in connection with the failure to achieve both of
these events (see also Note 14). The fair value of those warrants as of the issuance date and as of December 31, 2013 was immaterial.
Pursuant to the Series D SPA, the Company issued 1,377 convertible preferred D Shares to YEC on each of April 1, May 1 and June 1,
2014 (a total of 4,131 convertible preferred D shares). Following the issuance of these shares, during the year ended December 31, 2014,
the Company recorded their fair value in the amount of $1,114 in its consolidated statement of operations under financial expenses, net.
The fair value of the Series D convertible preferred shares issued to YEC on each of these dates was determined by the board of directors of
the Company considering, among others, third party valuations, and was classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy since some of the
inputs used in the valuation were determined based on management’s assumptions. The valuation of the Company was performed using a
DCF model. The OPM method was then employed to allocate the enterprise value among the Company’s various equity classes, deriving a
fully marketable value per share for the preferred share. The expected share price volatility for the shares was determined by examining the
historical volatilities of a group of the Company’s industry peers as there is no trading history of the Company’s shares. The risk-free
interest rate was calculated using the average of the published interest rates for U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with maturities that
approximate the expected term. The dividend yield assumption was zero as there is no history of dividend payments.
The following assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the Series D convertible preferred shares issued to YEC on each of these
dates: expected volatility- 70%; Risk-free rate- 0.1% and Dividend yield- 0%.
As of June 30, 2014, YEC agreed that both of the above events had been satisfied and as such commencing July 1, 2014 no convertible
preferred D Shares will be issued to YEC.
On June 26, 2014, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Gabriel Capital Fund (US), L.P. and affiliated entities,
and the other parties named therein (the “Series E SPA”). The transaction closed in July 2014. Pursuant to the Series E SPA, the Company
issued an aggregate of 75,695 of its preferred E Shares and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 37,850 preferred E Shares (see Note 11d)
to Gabriel and the other investors named in the Series E SPA for an aggregate purchase price in cash of $13.0 million. The preferred E
Shares were issued at a price of $171.74 per share.
The Company’s articles of association in effect prior to the IPO provided for antidilution protections to certain holders of convertible
preferred shares based on the price to the public in the IPO. As a result, the conversion price of certain holders of convertible preferred
shares was reduced, and the 75,695 Series E convertible preferred shares are convertible into 1,547,604 ordinary shares.

f.

Share option plans:
On March 30, 2012, the Company’s board of directors adopted the ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan.
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On August 19, 2014, the Company’s board of directors adopted the ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2014 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "Plan").
The Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, cash-based awards,
other stock-based awards and dividend equivalents to the Company’s and its affiliates’ respective employees, non-employee directors and
consultants.
Starting in 2014, the Company granted to directors and the chief executive officer of the Company RSUs under this Plan. An RSU award is
an agreement to issue shares of our common stock at the time the award is vested.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had reserved 420,469 and 25,056 shares of ordinary shares, respectively, available for
issuance to employees, directors, officers and non-employees of the Company.
The share reserve pool will increase on January 1 of each calendar year during the term of the 2014 Plan in an amount equal to the lesser of:
(x) 972,000, (y) 4% of the total number of shares outstanding on December 31 of the immediately preceding calendar year, and (z) an
amount determined by the Company's board of directors.
The options generally vest over four years. Any option that is forfeited or canceled before expiration becomes available for future grants
under the Plan.
A summary of employee share options and RSUs activity during the year ended 2015 is as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Number
Options and RSUs outstanding at the beginning of the year

Average
remaining
contractual
life (years) (1)

Average
exercise
price

1,350,846

3.80

709,105

9.26

43,466

—

Options granted
RSUs granted
Options exercised

(158,101)

$

0.96

RSUs vested

(19,586)

$

—

RSUs forfeited

(13,970)

$

—

Options forfeited

(58,391)

$

3.37

Aggregate
intrinsic
value (in
thousands)

8.27

20,373

Options and RSUs outstanding at the end of the year

1,853,369

6.12

8.37

17,048

Options and RSUs vested and expected to vest

1,807,787

6.09

8.33

16,699

649,156

2.65

7.01

7,961

Options exercisable at the end of the year

(1) Calculation of weighted average remaining contractual term does not include the RSUs that were granted, which have an indefinite
contractual term.
The weighted average grant date fair values of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $5.36, $4.74 and
$2.03 respectively. The weighted average grant date fair values of RSUs granted during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $20.77 and $20.97
respectively.
The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total intrinsic value that would have been received by the option holders had all
option holders, which hold options with positive intrinsic value, exercised their options on the last date of the exercise period. Total intrinsic value of options
exercised for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $2,135 and $38 respectively, no options was exercised during the year ended December 31,
2013. As of December 31, 2015, there were $7,864 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the 2012, and 2014 Plan. This cost is expected to be recognized over a period of approximately 3 years.
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The options and RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2015 have been separated into ranges of exercise price as follows:
Weighted
average
remaining
contractual
life (years) (1)

Range of exercise price

Options Outstanding as of
December 31, 2015

—(including options and
RSUs)

95,599

3.95

$0.82

34,377

$1.32

400,990

$1.48

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual
life (years) (1)

Options exercisable as of
December 31, 2015
7,338

3.95

5.04

34,377

5.04

6.46

356,166

6.42

441,412

8.03

207,155

8.02

$7.30- $8.99

620,027

9.82

—

0.00

$19.62-$20.97

260,964

8.98

44,120

8.96

1,853,369

8.37

649,156

7.01

(1) Calculation of weighted average remaining contractual term does not include the RSUs that were granted, which have an indefinite
contractual term.
g.

Options issued to consultants:
The Company’s outstanding options granted to non-employees as of December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Issuance date

Options for
shares of
ordinary
share

Exercise
price
per share

Options
exercisable

(number)
March 12, 2007

Exercisable
through

(number)
3,454

$

—

3,454

March 12, 2017

h.
Warrants to purchase ordinary shares
In May 2015 a total of 123,888 warrants were exercised on a cashless basis into 49,684 ordinary shares.
The following table summarizes information about warrants outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2015:

Issuance date

Exercise
price
per warrant

Warrants
outstanding
(number)

July 14, 2014

December 30, 2015

542,506

119,295

Warrants
exercisable

Contractual term

(number)
$

10.08

$

9.64

661,801

542,506

July 13, 2018

119,295

The earlier of: (i) December 30, 2025
(ii) a merger, consolidation, or
reorganization of the Company.

661,801
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i.

Share-based compensation expense for employees and non-employees:

The Company recognized non-cash share-based compensation expense in the consolidated statements of operations as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2015
Cost of revenues

$

2014
64

$

2013
33

$

5

Research and development, net

425

4,364

73

Sales and marketing, net

571

275

42

1,285

507

95

General and administrative
$

Total

2,345

$

5,179

$

215

In May 2012, the Company granted its CEO options to purchase 82,728 ordinary shares at an exercise price of $1.32 per share. The options will vest
immediately prior to and subject to the occurrence of (i) a merger of the Company into another corporation; (ii) the consummation of a merger, acquisition or
sale of the securities of the Company; or (iii) an IPO of the Company’s ordinary shares (“Exit Event”). The above options vesting are also contingent upon
market conditions related to the consideration paid to the shareholders of the Company in an Exit Event. The fair value of the above options at the grant date
was $165. Following the IPO in September 2014 the Company recorded the $165 compensation costs under general and administrative expenses.
In accordance with the Company’s articles of association and the Third Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement, immediately prior to and
subject to the occurrence of (i) the consummation of a merger, acquisition or sale of the securities of the Company (“M&A Event”); or (ii) an IPO, the
Company’s founder and Chief Technology Officer has the right to receive (i) in case of an M&A Event, 6% of the total proceeds; or (ii) in case of an IPO, for
no consideration, shares or immediately exercisable options with cashless exercise in an amount such that the value of his interests equals 6% of the
Company’s valuation. Prior to the IPO in September 2014, the Company recorded $4,134 compensation costs under research and development expenses in
respect thereof.
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NOTE 11:- WARRANTS TO PURCHASE PREFERRED SHARE

Issuance with respect to

Warrants
to purchase

Issuance
date

Number
of
warrants

Series C Transaction

Preferred C-1

8/2/2011

7,615

$

105.815

The earlier of: (i) a merger (ii) the consummation
of an initial public offering and (iii) 3 years from
the issuance date (all as stipulated in the specific
warrant agreement)

Series C Transaction

Preferred C-1

1/31/2012

7,231

$

105.815

The earlier of: (i) a merger (ii) the consummation
of an initial public offering and (iii) 3 years from
the issuance date (all as stipulated in the specific
warrant agreement)

Series C Transaction

Preferred C-1

5/10/2012

4,252

$

105.815

The earlier of: (i) a merger (ii) the consummation
of an initial public offering and (iii) 3 years from
the issuance date (all as stipulated in the specific
warrant agreement)

Series C Transaction

Preferred C-1

8/20/2012

5,870

$

105.815

The earlier of: (i) a merger (ii) the consummation
of an initial public offering and (iii) 3 years from
the issuance date (all as stipulated in the specific
warrant agreement)

Fee agreement with a service
provider

Preferred D

9/24/2013

600

$

121

The earlier of: (i) a merger (ii) the consummation
of an initial public offering and (iii) 5 years from
the issuance date (all as stipulated in the specific
warrant agreement)

Venture loan from Kreos

Preferred D

6/19/2014

5,372

$

206.09

The earlier of: (i) a merger (ii) 5 years from the
consummation of an initial public offering and
(iii) 10 years from the issuance date (all as
stipulated in the specific warrant agreement)

Series E Transaction
(refer to Note 10d)

Preferred E

6/26/2014

37,850

$

206.09

4 years from the issuance date (all as stipulated
in the specific warrant agreement)

a.

Exercise
price

Contractual term

In July 26, 2011, the Company signed a series C convertible preferred share purchase agreement (the “Series C Transaction”) with the
Company’s shareholders and new investors (collectively the “Investors”), pursuant to which the Company issued to each of the Investors an
aggregate amount of 67,486 convertible preferred C-1 shares, at a price per share of $105.815 totaling to approximately $7.1 million.
The Investment was made in three installments as follows: (i) the first installment was made at the First Closing, in an aggregate amount of
approximately $1 million by means of the issuance of 9,640 convertible preferred C-1 shares (ii) the second installment was made at the Second
Closing, subject to the terms of the agreement and fulfillment of the First Milestone, in an aggregate amount of approximately $2.6 million, by
means of the issuance of 24,102 convertible preferred C-1 shares and (iii) the third and final installment was made at the Third Closing, subject
to
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the terms of the agreement and fulfillment of the Second Milestone, in an aggregate amount of approximately $3.6 million, by means of the
issuance of 33,744 convertible preferred C-1 shares.
In conjunction with the Series C Transaction, the Company granted warrants to purchase a number of shares of Series C-1 convertible preferred
share upon achieving three milestones, each referred to as closing. At each of the Closings, the investor was granted warrants, at a price per each
investment share of $105.815 (i) to purchase an aggregate amount of 7,615 Series C-1 convertible preferred shares to the investors at the First
Closing and the holders of C-2 preferred shares, subject to consummation of the First Closing (ii) to purchase an aggregate amount of 7,231
Series C-1 convertible preferred share to the investors at the Second Closing, subject to consummation of the second closing and (iii) to
purchase an aggregate amount of 10,122 Series C-1 convertible preferred share to the investors at the third closing, subject to consummation of
the third closing.
As of December 31, 2013, all of the three milestones were achieved and all of the above warrants were granted.
The warrants to purchase Series C-1 convertible preferred shares were determined to be freestanding instruments and were accounted under
ASC No. 480 as a liability in the Company’s financial statements. At each reporting date, the Company re-measures its warrants for convertible
preferred shares to fair value using the OPM. Since the warrants to purchase Series C-1 convertible preferred shares were issued in conjunction
with the Series C Transaction, the Company first allocated the fair value of the warrants to purchase Series C-1 convertible preferred shares to
warrant liability, with the residual proceeds from the Series C Transaction classified as shareholders’ equity (deficiency).
On July 30, 2014, all of the 7,615 warrants to purchase series C-1 convertible preferred shares, which were issued on August 2, 2011, were
exercised into series C-1 convertible preferred shares as follows: (i) a total of 6,197 warrants were exercised into 6,197 series C-1 convertible
preferred shares for cash consideration of $656 and (ii) the remaining 1,418 warrants were exercised on a cashless basis into 721 series C-1
convertible preferred shares.
On August 26, 2014, all of the remaining 17,353 warrants to purchase series C-1 convertible preferred shares, which were issued between
January 2012 and August 2012, were exercised into series C-1 convertible preferred shares as follows: (i) a total of 3,988 warrants were
exercised into 3,988 series C-1 convertible preferred shares for cash consideration of $422 and (ii) the remaining 13,365 warrants were
exercised on a cashless basis into 6,799 series C-1 convertible preferred shares.
The fair value of the warrants to purchase Series C-1 convertible preferred shares as of June 27, 2011, January 31, 2012, May 10, 2012 and
August 20, 2012 (the issuance dates) was $43.09, $46.74, $57.68 and $72.26, per warrant, respectively.
b.

On May 30, 2013, the Company entered into a fee agreement with one of its service providers, pursuant to which the Company granted the
service provider warrants to purchase shares equal to 5% of any shares issued upon cash receipt from an external investor identified by the
service provider. As part of the Series D Transaction, on September 30, 2013 the service provider was granted warrants to purchase 600 Series D
convertible preferred share. The Company accounted for the warrants to purchase Series D convertible preferred shares under ASC 505 and
recorded the warrants at fair value as issuance expense, which was determined to be $62 as of September 24, 2013 (their issuance date), and
classified as a liability in the Company’s financial statement.
On the August 26, 2014, all of the 600 warrants to purchase series D convertible preferred shares mentioned above, which were issued on
September 24, 2013, were exercised on a cashless basis into 263 series D convertible preferred shares.
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c.

On June 19, 2014, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Kreos pursuant to which Kreos agreed to grant a line of credit to the
Company of $5.0 million. The line of credit was available for drawdown until September 30, 2014, with a minimum required drawdown of $1.0
million. In October 2014, the Company extended the line of credit until December 31, 2015. Amounts drawn were required to be repaid in 36
monthly installments. The Company did not draw down any funds under this line of credit. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Company was
required to pay a transaction fee of 1.0% of the total amount of the line of credit upon both the execution and the expiration of the loan
agreement. In the year ended December 31, 2014 the Company paid and accrued, as part of the Company's financial expenses, a transaction fee
expenses an amount of $100. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Company granted to Kreos a security interest over all of the Company’s assets,
including intellectual property and equity interests in its subsidiaries.
In connection with this agreement, the Company granted Kreos warrants to purchase 5,372 Series D-1 convertible preferred shares. The
Company accounted for the warrants to purchase Series D-1 convertible preferred shares under ASC No. 480 and recorded the warrants at fair
value as financial expense, which was determined to be $835 as of June 19, 2014 (their issuance date), and classified as a liability in the
Company’s financial statement.
On the September 11, 2014, following the IPO, all of the 5,372 warrants to purchase series D-1 convertible preferred shares mentioned above
were converted into warrants to purchase 96,696 ordinary shares.
On the September 15, 2014, all of the 96,696 warrants to purchase ordinary shares mentioned above, which were issued on June 19, 2014, were
exercised on a cashless basis into 79,200 ordinary shares.

d.

On June 26, 2014, the Company entered into the series E SPA with Gabriel and the other parties named therein (the “Series E SPA”). The
transaction closed in July 2014. Pursuant to the Series E SPA, the Company issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 37,850 preferred E
Shares (which, upon the consummation of the IPO, converted on an 18-for-1 basis into warrants to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares) to
Gabriel and the other investors named in the Series E SPA. The warrants have an exercise price of $206.09 per share and are exercisable until
four years from date of grant, subject to certain adjustments.
The Company’s articles of association in effect prior to the IPO provided for antidilution protections to certain holders of convertible preferred
shares based on the price to the public in the IPO. Following the IPO, on September 11, 2014 the warrants to purchase 37,850 series D-1
convertible preferred shares mentioned above were converted into warrants to purchase 785,754 ordinary shares.
On the September 30, 2014, a total of 26,784 warrants to purchase ordinary shares mentioned above, which were issued on June 26, 2014, were
exercised on a cashless basis into 18,192 ordinary shares.
On the October 12, 2014, a total of 89,280 warrants to purchase ordinary shares mentioned above, which were issued on June 26, 2014, were
exercised on a cashless basis into 60,226 ordinary shares.

e.

As of December 31, 2013, the fair value of the warrants to purchase convertible preferred shares was $3,341. Following the closing of the IPO
on September 17, 2014, all outstanding warrants to purchase convertible preferred stock were converted into warrants to purchase ordinary
shares which resulted in classification of the remaining warrants liability to additional paid-in capital in the amount of $5,555.
The Company recorded financial expenses (income), net in the amount of $0, $(776) and $1,111 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, resulting
from the revaluation of the warrants to purchase convertible preferred shares.
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NOTE 12:- INCOME TAXES
The Company’s subsidiaries are separately taxed under the domestic tax laws of the jurisdiction of incorporation of each entity.
a.

Corporate tax rates in Israel:
Presented hereunder are the tax rates relevant to the Company in the years 2013-2015:
The Israeli statutory corporate tax rate was, 25% in 2013 and 26.5% in 2015 and 2014. On January 4, 2016, the statutory tax rate was changed to
25% following a reduction of corporate tax by the government.

b.

Profit (loss) before taxes on income is comprised as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2015

Domestic

$

(25,485)

Foreign

$

(25,362)

2013

(21,743)

123
$

c.

2014
$

(12,219)

120
$

(21,623)

64
$

(12,155)

Taxes on income are comprised as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2015

Current

$

2014
114

Deferred
Prior year taxes
$

$

2013
76

$

6

(61)

(60)

16

—

29

—

53

$

45

$

22

Year Ended December 31,
2015
Domestic

$

Foreign

—

$

53
$

d.

2014

53

2013
—

$

45
$

45

—
22

$

22

Deferred income taxes:
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The Company’s deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are derived
from temporary differences.
In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. Based on the Company’s history of losses, the Company established a full valuation allowance for RRL.
Undistributed earnings of certain subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 were immaterial. The Company intends to reinvest these earnings indefinitely
in the foreign subsidiaries. As a result, the Company has not provided for any deferred income taxes.
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December 31,
2015
Carry forward tax losses

$

14,961

Research and Development carry forward expenses-temporary differences

e.

9,152
870

206

153

16,343

10,175

(16,196)

(10,089)

Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance

Net deferred tax assets

$

1,176

Accrual and reserves

Valuation allowance

2014

$

147

$

86

Reconciliation of the theoretical tax expenses:
A reconciliation between the theoretical tax expense, assuming all income is taxed at the statutory tax rate applicable to income of the Company, and
the actual tax expense (benefit) as reported in the consolidated statements of operations is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2015
$

Loss before taxes, as reported in the consolidated statements of operations

$

26.5%

Statutory tax rate
Theoretical tax benefits on the above amount at the Israeli statutory tax rate

$

Income tax at rate other than the Israeli statutory tax rate
Non-deductible expenses including equity based compensation expenses and other
Operating losses and other temporary differences for which valuation allowance was
provided
Taxes in respect of prior years
$

Actual tax expense
f.

2014

(25,362)

(6,721)

2013

(21,623)

$

26.5%
$

(5,730)

(12,155)
25.0%

$

(3,039)

16

12

7

651

1,864

895

6,107

3,870

2,159

—

29

—

53

$

45

$

22

Foreign tax rates:
Taxable income of RRI was subject to tax at the rate of 35% in 2015, 2014, and 2013.
Taxable income of AMG was subject to tax at the rate of 30% in 2015, 2014, and 2013.

g.

Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the “Investment Law”):
Conditions for entitlement to the benefits:
Under the Investment Law, in 2012 the Company elected “Beneficiary Enterprise” status which provides certain benefits, including tax exemptions
and reduced tax rates. Income not eligible for Beneficiary Enterprise benefits is taxed at a regular rate.
Income derived from Beneficiary Enterprise from productive activity will be exempt from tax for ten years from the year in which the Company first
has taxable income, providing that 12 years have not passed from the beginning of the year
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of election. In the event of a dividend distribution from income that is exempt from company tax, as aforementioned, the Company will be required
to pay tax of 10%- 25% on that income.
In the event of distribution of dividends from the said tax-exempt income, the amount distributed will be subject to corporate tax at the rate
ordinarily applicable to the Beneficiary Enterprise’s income. Tax-exempt income generated under the Company’s “Beneficiary Enterprise” program
will be subject to taxes upon dividend distribution or complete liquidation.
The entitlement to the above benefits is conditional upon the Company’s fulfilling the conditions stipulated by the Law and regulations published
thereunder.
On December 29, 2010, the Knesset approved an additional amendment to the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959. According
to the amendment, a reduced uniform corporate tax rate for exporting industrial enterprises (over 25%) was established. The reduced tax rate will not
be program dependent and will apply to the industrial enterprise’s entire income. The tax rates for industrial enterprises have been reduced gradually
over a period of five years as follows: In 2011-2012, the reduced tax rate for development area A will be 10% and for the rest of the country-15%. In
2013-2014, the reduced tax rate for development area A will be 7% and for the rest of the country- 12.5%. Starting 2015 and thereafter, the reduced
tax rate for development area A will be 6% and for the rest of the country- 12%. However, in August 2013, the Israeli Knesset approved an
amendment to the Investment Law, pursuant to which such scheduled gradual reduction was repealed beginning in 2014 and the rates for
development area A will be 9% and for the rest of the country- 16% in 2014 and thereafter.
The Company has examined the effect of the adoption of the Amendment on its financial statements, and as of the date of the publication of the
financial statements, the Company estimates that it will not apply the Amendment. The Company’s estimate may change in the future.
h.

Tax assessments:
RRL has final tax assessments up to and including the 2011 tax year.
RRI and AMG do not have final tax assessment, since their inception.

i.

Net operating carry-forward losses for tax purposes:
As of December 31, 2015, RRL has carry-forward losses amounting to approximately $56,500, which can be carried forward for an indefinite
period.
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NOTE 13:- FINANCIAL EXPENSES (INCOME), NET
The components of financial expenses (income), net were as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2015
Financial expenses related to convertible loans

$

2014
—

$

2013
—

Issuance of warrants to purchase convertible preferred share

—

835

Revaluation of fair value of warrants to purchase convertible preferred shares

—

(776)

2,166
—
1,111

Issuance of convertible preferred shares

—

1,114

—

Foreign currency transactions and other

170

200

93

Financial expenses related to loan agreement with Kreos

—

100

—

Issuance cost related to warrants liability

—

128

—

Bank commissions

36

36

40

(18)

61

—

(Income) Expenses related to hedging transactions
$
F-34
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1,698
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NOTE 14:- GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION AND MAJOR CUSTOMER AND PRODUCT DATA
Summary information about geographic areas:
ASC 280, “Segment Reporting” establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments. Operating segments are defined as components of
an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company manages its business on the basis of one reportable segment, and derives revenues from
selling systems and services (see Note 1 for a brief description of the Company’s business). The following is a summary of revenues within geographic areas:
Year Ended December 31,
2015

2014

2013

Revenues based on customer’s location:
Israel

$

—

United States

$

—

$

83

2,439

2,186

941

Europe

820

1,254

476

Asia-Pacific

487

511

88

$

Total revenues

3,746

$

3,951

$

1,588

December 31,
2015

2014

Long-lived assets by geographic region:
Israel

$

605

$

279

United States

483

88

Germany

240

47

$

1,328

$

414

(*) Long-lived assets are comprised of property and equipment, net.
Major customer data as a percentage of total revenues:
Year Ended December 31,
2015
Customer A

2014
14.8%

*) Less than 10%
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NOTE 15:- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a. On January 4, 2016 the Company received from Kreos $10,924 net of transaction fees and advance payment. See note 7.
b. In January and February 2016 the Company has granted to employees and non employees a total of 37,496 options to purchase the Company's
ordinary shares under the Plan.
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THE ISRAELI COMPANIES LAW
A COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

ReWalk Robotics Ltd.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.

Definitions
a)
In these Articles the following terms shall bear the meaning ascribed to them below:
“Alternate Director” is defined in Article 41.
“Annual General Meeting” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Companies Law.
The “Articles” shall mean these Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to time.
“Audit Committee” shall mean the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.
“Board of Directors” shall mean Board of Directors of the Company.
The “Company” shall mean ReWalk Robotics Ltd.
The "Companies Law" shall mean the Israeli Companies Law, 1999, as amended from time to time.
A “Director” shall mean a member of the Board of Directors.
“External Director” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Companies Law.
“Extraordinary General Meeting” shall mean any General Meeting other than the Annual General Meeting.
“General Counsel” shall mean the General Counsel of the Company.
“General Manager(s)” is defined in Article 46.
“General Meeting” shall mean a general meeting of the shareholders of the Company, which may be an
Annual General Meeting or an Extraordinary General Meeting.
“NIS” shall mean New Israeli Shekel.
“Office” means the registered office of the Company.
“Ordinary Majority” shall mean a simple majority of the votes cast by shareholders at a General Meeting in
person or by means of a proxy.
1

“Ordinary Shares” shall mean the ordinary shares of the Company, par value NIS 0.01 per share.
"Person” shall mean any individual or firm, corporation, partnership, association, trust or other entity.
“Register of Shareholders” shall mean a register of the shareholders of the Company.
The “Secretary” shall mean the corporate secretary of the Company.
“Shareholders Resolution” shall mean a resolution adopted by votes of shareholders of the Company at a
General Meeting.
b)
c)

2.

The captions in these Articles are for convenience only and shall not be deemed a part hereof or affect the
construction of any provision hereof.
Unless the subject or the context otherwise requires, words and expressions not defined herein shall have the
respective meanings set forth in the Companies Law in force on the date when these Articles or any amendment
thereto, as the case may be, first became effective; words and expressions importing the singular shall include the
plural and vice versa; and words and expressions importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender.

Object and Purpose of the Company
(a) The object and purpose of the Company shall be to engage in any lawful activity.

(b) In accordance with Section 11(a) of the Companies Law, the Company may donate reasonable amounts to any cause it
deems worthy. The Board of Directors or an authorized Committee of the Board of Directors may from time to time determine the
policy and amounts within which such donations may be made by the Company, and the Person or Persons authorized to approve
any such specific donation.
Limitation of Liability
The liability of the shareholders is limited to the payment of the nominal value of the shares in the Company issued to them
and which remains unpaid, and only to that amount. If the Company’s share capital shall include at any time shares without a
nominal value, the shareholders’ liability in respect of such shares shall be limited to the payment of up to NIS 0.01 for each such
share issued to them and which remains unpaid, and only to that amount.
3.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized Share Capital
The authorized share capital of the Company is Two Million and Five Hundred Thousand New Israeli Shekels (NIS
2,500,000) divided into Two Hundred and Fifty Million (250,000,000) Ordinary Shares, par value NIS 0.01 per share.
4.

Increase of Authorized Share Capital
(a) The Company may, from time to time, by Shareholders Resolution, whether or not all the shares then authorized have
been issued, and whether or not all the shares theretofore issued have been called up for payment, increase its authorized share
capital by the creation of new shares through amending these Articles. Any such increase shall be in such amount and shall be
divided into shares of such nominal amounts
5.
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(or no nominal amounts), and such shares shall confer such rights and preferences, and shall be subject to such restrictions, as such
resolution shall provide.
(b) Except to the extent otherwise provided in such resolution, such new shares shall be subject to all the provisions
applicable to the shares prior to such resolution.
Rights of the Ordinary Shares
The Ordinary Shares confer upon the holders thereof all rights accruing to a shareholder of the Company, as provided in
these Articles, including, inter alia, the right to receive notices of, and to attend meetings of shareholders; for each share held, the
right to one vote at all meetings of shareholders; and to share equally, on a per share basis, in such dividend and other distributions
to shareholders of the Company as may be declared by the Board of Directors in accordance with these Articles and the Companies
Law, and upon liquidation or dissolution of the Company, in the distribution of assets of the Company legally available for
distribution to shareholders in accordance with the terms of applicable law and these Articles. All Ordinary Shares rank pari passu
in all respects with each other.
6.

Special Rights; Modifications of Rights
(a) The Company may, from time to time, by Shareholders Resolution, provide for shares with such preferred or deferred
rights or rights of redemption or other special rights and/or such restrictions, whether in regard to dividends, voting, repayment of
share capital or otherwise, as may be stipulated in such resolution.
7.

(b) (i) If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class, unless
otherwise provided by these Articles and subject to applicable law, may be modified or abrogated by the Company, by Shareholders
Resolution, subject to an approval by a resolution passed by the holders of a simple majority of the shares of such class voting at a
separate General Meeting of the holders of the shares of such class.
(ii) The provisions of these Articles relating to General Meetings shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to any separate
General Meeting of the holders of the shares of a particular class.
(iii) Unless otherwise provided by these Articles, the enlargement of an existing class of shares, or the issuance of
additional shares thereof, shall not be deemed, for purposes of this Article 7(b), to modify or abrogate the rights attached to the
previously issued shares of such class or of any other class.
Consolidation, Subdivision, Cancellation and Reduction of Share Capital
(a) The Company may, from time to time, by Shareholders Resolution (subject, however, to the provisions of Article 7(b)
hereof and to applicable law):
8.

(i) consolidate and divide all or any of its issued or unissued share capital into shares of larger nominal value than
its existing shares;
(ii) subdivide its shares (issued or unissued) or any of them, into shares of smaller nominal value than is fixed by
these Articles (subject, however, to the provisions of the Companies Law), and the Shareholders Resolution whereby any share is
subdivided may determine that, as among the holders of the shares resulting from such subdivision, one or more of the shares may,
as compared with the others, have any such preferred or deferred rights or rights of redemption or other special rights, or be subject
to any such restrictions, as the Company has power to attach to unissued or new shares;
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(iii) cancel any shares which, at the date of the adoption of such resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be
taken by any Person, and diminish the amount of its share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled; or
(iv) reduce its share capital in any manner, and with and subject to any consent required by law.
(b) With respect to any consolidation of issued shares into shares of larger nominal value, and with respect to any other
action which may result in fractional shares, the Board of Directors may settle any difficulty which may arise with regard thereto,
as it deems fit, including, inter alia, resort to one or more of the following actions:
(i) determine, as to the holder of shares so consolidated, which issued shares shall be consolidated into each share
of larger nominal value;
(ii) issue, in contemplation of or subsequent to such consolidation or other action, such shares or fractional shares
sufficient to preclude or remove fractional share holdings;
(iii) redeem, in the case of redeemable preference shares, and subject to applicable law, such shares or fractional
shares sufficient to preclude or remove fractional share holdings;
(iv) subject to applicable law, cause the transfer of fractional shares by certain shareholders of the Company to
other shareholders thereof so as to most expediently preclude or remove any fractional shareholdings, and cause the transferees to
pay the transferors the fair value of fractional shares so transferred, and the Board of Directors is hereby authorized to act as agent
for the transferors and transferees with power of substitution for purposes of implementing the provisions of this sub-Article 8(b)
(iv); or
(v) cause the aggregation of fractional shares and the sale thereof so as to most expediently preclude or remove any
fractional shareholding and cause the proceeds thereof, less expenses, to be paid to the former holders of the fractional shares.
(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a class of shares has no nominal value, then any of the foregoing actions may be
taken with respect to such class without regard to nominal value.
SHARES
Issuance of Share Certificates; Replacement of Lost Certificates
(a) Share certificates shall be issued under the seal or stamp of the Company and shall bear the signature of any two (2)
Directors or any two (2) of the following: the General Manager, the Chief Financial Officer, the General Counsel, the Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, or of any other Person or Persons authorized
thereto by the Board of Directors. For the avoidance of doubt, any transfer agent designated by the Company may issue share
certificates on behalf of the Company even if the signatories on the share certificate no longer serve in the relevant capacities at the
time of such issuance.
9.

(b) The Company may issue un-certificated shares, provided, however, that each holder of shares shall be entitled to one
numbered certificate for all the shares of any class registered in his name, and if reasonably requested by such holder, to several
certificates, each for one or more of such shares.
(c) A share certificate registered in the names of two or more Persons shall be delivered to the Person first named in the
Register of Shareholders in respect of such co-ownership.
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(d) If a share certificate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be replaced, upon payment of such fee, and upon the
furnishing of such evidence of ownership and such affidavit and indemnity or security, as the Company’s Secretary may deem fit.
Issuance of Shares; Registered Holders of Shares
(a) The unissued shares from time to time shall be under the control of the Board of Directors, who shall have the power to
issue shares or otherwise dispose of them to such Persons, on such terms and conditions (including inter alia terms relating to calls
as set forth in Article 11(f) hereof), and either at par or at a premium, or, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, at a
discount, and at such times, as the Board of Directors may deem fit, and the power to give to any Person the option to acquire from
the Company any shares, either at par or at a premium, or, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, at a discount, during
such time and for such consideration as the Board of Directors may deem fit.
10.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in these Articles, the Company shall be entitled to treat the registered holder of any share
as the absolute owner thereof, and, accordingly, shall not, except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction, or as required by
statute, be bound to recognize any trust or equitable or other claim to, or interest in such share on the part of any other Person.
(c) Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law and to all orders and regulations issued
thereunder, the Board of Directors may elect to maintain one or more Registers of Shareholders outside of Israel in addition to its
principal Register of Shareholders, and each such register shall be deemed a Register of Shareholders for purposes of these
Articles, and, subject to all applicable requirements of law, the Board of Directors may from time to time adopt such rules and
procedures as it may think fit in connection with the keeping of such branch registers.
Calls on Shares
(a) The Company may, from time to time, make such calls as the Board of Directors may determine upon holders of shares
in respect of any sum unpaid for shares held by such holders which is not, by the terms of issuance thereof or otherwise, payable at
a fixed time, and each such holder shall pay the amount of every call so made upon him (and of each installment thereof if the same
is payable in installments), to the Person(s) and at the time(s) and place(s) designated by the Board of Directors, as any such time(s)
may be thereafter extended and/or such Person(s) or place(s) changed. Unless otherwise stipulated in the resolution of the Board of
Directors (and in the notice hereafter referred to), each payment in response to a call shall be deemed to constitute a pro rata
payment on account of all shares in respect of which such call was made.
11.

(b) Notice of any call shall be given in writing to the holder(s) in question not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the time
of payment, specifying the time and place of payment, and designating the Person to whom such payment shall be made, provided,
however, that before the time for any such payment, the Company upon approval of the Board of Directors may, by notice in
writing to such holder(s), revoke such call in whole or in part, extend such time, or alter such Person and/or place. In the event of a
call payable in installments, only one notice thereof need be given.
(c) If, by the terms of issuance of any share or otherwise, any amount is made payable at any fixed time, every such
amount shall be payable at such time as if it were a call duly made by the Company and of which due notice had been given, and all
the provisions herein contained with respect to such calls shall apply to each such amount.
(d) The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof and all interest
payable thereon.
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(e) Any amount unpaid in respect of a call shall bear interest from the date on which it is payable until actual payment
thereof, at such rate (not exceeding the then prevailing debitory rate charged by leading commercial banks in Israel), and at such
time(s) as the Board of Directors may prescribe.
(f) Upon the issuance of shares, the Board of Directors may provide for differences among the holders of such shares as to
the amount of calls and/or the times of payment thereof.
(g) With the approval of the Board of Directors, any holder of shares may pay to the Company any amount not yet payable
in respect of his shares. The Board of Directors may at any time cause the Company to repay all or any part of the money so
advanced, without premium or penalty.
Forfeiture and Surrender
(a) If any holder fails to pay any amount payable in respect of a call, or interest thereon as provided for herein, on or
before the day fixed for payment of the same, the Company, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may at any time thereafter, so
long as the said amount or interest remains unpaid, forfeit all or any of the shares in respect of which said call had been made. Any
expense incurred by the Company in attempting to collect any such amount or interest, including, inter alia, attorneys' fees and
costs of suit, shall be added to, and shall, for all purposes (including the accrual of interest thereon), constitute a part of the amount
payable to the Company in respect of such call.
12.

(b) Upon the adoption of a resolution of forfeiture, the Board of Directors shall cause notice thereof to be given to such
holder, which notice shall state that, in the event of the failure to pay the entire amount so payable within a period stipulated in the
notice (which period shall not be less than fourteen (14) days and which may be extended by the Company with the approval of the
Board of Directors), such shares shall be ipso facto forfeited, provided, however, that, prior to the expiration of such period, the
Board of Directors may nullify such resolution of forfeiture, but no such nullification shall estop the Board of Directors from
adopting a further resolution of forfeiture in respect of the non-payment of the same amount.
(c) Whenever shares are forfeited as herein provided, all dividends theretofore declared in respect thereof and not actually
paid shall be deemed to have been forfeited at the same time.
(d) The Company, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may accept the voluntary surrender of any share.
(e) Any shares forfeited or surrendered as provided herein shall become Dormant Shares and the property of the Company,
and the same, subject to the provisions of these Articles, may be sold, re-issued or otherwise disposed of as the Board of Directors
deems fit.
(f) Any holder whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cease to be a holder in respect of the forfeited or
surrendered shares, but shall, notwithstanding, be liable to pay, and shall forthwith pay, to the Company, all calls, interest and
expenses owing upon or in respect of such shares at the time of forfeiture or surrender, together with interest thereon from the time
of forfeiture or surrender until actual payment, at the rate prescribed in Article 11(e) above, and the Company, in its discretion, may
enforce the payment of such moneys, or any part thereof, but shall not be under any obligation to do so. In the event of such
forfeiture or surrender, the Company, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may accelerate the date(s) of payment of any or all
amounts then owing by the holder in question (but not yet due) in respect of all shares owned by such holder, solely or jointly with
another.
(g) The Board of Directors may at any time, before any share so forfeited or surrendered shall have been sold, re-issued or
otherwise disposed of, nullify the forfeiture or surrender on such conditions as it deems fit, but no such nullification shall estop the
Board of Directors from re-exercising its powers of forfeiture pursuant to this Article 12.
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Lien
(a) Except to the extent the same may be waived or subordinated in writing, to the extent permitted by applicable law, the
Company shall have a first and paramount lien upon all the shares (other than shares which are fully paid up) registered in the name
of each holder (without regard to any equitable or other claim or interest in such shares on the part of any other Person), and upon
the proceeds of the sale thereof, for his debts and liabilities, solely or jointly with another, to the Company in respect of such shares,
whether the period for the payment, fulfillment or discharge thereof shall have actually arrived or not. Such lien shall extend to all
dividends from time to time declared in respect of such share. Unless otherwise provided, the registration by the Company of a
transfer of shares shall be deemed to be a waiver on the part of the Company of the lien (if any) existing on such shares
immediately prior to such transfer.
13.

(b) The Board of Directors may cause the Company to sell any shares subject to such lien when any such debt or liability
has matured, in such manner as the Board of Directors may deem fit, but no such sale shall be made unless such debt or liability or
has not been satisfied within fourteen (14) days after written notice of the intention to sell shall have been served on such holder,
his executors or administrators.
(c) The net proceeds of any such sale, after payment of the costs thereof, shall be applied in or toward satisfaction of such
debts or liabilities of such holder (whether or not the same have matured), or any specific part of the same (as the Company may
determine), and the residue (if any) shall be paid to the holder, his executors, administrators or assigns.
Sale after Forfeiture or Surrender or in Enforcement of Lien
Upon any sale of shares after forfeiture or surrender or for enforcing a lien, the Board of Directors may appoint some
Person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares so sold and cause the purchaser's name to be entered in the Register of
Shareholders in respect of such shares, and the purchaser shall not be bound to see to the propriety of the proceedings, or to the
application of the purchase money, and after his name has been entered in the Register of Shareholders in respect of such shares,
the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any Person, and the remedy of any Person aggrieved by the sale shall be in
damages only and against the Company exclusively.
14.

Redeemable Shares
The Company may, subject to applicable law, issue redeemable shares and redeem the same upon the conditions and terms
determined by the Board of Directors.
15.

TRANSFER OF SHARES
Effectiveness and Registration
(a) No transfer of shares shall be registered in the Register of Shareholders unless a proper instrument of transfer (in form
and substance satisfactory to the Secretary) has been submitted to the Company or its agent, together with any share certificate(s)
and such other evidence of title as the Secretary may reasonably require, and unless such transfer complies with applicable law and
these Articles. Until the transferee has been registered in the Register of Shareholders in respect of the shares so transferred, the
Company may continue to treat the transferor as the owner thereof. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, prescribe a fee
for the registration of a transfer.
16.

(b) The Company shall be entitled to refuse to recognize a transfer deed until the certificate of the transferred share is
attached to it together with any other evidence which the Board of Directors or the Secretary shall require as proof of the
transferor’s right to transfer the share and payment of any transfer fee
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determined by the Board of Directors. Registered transfer deeds shall remain with the Company, but any transfer deed which the
Company refused to register shall be returned to the transferor upon demand.
(c) The Board of Directors may close the Register of Shareholders for a period of up to thirty (30) days in each year.
TRANSMISSION OF SHARES
17. Decedents' Shares
(a) In case of a share registered in the names of two or more holders, the Company may recognize the survivor(s) as the
sole owner(s) thereof unless and until the provisions of Article 17(b) have been effectively invoked.
(b) Any Person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death of any individual, upon producing evidence of
the grant of probate or letters of administration or declaration of succession (or such other evidence as the Board of Directors or the
Secretary may reasonably deem sufficient of the capacity in which he proposes to act under this Article), shall be registered as a
holder in respect of such share, or may, subject to the regulations as to transfer herein contained, transfer such share.
18. Receivers and Liquidators
(a) The Company may recognize the receiver or liquidator or similar official of any corporate shareholder in winding-up
or dissolution, or the receiver or trustee or similar official in bankruptcy or in connection with the reorganization of any
shareholder, as being entitled to the shares registered in the name of such shareholder.
(b) The receiver or liquidator or similar official of a corporate shareholder in winding-up or dissolution, or the receiver or
trustee or similar official in bankruptcy or in connection with the reorganization of any shareholder, upon producing such evidence
as the Board of Directors or the Secretary may deem sufficient of the capacity in which he proposes to act under this Article, shall
with the consent of the Secretary, be registered as a shareholder in respect of such shares, or may, subject to the provisions as to
transfer herein contained, transfer such shares.
RECORD DATE WITH RESPECT TO OWNERSHIP OF SHARES
19.

Record Dates

(a) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in these Articles, for the determination of the holders entitled to receive
notice of and to participate in and vote at a General Meeting or to express consent to or dissent from any corporate action in
writing, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date which shall neither be earlier nor later than is permitted under
applicable law. No Persons other than holders of record of Ordinary Shares as of such record date shall be entitled to notice of and
to participate in and vote at such General Meeting, or to exercise such other right, as the case may be. A determination of holders of
record with respect to a General Meeting shall apply to any adjournment of such meeting, provided that the Board of Directors may
fix a new record date for an adjourned meeting.
(b) Subject to the applicable law, the holders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or issuance
of any rights, shall be the shareholders on the date upon which it was resolved to
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distribute the dividend or at such later date as shall be determined by, or pursuant to a resolution of, the Board of Directors.
GENERAL MEETINGS
20. Annual General Meeting
An Annual General Meeting shall be held once in every calendar year at such time (within a period of not more than fifteen
(15) months after the last preceding Annual General Meeting) and at such place either within or without the State of Israel as may
be determined by the Board of Directors.
21.

Extraordinary General Meetings

The Board of Directors may, whenever it deems fit, convene an Extraordinary General Meeting at such time and place,
within or without the State of Israel, as may be determined by the Board of Directors, and shall be obliged to do so upon a demand
in writing in accordance with Section 63(b) of the Companies Law, if the proposed resolution is suitable for determination by
shareholders.
22. Notice of General Meetings
(a) The Company is required to give such prior notice of a General Meeting as required by applicable law, but in any event
not less than fourteen (14) days. The Company is not required to deliver personal notice to every shareholder except to the extent
required by applicable law. In any event, the accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to any shareholder or the non-receipt
of notice by any of the shareholders shall not invalidate the proceedings at any meeting.
(b) The notice of the meeting shall set forth the agenda of the meeting.
(c)
Any Shareholder or Shareholders of the Company holding at least one percent (1%) of the voting rights of the
Company (the “Proposing Shareholder(s)”) may request, subject to the Companies Law, that the Board of Directors include a
matter on the agenda of a General Meeting, provided that the matter is appropriate to be considered in a General Meeting (a
“Proposal Request”). In order for the Board of Directors to consider a Proposal Request and whether to include the matter stated
therein in the agenda of a General Meeting, notice of the Proposal Request must be timely delivered under any applicable law and
stock exchange rules and regulations and the Proposal Request must comply with the requirement of these Articles (including this
Article 22) and any applicable law and stock exchange rules and regulations. The Proposal Request must be in writing, signed by
all of the Proposing Shareholder(s) making such request, delivered, either in person or by certified mail, postage prepaid, and
received by the Secretary (or, in the absence thereof by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company). The announcement of an
adjournment or postponement of a General Meeting shall not commence a new time period (or extend any time period) for the
delivery of a Proposal Request as described above. The Proposal Request must include the following: (i) the name, address,
telephone number, fax number and email address of the Proposing Shareholder (or each Proposing Shareholder, as the case may be)
and, if an entity, the name(s) of the person(s) that controls or manages such entity; (ii) the number of Ordinary Shares held by the
Proposing Shareholder(s), directly or indirectly (and, if any of such Ordinary Shares are held indirectly, an explanation of how they
are held and by whom), which shall be in such number no less than as is required to qualify as a Proposing Shareholder,
accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the Company of the record holding of such Ordinary Shares by the Proposing
Shareholder(s) as of the date of the Proposal Request, and a representation that the Proposing Shareholder(s) intends to appear in
person or by proxy at the meeting; (iii) the matter requested to be included on the
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agenda of a General Meeting, all information related to such matter, the reason that such matter is proposed to be brought before
the General Meeting, the complete text of the resolution that the Proposing Shareholder proposes to be voted upon at the General
Meeting and, if the Proposing Shareholder wishes to have a position statement in support of the Proposal Request, a copy of such
position statement that complies with the requirement of any applicable law; (iv) a description of all arrangements or
understandings between the Proposing Shareholders and any other Person(s) (naming such Person or Persons) in connection with
the matter that is requested to be included on the agenda and a declaration signed by all Proposing Shareholder(s) of whether any of
them has a personal interest in the matter and, if so, a description in reasonable detail of such personal interest; (v) a description of
all Derivative Transactions (as defined below) by each Proposing Shareholder(s) during the previous twelve (12) month period,
including the date of the transactions and the class, series and number of securities involved in, and the material economic terms of,
such Derivative Transactions; and (vi) a declaration that all of the information that is required under the Companies Law and any
other applicable law and stock exchange rules and regulations to be provided to the Company in connection with such matter, if
any, has been provided to the Company. The Board of Directors, may, in its discretion, to the extent it deems necessary, request that
the Proposing Shareholder(s) provide additional information necessary so as to include a matter in the agenda of a General
Meeting, as the Board of Directors may reasonably require. A “Derivative Transaction” means any agreement, arrangement,
interest or understanding entered into by, or on behalf or for the benefit of, any Proposing Shareholder or any of its affiliates or
associates, whether of record or beneficial: (i) the value of which is derived in whole or in part from the value of any class or series
of shares or other securities of the Company, (ii) which otherwise provides any direct or indirect opportunity to gain or share in any
gain derived from a change in the value of securities of the Company, (iii) the effect or intent of which is to mitigate loss, manage
risk or benefit of security value or price changes, or (iv) which provides the right to vote or increase or decrease the voting power
of, such Proposing Shareholder, or any of its affiliates or associates, with respect to any shares or other securities of the Company,
which agreement, arrangement, interest or understanding may include, without limitation, any option, warrant, debt position, note,
bond, convertible security, swap, stock appreciation right, short position, profit interest, hedge, right to dividends, voting
agreement, performance-related fee or arrangement to borrow or lend shares (whether or not subject to payment, settlement,
exercise or conversion in any such class or series), and any proportionate interest of such Proposing Shareholder in the securities of
the Company held by any general or limited partnership, or any limited liability company, of which such Proposing Shareholder is,
directly or indirectly, a general partner or managing member.
The information required pursuant to this Article 22(c) shall be updated as of (i) the record date of the General Meeting, (ii)
five business days before the General Meeting, and (iii) as of the General Meeting, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.
(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Articles, unless otherwise provided by applicable law, notice by the
Company of a General Meeting which is published in one (1) daily newspaper in the State of Israel, if at all, shall be deemed to
have been duly given on the date of such publication to any shareholder whose address as registered in the Register of Shareholders
(or as designated in writing for the receipt of notices and other documents) is located in the State of Israel or whose shares of the
Company are registered with a transfer agent, or listed for trade on a stock exchange, that is located in the State of Israel.
(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Articles, unless otherwise provided by applicable law, notice by the
Company of a General Meeting or any other matter which is published via one international wire service shall be deemed to have
been duly given on the date of such publication to any shareholder whose address as registered in the Register of Shareholders (or
as designated in writing for the receipt of notices and other documents) is located outside the State of Israel or whose shares of the
Company are registered with a transfer agent, or listed for trade on a stock exchange that is located outside the State of Israel.
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PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
23.

Quorum

Two or more holders of Ordinary Shares (not in default in payment of any sum referred to in Article 12(a) hereof), present
in person or by proxy and holding shares conferring in the aggregate at least thirty-three-and-one-third percent (33-1/3%) of the
voting power of the Company shall constitute a quorum at General Meetings. No business shall be transacted at a General Meeting,
or at any adjournment thereof, unless the requisite quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business.
24. Chairman of Meetings
The Chairman, if any, of the Board of Directors shall preside as Chairman at every General Meeting of the Company. If
there is no such Chairman, or if at any meeting he is not present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time fixed for the meeting or is
unwilling to act as Chairman or has notified the Company that he will not attend such meeting, the holders of Ordinary Shares
present (or their proxies) shall choose someone else to be Chairman. The office of Chairman shall not, by itself, entitle the holder
thereof to vote at any General Meeting (without derogating, however, from the rights of such Chairman to vote as a holder of
Ordinary Shares or proxy of a shareholder if, in fact, he is also a shareholder or a proxy).
25. Adoption of Resolutions at General Meetings
(a) Subject to Article 35(a), unless otherwise indicated herein or required by applicable law any Shareholders Resolution
shall be deemed adopted if approved by an Ordinary Majority, including without limitation, a Merger of the Company or an
amendment to these Articles, to the extent permitted by applicable law.
(b) Every question submitted to a General Meeting shall be decided by a show of hands, without derogating from voting
by written ballot to the extent permitted, pursuant to applicable law.
(c) A declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution has been carried unanimously, or carried by a particular
majority, or defeated, and an entry to that effect in the minutes book of the Company, shall be conclusive evidence of the fact
without need of proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favor of or against such resolution.
26. Power to Adjourn
The Chairman of a General Meeting at which a quorum is present may, with the consent of the holders of a majority of the
voting power represented in person or by proxy and voting on the question of adjournment (and shall if so directed by the meeting),
adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting except
business which might lawfully have been transacted at the meeting as originally called. In addition, the Chairman shall, if directed
by the Board, adjourn a General Meeting (whether prior to or at the General Meeting) from time to time and from place to place,
but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting except business which might lawfully have been transacted at the
meeting as originally called.
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27. Voting Power
Subject to applicable law, and subject to any provision hereof conferring special rights as to voting, or restricting the right to
vote, every holder of Ordinary Shares shall have one vote for each share registered in his name in the Register of Shareholders
upon any resolution put to a vote of the holders of Ordinary Shares.
28. Voting Rights
(a) The shareholders entitled to vote at a General Meeting shall be the shareholders listed in the Company’s Register(s) of
Shareholders on the record date, as specified in Article 19.
(b) A company or other entity which is not an individual being a holder of Ordinary Shares of the Company may be
represented by an authorized individual at any meeting of the Company. Such authorized individual shall be entitled to exercise on
behalf of such holder all the power, which the latter could have exercised if it were an individual shareholder. Upon the request of
the Chairman of the meeting, written evidence of such authorization (in form acceptable to the Chairman in his sole discretion)
shall be delivered to him.
(c) Any holder of Ordinary Shares entitled to vote at the General Meeting may vote thereat either personally or by proxy
(who need not be a shareholder of the Company), or, if the shareholder is a company or other corporate body, by a representative
authorized pursuant to Article 28(b).
(d) If two or more Persons are registered in the Register of Shareholders as joint holders of any Ordinary Share, the vote of
the senior who tenders a vote, in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote(s) of the other joint holder(s);
and for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Shareholders, all subject
to applicable law.
(e) No shareholders shall be entitled to vote at any General Meeting (or be counted as a part of the quorum thereat), unless
all calls and other sums then payable by him in respect of his shares in the Company have been paid.
(f) The Board of Directors may determine, in its discretion, the matters, if any, that may be voted upon by written ballot
delivered to the Company (without attendance in person or by proxy) at a General Meeting, in addition to the matters on which
shareholders are entitled to do so pursuant to applicable law.
(g) Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the Secretary of the Company may, in his discretion, disqualify proxies,
proxy cards, written ballots or any other similar instruments.
PROXIES
29. Instrument of Appointment
(a) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be substantially in the form provided below or any other usual or customary
form or such other form as may be approved by the Board of Directors from time to time. It shall be duly signed by the appointer or
his duly authorized attorney or, if such appointer is a company or other corporate body, under its common seal or stamp or the hand
of its duly authorized agent(s) or attorney(s).
“I, the undersigned, _________________________________, being a
(name of shareholder )
shareholder of ReWalk Robotics Ltd. hereby appoint
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________________________ of _____________________________
(name of proxy)

(address of proxy)

as my proxy to attend and vote on my behalf at [any General Meeting of the Company] [the General Meeting
of the Company to be held on the _____ day of _______ , 2____ ] and at any adjournment thereof.
Signed this ______ day of ___________, 2___ .
__________________.”
(signature of shareholder)
(b) The instrument appointing a proxy (and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which such instrument
has been signed) shall be delivered to the Company (at its registered office, or at its principal place of business or at the offices of
its registrar and/or transfer agent or at such place as the Board of Directors may specify) not less than forty-eight (48) hours before
the time fixed for the meeting at which the Person named in the instrument proposes to vote, unless otherwise determined by the
Chairman of the meeting.
(c) The rights of a shareholder who is legally incapacitated to attend and/or vote at a General Meeting may be exercised by
his guardian.
30. Effect of Death of Appointer or Revocation of Appointment
A vote cast pursuant to an instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death of the appointing
shareholder (or of his attorney-in-fact, if any, who signed such instrument) or the revocation of the appointment, provided that no
written notice of such death or revocation shall have been received by the Company or by the Chairman of the meeting before such
vote is cast and provided, further, that the appointing shareholder, if present in person at said meeting, may revoke the authority
granted by the execution of a proxy by filing with the Company a duly executed instrument appointing another proxy, on or prior to
the deadline for the delivery of proxies, or by voting in person at the General Meeting.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
31. Powers of Board of Directors
(a) In General
The oversight of the management of the business of the Company shall be vested in the Board of Directors, which may
exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as the Company is authorized to exercise and do, and are not hereby or by
law required to be exercised or done by the Company in a General Meeting. The authority conferred on the Board of Directors by
this Article 31 shall be subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, of these Articles and any resolution consistent with the
Companies Law and these Articles adopted from time to time by a General Meeting, provided, however, that no such resolution
shall invalidate any prior act done by or pursuant to a decision of the Board of Directors which would have been valid if such
resolution had not been adopted.
(b) Borrowing Power
The Board of Directors may from time to time, in its discretion, cause the Company to borrow or secure the payment
of any sum or sums of money for the purposes of the Company, and also may cause
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the Company to secure or provide for the repayment of such sum or sums in such manner, at such times and upon such terms and
conditions in all respects as it deems fit, and, in particular, by the issuance of bonds, perpetual or redeemable debentures, debenture
stock, or any mortgages, charges, or other securities on the undertaking or the whole or any part of the property of the Company,
both present and future, including its uncalled or called but unpaid share capital for the time being.
(c) Reserves
The Board of Directors may, from time to time, set aside any amount(s) out of the profits of the Company as a
reserve or reserves for any purpose(s) which the Board of Directors, in its absolute discretion, shall deem fit, and the Company may
invest any sum so set aside in any manner and from time to time deal with and vary such investments, and dispose of all or any part
thereof, and employ any such reserve or any part thereof in the business of the Company without being bound to keep the same
separate from other assets of the Company, and may subdivide or redesignate any reserve or cancel the same or apply the funds
therein for another purpose, all as the Board of Directors may from time to time deem fit.
32. Exercise of Powers of Directors
(a) A meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present (in person, by means of a conference call or any
other device allowing each director participating in such meeting to hear all the other directors participating in such meeting) shall
be competent to exercise all the authorities, powers and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Board of Directors.
(b) A resolution proposed at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed adopted if approved by a simple
majority of the Directors present and lawfully entitled to vote thereon (as conclusively determined by the Secretary or General
Counsel, and in the absence of such determination, by the Chairman of the Audit Committee) and voting thereon.
(c) A resolution may be adopted by the Board of Directors without convening a meeting if all Directors then in office and
lawfully entitled to participate in the meeting and vote thereon (as conclusively determined by the Secretary or General Counsel,
and in the absence of such determination, by the Chairman of the Audit Committee), have given their written consent (in any
manner whatsoever) not to convene a meeting to discuss such matter. Such resolution shall be adopted if approved by a majority of
the Directors lawfully entitled to vote thereon (as determined as aforesaid). The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall sign the
instrument evidencing any resolutions so adopted, including the decision to adopt said resolutions without a meeting.
33. Delegation of Powers
(a) The Board of Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and these Articles, delegate any of its
powers to committees, each consisting of two or more Persons (all of whose members must be Directors), and it may from time to
time revoke such delegation or alter the composition of any such committee. Any Committee so formed (in these Articles referred
to as a “Committee of the Board of Directors”), shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations
imposed on it by the Board of Directors. The meetings and proceedings of any such Committee of the Board of Directors shall,
mutatis mutandis, be governed by the provisions herein contained for regulating the meetings of the Board of Directors, so far as
not superseded by the Companies Law or any regulations adopted by the Board of Directors under this Article. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the Chairman of a Committee of the Board of Directors shall not have a casting vote. Unless otherwise expressly
provided by the Board of Directors in delegating powers to a Committee of the Board of Directors, such Committee shall not be
empowered to further delegate such powers.
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(b) Without derogating from the provisions of Article 46, the Board of Directors may, subject to the provisions of the
Companies Law, from time to time appoint a Secretary to the Company, as well as any officers of the Company, and may terminate
the service of any such Person, and also may cause the Company to engage employees, agents and independent contractors and to
terminate the service of any such Person, all as the Board of Directors may deem fit. Without derogating from the provisions of
Article 46, the Board of Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, determine the powers and duties, as well as
the compensation terms of all such Persons, and may require security in such cases and in such amounts as it deems fit.
34. Number of Directors
(a) The Board of Directors shall include at least five (5) Directors and cannot be more than thirteen (13) Directors,
including two External Directors.
(b) The requirements of the Companies Law applicable to an External Director shall prevail over the provisions of these
Articles to the extent that these Articles are inconsistent with the Companies Law, and shall apply to the extent that these Articles
are silent.
35. Election and Removal of Directors
(a) Other than External Directors, the directors will be elected in three staggered classes by the vote of a majority of the
ordinary shares present and entitled to vote. The directors of only one class will be elected at each annual meeting for a three year
term, so that the regular term of only one class of directors expires annually. The directors serving as of the date these Articles
become effective will be classified as shall be determined by a resolution of the Board. At the Company's Annual General Meeting
to be held in 2015, the term of the first class, consisting of three (3) directors will expire, and the directors elected at that meeting
will be elected for a three-year term. At the Company's Annual General Meeting to be held in 2016, the term of the second class,
consisting of three (3) directors, will expire and the directors elected at that meeting will be elected for a three-year term. At the
Company's Annual General Meeting to be held in 2017, the term of the third class, consisting of three (3) directors, will expire and
the director elected at that meeting will be elected for a three-year term. The External Directors will not be assigned a class.
If the number of directors constituting the Board is changed, any increase or decrease shall be apportioned among
the classes so as to maintain the number of directors in each class as nearly equal as possible, but in no case will a decrease in the
number of directors constituting the Board shorten the term of any incumbent director.
The provisions of this Article 35(a) may not be amended without a resolution of the general meeting of the
Company approved by shareholders holding 65% or more of the voting power of the issued and outstanding share capital of the
Company.
(b) Subject to subsection (a), each Director shall be elected by a Shareholders Resolution at the Annual General Meeting
by the vote of the holders of a simple majority of the voting power represented at such meeting in person or by proxy and voting on
such election. .
(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), External Directors shall be elected in accordance with the Companies
Law. An elected External Director shall commence his term from the date of, and shall serve for the period stated in, the resolution
of the General Meeting at which he was elected, unless his office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law.
(d) A Director may serve for multiple terms, provided, however, that the terms of an External Director shall be limited in
accordance with applicable law.
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(e) The General Meeting shall be entitled to remove any Director(s) from office by a Shareholder Resolution approved by
Shareholders holding 65% or more of the voting power of the issued and outstanding share capital of the Company, subject to
applicable law. The Board of Directors shall be entitled to remove from office any Director(s) appointed by the Board of Directors.
36. Qualification of Directors
No Person shall be disqualified to serve as a Director by reason of his not holding shares in the Company.
37. Vacancies in the Board of Directors
(a) Subject to the provisions of Article 35(a), any vacancy in the Board of Directors, however occurring, including a
vacancy resulting from an enlargement of the Board of Directors by resolution of the Board of Directors or from the number of
Directors serving being less than the maximum permitted number, may be filled by resolution of the Board of Directors. A Director
elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected to hold office until the Annual General Meeting at which the term for the other directors of
his class expires, unless his office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of these Articles.
(b) In the event of one or more vacancies in the Board of Directors, the continuing Directors may continue to act in every
matter, provided, however, that if they number less than the minimum number set forth in Article 34(a) hereof, they may only act in
an emergency (as determined in their absolute discretion), may appoint one or more Directors and call one or more General
Meetings for any purpose.
38. Vacation of Office
(a) The office of a Director shall be vacated, ipso facto, upon his death, or if he be found mentally incapacitated, or upon
the conviction of a crime enumerated in the Companies Law or as otherwise provided by applicable law.
(b) The office of a Director shall be vacated by his written resignation. Such resignation shall become effective on the date
fixed therein, or upon the delivery thereof to the Company, whichever is later.
39. Remuneration of Directors
No Director shall be paid any remuneration by the Company for his services as Director except as may be approved
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Law. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law, reimbursement of expenses
incurred by a Director in carrying out his duties as such shall be made pursuant to the policy in this respect as determined by the
Board of Directors and in effect from time to time.
40. Conflict of Interests
(a) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may enter into any contract or otherwise transact any
business with any Director in which contract or business such Director has a Personal Interest, directly or indirectly; and may enter
into any contract of otherwise transact any business with any third party in which contract or business a Director has a Personal
Interest, directly or indirectly.
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(b) A Transaction (other than an Extraordinary Transaction) between the Company and an Office Holder or Controlling
Person of the Company, or in which an Office Holder or Controlling Person of the Company has a Personal Interest, may be
approved by:
(i) the Audit Committee - without any monetary limit; or
(ii) the Board of Directors - without any monetary limit; or
(iii) the Company's authorized officer(s) or director(s) in accordance with the Company’s signatory rights (provided
that no such approval may be given by any signatory who has a Personal Interest in the transaction). Any such approval may relate
to a specific Transaction or to a general category of Transactions.
41. Alternate Directors
(a) A Director may, subject to the consent of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors excluding such Director,
appoint an individual as an alternate for himself (“Alternate Director”), remove such Alternate Director and appoint another
Alternate Director in place of any Alternate Director appointed by him whose office has been vacated for any reason whatsoever.
Unless the appointing Director, by the instrument appointing an Alternate Director or by written notice to the Company, limits such
appointment to a specified period of time or restricts it to a specified meeting or action of the Board of Directors, or otherwise
restricts its scope, the appointment shall be for an indefinite period and for all purposes.
(b) Any notice given to the Company pursuant to Article 41(a) shall become effective on the date fixed therein, or upon
the delivery thereof to the Company, whichever is later.
(c) An Alternate Director shall have all the rights and obligations of the Director who appointed him, provided, however,
that he may not in turn appoint an alternate for himself, and provided further that an Alternate Director shall have no standing at
any meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof while the Director who appointed him is present at such meeting.
(d) An Alternate Director shall alone be responsible for his own acts and omissions, and he shall not be deemed the agent
of the Director who appointed him.
(e) The office of an Alternate Director shall be vacated under the circumstances, mutatis mutandis, set forth in Article 38,
and such office shall ipso facto be vacated if the Director who appointed such Alternate Director ceases to be a Director.
(f) Notwithstanding Article 41(a), (i) no Person shall be appointed as the Alternate Director for more than one Director
and (ii) except as otherwise specifically permitted by the Companies Law, (A) no External Director may appoint an Alternate
Director and (B) no Director may serve as an Alternate Director.
PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
42. Meetings
(a) The Board of Directors may meet and adjourn its meetings according to the Company’s needs but at least once in every
three (3) months, and otherwise regulate such meetings and proceedings as the Directors think fit. Notice of the meetings of the
Board of Directors shall be sent to each Director at the last address that the Director provided to the Company, or via telephone,
facsimile or e-mail message, to the last telephone number, fax number or e-mail address, as applicable, that the Director provided to
the Company.
17

(b) Any two (2) Directors may, at any time, convene a meeting of the Board of Directors, but not less than seventy-two
(72) hours' notice shall be given of any meeting so convened, provided that the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors may convene a meeting of the Board of Directors upon not less than twenty-four (24) hours
written notice, and further provided, that the Board of Directors may convene a meeting without such prior notice with the consent
of all of the Directors who are lawfully entitled to participate in and vote at such meeting (as conclusively determined by the
Secretary or General Counsel, and in the absence of such determination, by the Chairman of the Audit Committee). The notice of a
meeting of the Board of Directors shall describe the agenda for such meeting in reasonable detail, as determined by those
convening such meeting. The failure to give notice to a Director in the manner required hereby may be waived by such Director. In
urgent situations, a meeting of the Board of Directors can be convened without any prior notice with the consent of a majority of
the Directors, including a majority of those who are lawfully entitled to participate in and vote at such meeting (as conclusively
determined by the Secretary or General Counsel, and in the absence of such determination, by the Chairman of the Audit
Committee).
43. Quorum
Unless otherwise unanimously decided by the Board of Directors, a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
constituted by the presence in person or by any other means of communication by which the Directors may hear each other
simultaneously, of at least a majority of the Directors then in office who are lawfully entitled to participate in the meeting and vote
thereon (as conclusively determined by the Secretary or General Counsel, and in the absence of such determination, by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee). No business shall be transacted at a meeting of the Board of Directors unless the requisite
quorum is present as aforesaid.
44.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

(a) The Board of Directors may from time to time elect one of its members to be the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
remove such Chairman from office and appoint another in his place.
(b) The Chairman, if any, of the Board of Directors shall preside at every meeting of the Board of Directors, but if there is
no such Chairman, or if at any meeting he is not present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time fixed for the meeting, or is
unwilling to act as Chairman or has notified the Company that he will not attend such meeting, the Directors present shall choose
one of their number to be the Chairman of such meeting. The office of Chairman shall not, by itself, entitle the holder thereof to
vote at any meeting of the Board of Directors nor shall it entitle such holder to a second or casting vote (without derogating,
however, from the rights of such Chairman to vote as a Director of the Company).
45.

Validity of Acts Despite Defects

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, all acts done bona fide at any meeting of the Board of Directors, or of a
Committee of the Board of Directors, or by any Person(s) acting as Director(s), shall, notwithstanding that it may afterwards be
discovered that there was some defect in the process or in the appointment of the participants in such meetings or any of them or
any Person(s) acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if there were no such defect or
disqualification.
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GENERAL MANAGER
46.

General Manager

(a) The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint one or more Persons, whether or not Directors, as general
managers (the “General Manager(s)”) of the Company and may confer upon such Person(s), and from time to time modify or
revoke, such title(s) (including Managing Director, President, Chief Executive Officer, Director General or any similar or dissimilar
title) and such duties and authorities of the Board of Directors as the Board of Directors may deem fit, subject to such limitations
and restrictions as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe. Such appointment(s) may be either for a fixed term or
without any limitation of time, and the Board of Directors may from time to time (subject to the provisions of the Companies Law
and of any contract between any such Person and the Company) fix his or their compensation terms, remove or dismiss him or
them from office, or assume his or their authorities with respect to a specific matter or period of time.
(b) The General Manager shall have the authority, in his discretion, to appoint any Person to become an Office Holder
(other than a Director) and fix his remuneration. The General Manager shall have the authority, in his discretion, to promote or
demote, or to increase or decrease any remuneration of, any other Office Holder (other than a Director) who reports directly or
indirectly to the General Manager, provided that such matter is not considered an Extraordinary Transaction. Nothing in this Article
46(b) shall derogate from the authority of the Board of Directors.
MINUTES
47.

Minutes

(a) Minutes of each General Meeting and of each meeting of the Board of Directors and any Committees thereof shall be
recorded and duly entered in books provided for that purpose. Such minutes shall, in all events, set forth the names of the persons
present at the meeting and all resolutions adopted thereat.
(b) Any minutes as aforesaid, if purporting to be signed by the Chairman of the meeting, shall constitute prima facie
evidence of the matters recorded therein.
DIVIDENDS
48.

Declaration and Payment of Dividends

(a) Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors may from time to time declare, and cause the Company to pay,
such dividend as may appear to the Board of Directors to be appropriate. Subject to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors
shall determine the time for payment of such dividends, and the record date for determining the shareholders entitled thereto.
(b) The Company’s obligation to pay dividends or any other amount in respect of shares may be set-off by the Company
against any indebtedness, however arising, liquidated or non-liquidated, of the Person entitled to receive the dividend. The
provisions contained in this Article shall not prejudice any other right or remedy vested with the Company pursuant to these
Articles or otherwise.
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49.

Amount Payable by Way of Dividends

Subject to the rights of the holders of shares with special rights as to dividends, any dividend paid by the Company shall be
allocated among the shareholders entitled thereto in proportion to their respective holdings of the shares in respect of which such
dividend is being paid.
50. Interest
No dividend shall carry interest as against the Company.
51.

Form of Dividend

Upon the declaration of the Board of Directors, a dividend may be paid, wholly or partly, by the distribution of cash or
specific assets of the Company or by distribution of securities of the Company or of any other companies, or in any one or more of
such ways.
52.

Retention of Dividends

The Board of Directors may retain any dividend or other moneys payable or property distributable in respect of a share in
respect of which any Person is, under Articles 17 or 18, entitled to become a shareholder, or which any Person is, under said
Articles, entitled to transfer, until such Person shall become a shareholder in respect of such share or shall transfer the same.
53.

Unclaimed Dividends

All unclaimed dividends or other moneys payable in respect of a share may be invested or otherwise made use of by and for
the benefit of the Company until claimed. The payment by the Company of any unclaimed dividend or such other moneys into a
separate account shall not constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof, and any dividend unclaimed after a period of seven
(7) years from the date of declaration of such dividend, and any such other moneys unclaimed after a like period from the date the
same were payable, shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company, provided, however, that the Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, cause the Company to pay any such dividend or such other moneys, or any part thereof, to a Person who would have
been entitled thereto had the same not reverted to the Company.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
54. Financial Statements
The Board of Directors shall cause accurate books of account to be kept in accordance with the provisions of applicable law.
Such books of account shall be kept at the Registered Office of the Company, or at such other place or places as the Board of
Directors may think fit, and they shall always be open to inspection by all Directors. No shareholder, not being a Director, shall
have any right to inspect any account or book or other similar document of the Company, except as conferred by law or authorized
by the Board of Directors or by a Shareholders Resolution. The Company shall not be required to send copies of its financial
statements to the shareholders.
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AUDITORS
55.

Outside Auditor

The outside auditor of the Company shall be recommended by the Audit Committee and elected by Shareholder Resolution
at each Annual General Meeting and shall serve until the next Annual General Meeting or its earlier removal or replacement by
Shareholder Resolution. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to fix, in its discretion, the remuneration of the auditor for
audit and any other services, or to delegate such authority to the Audit Committee.
56.

Internal Auditor

The internal auditor of the Company shall be subject to the administrative supervision of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and shall present all its proposed work plans to the Audit Committee, which shall have the authority to approve them
subject to any modifications in its discretion.
EXEMPTION, INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY
57. Exemption, Insurance and Indemnity
(a)

(b)

Insurance of Office Holders:
i. The Company may insure the liability of any Office Holder therein to the fullest extent permitted by law.
ii. Without derogating from the aforesaid the Company may enter into a contract to insure the liability of an Office
Holder therein for an obligation imposed on him in consequence of an act done in his capacity as an Office
Holder therein, in any of the following cases:
1. A breach of the duty of care vis-à-vis the Company or vis-à-vis another Person;
2. A breach of the duty of loyalty vis-à-vis the Company, provided that the Office Holder acted in good faith and
had reasonable basis to believe that the act would not harm the Company;
3. A monetary obligation imposed on him in favor of another Person;
4. Reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney fees, incurred by the Office Holder as a result of an
administrative enforcement proceeding instituted against him. Without derogating from the generality of the
foregoing, such expenses will include a payment imposed on the Office Holder in favor of an injured party as set
forth in Section 52(54)(a)(1)(a) of the Israeli Securities Law, 1968, as amended (the "Securities Law") and
expenses that the Office Holder incurred in connection with a proceeding under Chapters H'3, H'4 or I'1 of the
Securities Law, including reasonable legal expenses, which term includes attorney fees; or
5. Any other matter in respect of which it is permitted or will be permitted under applicable law to insure the
liability of an Office Holder in the Company.
Indemnity of Office Holders:
i. The Company may indemnify an Office Holder therein, retroactively or pursuant to an advance undertaking, to
the fullest extent permitted by law. Without derogating from the aforesaid the Company may indemnify an
Office Holder in the Company for liability or expense imposed on him in consequence of an action made by him
in the capacity of his position as an Office Holder in the Company, as follows:
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Any financial liability he incurs or imposed on him in favor of another Person in accordance with a judgment,
including a judgment given in a settlement or a judgment of an arbitrator, approved by a court.
2. Reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees, incurred by the Office Holder or which he was ordered to
pay by a court, within the framework of proceedings filed against him by or on behalf of the Company, or by a
third party, or in a criminal proceeding in which he was acquitted, or in a criminal proceeding in which he was
convicted of a criminal offense which does not require proof of criminal intent.
3. Reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees he incurs due to an investigation or proceeding conducted
against him by an authority authorized to conduct such an investigation or proceeding, and which was ended
without filing an indictment against him and without being subject to a financial obligation as a substitute for a
criminal proceeding, or that was ended without filing an indictment against him, but with the imposition of a
financial obligation, as a substitute for a criminal proceeding relating to an offence which does not require proof
of criminal intent, within the meaning of the relevant terms in the Companies Law, or in connection with an
administrative enforcement proceeding or a financial sanction. Without derogating from the generality of the
foregoing, such expenses will include a payment imposed on the Office Holder in favor of an injured party as set
forth in Section 52(54)(a)(1)(a) of the Securities Law, and expenses that the Office Holder incurred in
connection with a proceeding under Chapters H'3, H'4 or I'1 of the Securities Law, including reasonable legal
expenses, which term includes attorney fees.
i. Advance Indemnity The Company may indemnify an Office Holder therein, except as provided by applicable
law. The Company may give an advance undertaking to indemnify an Office Holder therein in respect of the
following matters:
1. Matters as detailed in Article 57(b)(i)(1), provided, however, that the undertaking is restricted to events, which in
the opinion of the Board of Directors, are foreseeable in light of the Company’s actual activity at the time of
granting the obligation to indemnify and is limited to a sum or measurement determined by the Board of
Directors as reasonable under the circumstances. The indemnification undertaking shall specify the events that,
in the opinion of the Board of Directors are foreseeable in light of the Company’s actual activity at the time of
grant of the indemnification and the sum or measurement, which the Board of Directors determined to be
reasonable under the circumstances;
2. Matters as detailed in Article 57(b)(i)(2) and 57(b)(i)(3); and
3. Any matter permitted by applicable law.
Exemption of Office Holders. The Company may exempt an Office Holder therein in advance and retroactively for
all or any of his liability for damage in consequence of a breach of the duty of care vis-à-vis the Company, to the
fullest extent permitted by law.
Insurance, Exemption and Indemnity - General.
i. The provisions of this Article 57 with regard to insurance, exemption and indemnity are not and shall not limit
the Company in any way with regard to its entering into an insurance contract and/or with regard to the grant of
indemnity and/or exemption in connection with a person who is not an Office Holder of the Company, including
employees, contractors or consultants of the Company, all subject to any applicable law.
ii. Articles 57(a) through 57(d) shall apply mutatis mutandis in respect of the grant of insurance, exemption and/or
indemnification for Persons serving on behalf of the Company as Office Holders in companies controlled by the
Company, or in which the Company has an interest.
1.

(c)

(d)
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An undertaking to insure, exempt and indemnify an Office Holder in the Company as set forth above shall
remain in full force and effect even following the termination of such Office Holder’s service with the Company.
iv. Any amendment to the Companies Law, the Securities Law or any other applicable law adversely affecting the
right of any Office Holder to be indemnified or insured pursuant to this Article 57 shall be prospective in effect,
and shall not affect the Company’s obligation or ability to indemnify or insure an Office Holder for any act or
omission occurring prior to such amendment, unless otherwise provided by the Companies Law, the Securities
Law or such other applicable law.
iii.

NOTICES
58.

Notices

(a) Any written notice or other document may be served by the Company upon any shareholder either personally, or by
facsimile transmission, or by sending it by prepaid mail (airmail or overnight air courier, if being sent from any country to a
destination outside such country) or electronic mail addressed to such shareholder at his address as set forth in the Register of
Shareholders or such other address as he may have designated in writing for the receipt of notices and other documents. Any
written notice or other document may be served by any shareholder upon the Company by tendering the same in person to the
Secretary or the General Manager of the Company at the principal office of the Company, or by facsimile transmission, or by
sending it by prepaid registered mail (airmail or overnight air courier if being sent from any country outside Israel) to the Company
at its registered office. Any such notice or other document shall be deemed to have been served (i) in the case of mailing, three (3)
days after it has been posted, or when actually received by the addressee if sooner than three (3) days, after it has been posted; (ii)
in the case of overnight air courier, on the second business day following the day sent; (iii) in the case of personal delivery, on the
date such notice was actually tendered in person to such shareholder (or to the Secretary or the General Manager); (iv) in the case
of facsimile transmission, on the date on which the sender receives automatic electronic confirmation that such notice was
successfully transmitted; or (v) in the case of electronic mail, on the date on which the sender receives telephonic or written
confirmation that such notice was received. If a notice is, in fact, received by the addressee, it shall be deemed to have been duly
served, when received, notwithstanding that it was defectively addressed or failed, in some respect, to comply with the provisions
of this Article 58(a).
(b) All notices to be given to the shareholders shall, with respect to any share to which Persons are jointly entitled, be
given to whichever of such Persons is named first in the Register of Shareholders, and any notice so given shall be sufficient notice
to the holders of such share.
(c) Any shareholder whose address is not specified in the Register of Shareholders, and who shall not have designated in
writing an address for the receipt of notices, shall not be entitled to receive any notice from the Company.
RIGHTS OF SIGNATURE
59.

Rights of Signature

The Board of Directors shall be entitled to authorize any Person or Persons (who need not be officers or Directors) to act
and sign on behalf of the Company, and the acts and signature of such Person(s) on behalf of the Company with the Company’s
stamp or printed name shall bind the Company insofar as such Person(s) acted and signed within the scope of his or their authority.
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WINDING UP
60. Winding Up
(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Articles, a Shareholders Resolution approved by 75% of the voting
shares represented at such meeting in person or by proxy is required to approve the voluntary winding up of the Company.
(b) If the Company be wound up, liquidated or dissolved, then, subject to applicable law and to the rights of the holders of
shares with special rights upon winding up, if any, the assets of the Company legally available for distribution among the
shareholders, after payment of all debts and other liabilities of the Company, shall be distributed to the shareholders in proportion to
the nominal value of their respective holdings of the shares in respect of which such distribution is being made, provided, however,
that if a class of shares has no nominal value, then the assets of the Company legally available for distribution among the holders of
such class shall be distributed to them in proportion of their respective holdings of the shares in respect of which such distribution
is made.
***
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT dated as of December 17, 2014, by and between ReWalk Robotics, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"), with offices at 33 Locke Dr Suite 204 Marlboro, MA 01752 and Kevin Hershberger (the "Employee") of 158
Kettle Hole Rd, Bolton, Ma. 01740.
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS the Company desires to enter into employment with the Employee for the period provided in this Agreement, and
the Employee is willing to accept such employment with the Company on a full-time basis, all in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth below;
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereof and the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties
hereto hereby covenant and agree as follows:
1.
Employment. (a) The Company hereby agrees to employ the Employee, and the Employee hereby agrees to accept
such employment with the Company, beginning on January 1, 2015 and continuing for the period set forth in Section 2 hereof, all upon the
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

(b) The Employee affirms and represents that as of the commencement of his employment by the Company on January 1,
2015, he will be under no obligation to any former employer or other party which is in any way inconsistent with, or which imposes any
restriction upon, the Employee's acceptance of employment hereunder with the Company, the employment of the Employee by the Company,
or the Employee's undertakings under this Agreement.
2.
Term of Employment. (a) Unless earlier terminated as provided in this Agreement, the term of the Employee's
employment under this Agreement shall be for a period beginning on January 1, 2015 through January 1, 2016 (the "Initial Term").

(b) The term of the Employee's employment under this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional twelve month
terms (the "Renewal Term") upon the expiration of the Initial Term or Additional Terms unless the Company or the Employee delivers to the
other, at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or Additional Terms, written notice specifying that the term of the
Employee's employment will not be renewed at the end of the Initial or Additional Terms. If the contract is not renewed the severance terms of
section 10(b) would take effect. The period from January 1, 2015 through January 1, 2016 or, in the event that the Employee's employment
hereunder is earlier terminated as provided herein or renewed as provided in this Section 2(b), such shorter or longer period, as the case may
be, is hereinafter called the "Employment Term".
3.
Duties. The Employee shall be employed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, shall faithfully and
competently perform such duties as inhere in such position and as are specified in the Bylaws of the Company and shall also perform and
discharge such other executive employment duties and responsibilities as the CEO of the Company shall from time to time determine. The
Employee shall perform his duties principally at the executive offices of the Company, with such travel to such other locations from time to
time as the CEO of the Company may reasonably prescribe. Except as may otherwise be approved in advance by the CEO of the Company, and
except during vacation periods and reasonable periods of absence due to sickness, personal injury or other disability or non-profit public service
activities, the Employee shall devote his full time throughout the Employment Term to the services required of him hereunder; The Employee
shall render his business services exclusively to the Company (which term includes any of its subsidiaries or affiliates). During the
Employment Term, the Employee shall use his best efforts, judgment and energy to improve and advance the business and interests of the
Company in a manner consistent with the duties of his position. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employee shall be entitled to participate as
a director and investor in other business enterprises and to engage in activities related thereto so long as such participation and activities do not
(i) involve a substantial amount of the Employee's time, (ii) impair the Employee's ability to perform his duties under this Agreement or (iii)
violate the provisions of Section 12 of this Agreement.
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4.
Salary. As compensation for the complete and satisfactory performance by the Employee of the services to be
performed by the Employee hereunder during the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Employee a base salary at the annual rate of
Two Hundred-Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) (said amount, together with any increases thereto as may be determined from time to time
by the Compensation Committee of the Company in its sole discretion, being hereinafter referred to as "Salary"). Any Salary payable hereunder
shall be paid in regular intervals in accordance with the Company's payroll practices from time to time in effect. Employee shall additionally be
eligible to participate in annual merit increases beginning January 1, 2016.
5.
Bonus. The Employee will be eligible to participate in the Company's bonus plan, with eligibility for an annual bonus
will of up to thirty-five percent (35%) of the Employee's then-base salary, assuming Company and individual objectives are met (the
"Bonus"). Bonus percentage will be subject to specific objectives and accomplishments as are mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors
and the Employee. Payment of such bonuses will be subject to the approval of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.
Performance that exceeds the agreed upon objectives will allow for payment beyond the 35% target.
6.
Sign On Bonus. The Employee will receive a one-time sign on bonus of $84,000 to be paid at the end of Q1 2015. If
the employee leaves the company at any time during the first year, any pro-rated portion of the sign-on bonus remaining must be returned.
7.
Equity Compensation. Pursuant to and subject to the terms of a stock option plan of the Company (the "SOP"), the
Employee will be granted options to purchase shares of stock. Board approval of the shares and pricing will be done as soon as practically
possible after commencing employment. The initial shares that have been approved by the compensation committee are 77,469 shares. (0.65%
of outstanding shares). The company will consider additional equity awards on an annual basis as per the compensation policy approved by
the shareholders.
8.

Other Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Employee shall:

be eligible to participate (on terms at least as favorable as other executive employees) in employee fringe benefits and
pension and/or profit sharing plans that may be provided by the Company for its executive employees in accordance with the provisions of
any such plans, as the same may be in effect from time to time;
(i)

(ii)
be entitled to fully paid Harvard Pilgrim Family (PPO) or equivalent medical and dental coverage under the Company's
health care policy for its executive employees in accordance with the provisions of such Company health care policy, as the same may be in
effect from time to time;
be entitled to the number of paid vacation days in each calendar year determined by the Company from time to time for its
executive officers, provided that such number of paid vacation days in each calendar year shall not be less than twenty (20) work days (four
(4) calendar weeks); the Employee shall also be entitled to all paid holidays given by the Company to its senior executive officers;
(iii)

(iv)
be entitled to sick leave, sick pay and disability benefits in accordance with any Company policy that may be applicable to
senior executive employees from time to time; and
(v)
be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by the Employee in
the performance of his duties hereunder in accordance with the Company's normal policies from time to time in effect.
9.

Confidential Information. The Employee hereby covenants, agrees and acknowledges as follows:

(a)
The Employee has and will have access to and will participate in the development of or be acquainted with
confidential or proprietary information and trade secrets related to the business of the
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Company and any other present or future subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company (collectively with the Company, the "Companies"),
including but not limited to (i) inventions; designs; specifications; materials to be used in products and manufacturing processes;
customer lists; claims histories, adjustments and settlements and related records and compilations of information; the identity, lists or
descriptions of any new customers, referral sources or organizations; financial statements; cost reports or other financial information;
contract proposals or bidding information; business plans; training and operations methods and manuals; personnel records; software
programs; reports and correspondence; premium structures; and management systems, policies or procedures, including related forms
and manuals; (ii) information pertaining to future developments such as future marketing or acquisition plans or ideas, and potential
new business locations and (iii) all other tangible and intangible property, which are used in the business and operations of the
Companies but not made public. The information and trade secrets relating to the business of the Companies described hereinabove in
this paragraph (a) are hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Confidential Information", provided that the term Confidential
Information shall not include any information (x) that is or becomes generally publicly available (other than as a result of violation of
this Agreement by the Employee), (y) that the Employee receives on a non-confidential basis from a source (other than the Companies
or their representatives) that is not known by him to be bound by an obligation of secrecy or confidentiality to any of the Companies or
(z) that was in the possession of the Employee prior to disclosure by the Companies.
(b)
The Employee shall not disclose, use or make known for his or another's benefit any Confidential information or use
such Confidential information in any way except as is in the best interests of the Companies in the performance of the Employee's
duties under this Agreement. The Employee may disclose Confidential Information when required by a third party and applicable law
or judicial process, but only after providing immediate notice to the Company at any third party's request for such information, which
notice shall include the Employee's intent with respect to such request.
(c)
The Employee acknowledges and agrees that a remedy at law for any breach or threatened breach of the provisions
of this Section 8 would be inadequate and, therefore, agrees that the Companies shall be entitled to injunctive relief in addition to any
other available rights and remedies in case of any such breach or threatened breach; provided, however, that nothing contained herein
shall be construed as prohibiting the Companies from pursuing any other rights and remedies available for any such breach or
threatened breach.

The Employee agrees that upon termination of his employment with the Company for any reason, the Employee
shall forthwith return to the Company all Confidential Information in whatever form maintained (including, without limitation,
computer discs and other electronic media).
(d)

(e)
The obligations of the Employee under this Section 8 shall, except as otherwise provided herein, survive the
termination of the Employment Term and the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
(f)
Without limiting the generality of Section 13 hereof, the Employee hereby expressly agrees that the foregoing
provisions of this Section 8 shall be binding upon the Employee's heirs, successors and legal representatives.
10.
(a)
(i)

Termination.
The Employee's employment hereunder shall be terminated upon the occurrence of any of the following:

death of the Employee;

the Employee's inability to perform his duties on account of disability or incapacity for a period of one hundred eighty (180)
or more days, whether or not consecutive, within any period of twelve (12) consecutive months;
(ii)
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(iii)
the Company giving written notice, at any time, to the Employee that the Employee's employment is being terminated "for
cause" (as defined below); or

the Company giving written notice, at any time, to the Employee that the Employee's employment is being terminated other
than pursuant to clause (i), (ii) or (iii) above.
(iv)

The following actions, failures and events by or affecting the Employee shall constitute "cause" for termination within the meaning of
clause (iii) above: (A) an indictment for or conviction of the Employee of, or the entering of a plea of nolo contendere by the
Employee with respect to, having committed a felony, (B) abuse of controlled substances or alcohol or acts of dishonesty or moral
turpitude by the Employee that are detrimental to the Company, (C) acts or omissions by the Employee that the Employee knew were
likely to damage the business of the Company, (D) negligence by the Employee in the performance of, or disregard by the Employee
of, his material obligations under this Agreement or otherwise relating to his employment, which negligence or disregard continue unremedied for a period of fifteen (15) days after written notice thereof to the Employee or (E) failure by the Employee to obey the
reasonable and lawful orders and policies of the Board of Directors that are consistent with the provisions of this Agreement
(provided that, in the case of an indictment described written notice of such proposed termination and a reasonable opportunity to
discuss the matter with the CEO in clause (A) above, and in the case of clause (B), (C) or (E) above, the Employee shall have
received of the Company, followed by a notice that the CEO of the Company adheres to its position.
(b)
In the event that the Employee's employment is terminated pursuant to clause (iv) of Section 9(a) above, at any time
during his employment, the Company shall pay to the Employee, as severance pay or liquidated damages or both, monthly payments at the
rate per annum of his Salary and Bonus (and the replacement cost of his benefits as described in Section 7 above) at the time of such
termination for a period from the date of such termination to the date which is six months after such termination.
(c)
The employee shall be entitled to voluntary leave and receive severance as defined in Section 10 (b) if the company
(i) moves the primary office more than 75 miles from the current location, (ii) reduces his title or primary responsibilities as CFO

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary expressed or implied herein, except as required by applicable law and
except as set forth in Section 9(b) above, the Company (and its affiliates) shall not be obligated to make any payments to the Employee or on
his behalf of whatever kind or nature by reason of the Employee's cessation of employment (including, without limitation, by reason of
termination of the Employee's employment by the Company's for "cause"), other than (i) such amounts, if any, of his Salary as shall have
accrued and remained unpaid as of the date of said cessation and (ii) such other amounts, if any, which may be then otherwise payable to the
Employee pursuant to the terms of the Company's benefits plans.
(d)

(e)

No interest shall accrue on or be paid with respect to any portion of any payments hereunder.

In the event of a change of control via a merger or acquisition of the company, the severance as outlined in section10
(b) would be modified as follows: If the employee is terminated in less than12 months post the closing of the change of control event;
severance will increase from six months to twelve months.
(f)

11.
Change of Control In the event the company is subject to a merger or acquisition where the employee is terminated
in less than 12 months after the closing of the transaction, vesting of the outstanding equity will be accelerated.
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12.

Non-Assignability.

(a)
Neither this Agreement nor any right or interest hereunder shall be assignable by the Employee or his beneficiaries
or legal representatives without the Company's prior written consent; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 10(a) shall preclude the
Employee from designating a beneficiary to receive any benefit payable hereunder upon his death or incapacity.

(b)
Except as required by Jaw, no right to receive payments under this Agreement shall be subject to anticipation,
commutation, alienation, sale, assignment, encumbrance, charge, pledge, or hypothecation or to exclusion, attachment, levy or similar process
or to assignment by operation of law, and any attempt, voluntary or involuntary, to effect any such action shall be null, void and of no effect.
1l. Inventions. Any and all inventions, innovations or improvements ("inventions") made, developed or created by the
Employee (whether at the request or suggestion of the Company or otherwise, whether alone or in conjunction with others, and whether
during regular hours of work or otherwise) during the Employment Term which may be directly or indirectly useful in, or relate to, the
business of the Company shall be promptly and fully disclosed by the Employee to the Board of Directors of the Company and shall be the
Company's exclusive property as against the Employee, and the Employee shall promptly deliver to an appropriate representative of the
Company as designated by the Board of Directors all papers, drawings, models, data and other material relating to any inventions made,
developed or created by him as aforesaid. The Employee shall, at the request of the Company and without any payment therefor, execute any
documents necessary or advisable in the opinion of the Company's counsel to direct issuance of patents or copyrights to the Company with
respect to such inventions as are to be the Company's exclusive property as against the Employee or to vest in the Company title to such
inventions as against the Employee. The expense of securing any such patent or copyright shall be borne by the Company.
12.

Restrictive Covenants.

(a)
Competition. During the Employment Term and, in the event the Employee's employment is terminated by the
Company pursuant to clause (iii) or (iv) of Section 9(a) above, during the twelve (12) month period following such termination (provided that,
in the case of a termination pursuant to clause (iv) of said Section 9(a), any payments required pursuant to Section 9(b) hereof are made in full
and in a timely fashion)), the Employee will not directly or indirectly (as a director, officer, executive employee, manager, consultant.,
independent contractor, advisor or otherwise) engage in competition with, or own any interest in, perform any services for, participate in or be
connected with any business or organization which engages in competition with the Company within the meaning of Section 12(d), provided,
however, that the provisions of this Section 12(a) shall not be deemed to prohibit the Employee's ownership of not more than two percent
(2%) of the total shares of all classes of stock outstanding of any publicly held company in competition with the Company, or ownership,
whether through direct or indirect stock holdings or otherwise, of one percent (!%) or more of any other business in competition with the
Company. The geographic territory within which this Section 12(a) applies is all of the United States of America, Europe and Asia.
(b)
Non-Solicitation. During the Employment Term and during the twelve (12) month period following the end of the
Employment Term for any reason whatsoever (or, if later, the twelve ( 12) month period following termination of the Employee's employment
with the Company), provided that payments, if any, required pursuant to Section 9(b) hereof are made in full and in a timely fashion, the
Employee will not directly or indirectly induce or attempt to induce any employee of any of the Companies to leave the employ of the
Company, or in any way interfere with the relationship between the Company and any employee thereof.

Non-Interference. During the Employment Term and, in the event the Employee's employment is terminated by the
Company pursuant to clause (iii) or (iv) of Section 9(a) above, during the twelve (12) month period following such termination (provided that,
in the case of a termination pursuant to clause (iv) of said Section 9(a), any payments required pursuant to Section 9(b) hereof are made in full
and in a
(c)
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timely fashion)), the Employee will not directly or indirectly hire, engage, send any work to, place orders with, or in any manner be
associated with any supplier, contractor, subcontractor or other business relation of the Company if such action by him would have a material
adverse effect on the business, assets or financial condition of the Company, or materially interfere with the relationship between any such
person or entity and the Company.
(d)
Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Section 10, a person or entity (including, without limitation, the Employee)
shall be deemed to be a competitor of the Company, or a person or entity (including, without limitation, the Employee) shall be deemed to be
engaging in competition with the Company, if such person or entity is engaged in a business involving robotic technologies designed to allow
mobility of paralyzed patients.
(e)
Certain Representations of the Employee. In connection with the foregoing provisions of this Section 12, the
Employee represents that his experience, capabilities and circumstances are such that such provisions will not prevent him from earning a
livelihood. The Employee further agrees that the limitations set forth in this Section 12 (including, without limitation, time and territorial
limitations) are reasonable and properly required for the adequate protection of the current and future businesses of the Companies. It is
understood and agreed that the covenants made by the Employee in this Section 12 (and. in Section 8 hereof) shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.
(f)
Injunctive Relief. The Employee acknowledges and agrees that a remedy at law for any breach or threatened breach
of the provisions of Section 12 hereof would be inadequate and, therefore, agrees that the Company shall be entitled to injunctive relief in
addition to any other available rights and remedies in cases of any such breach or threatened breach; provided, however, that nothing
contained herein shall be construed as prohibiting the Company from pursuing any other rights and remedies available for any such breach or
threatened breach.
13.
Binding Effect. Without limiting or diminishing the effect of Section 8 or Section 12 hereof, this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, legal representatives and assigns.

Notices. All notices which are required or may be given pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be sufficient in all respects if given in writing and (i) delivered personally, (ii) mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested and postage prepaid, (iii) sent via a nationally recognized overnight courier or (iv) sent via facsimile confirmed in writing to the
recipient, if to the Company at the Company's principal place of business, and if to the Employee, at his home address most recently filed with
the Company, or to such other address or addresses as either party shall have designated in writing to the other party hereto, provided,
however, that any notice sent by certified or registered mail shall be deemed delivered on the date of delivery as evidenced by the return
receipt.
14.

15.
Law Governing. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

16. Severability. The Employee agrees that in the event that any court of competent jurisdiction shall finally hold that any
provision of Section 8 or 12 hereof is void or constitutes an unreasonable restriction against the Employee, the provisions of such Section 8 or
12 shall not be rendered void but shall apply with respect to such extent as such court may judicially determine constitutes a reasonable
restriction under the circumstances. If any part of this Agreement other than Section 8 or 12 is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, illegible or incapable of being enforced in whole or in part by reason of any rule of law or public policy, such part shall be deemed to
be severed from the remainder of this Agreement for the purpose only of the particular legal proceedings in question and all other covenants
and provisions of this Agreement shall in every other respect continue in full force and effect and no covenant or provision shall be deemed
dependent upon any other covenant or provision.
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Waiver. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants or conditions hereof shall not be
deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power hereunder at any one or
more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or times.
17.

18.
Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire and final expression of the agreement of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, oral and written, between the parties hereto with respect
to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by an instrument in writing signed by both parties hereto.
19.
Countemarts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Employee have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as of the day and
year first above written.
/s/ Kevin Hershberger
Kevin Hershberger
158 Kettle Hole Rd
Bolton, Ma. 01740

/s/ Larry Jasinski
Larry Jasinski
Chief Executive Officer
ReWalk Robotics, Inc
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EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of the [17] day of [Jan], 2011 by and
between Mr Larry Jasinski, a resident of 33 Presidential Drive, Southborough, MA USA 01772 (the “Employee”), and Argo Medical
Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation in formation (the “Company”).
WHEREAS, the Company desires to employ Employee, and Employee desires to be employed by the Company, upon the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, and intending to be legally bound, the
parties agree as follows:
1.

Employment and Term. The Company hereby employs Employee, and Employee hereby accepts employment with the Company, as
Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “Position”) for a period commencing on February 15, 2012 (the “Commencement
Date”) and continuing until terminated pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 hereof (the “Term”).
2.
Duties. During the Term, Employee shall serve the Company faithfully and to the best of his ability and shall devote his full time,
attention, skill and efforts to the performance of the duties required by or appropriate for the Position, and shall (i) observe the Company’s
policies and standards of conduct, as well as customary standards of business conduct, including any standards prescribed by law or regulation,
(ii) perform his duties hereunder in a manner that preserves and protects the Company’s business reputation, and (iii) perform such services as
may be necessary or beneficial in carrying out any of the foregoing. As Chief Executive Officer, Employee shall have the responsibility and
authority to direct the worldwide operations of Company and its international affiliates. Employee will be reporting directly to the Company's
Board of Directors (the "Company's Board") and to such other person(s) (collectively, the “Designated Person”) who may be designated by
the Company Board from time to time.
3.
Other Business Activities. During the Term, Employee will not, without the prior written consent of the Designated Person in the
Designated Person's sole discretion and except as set forth in Exhibit 3 hereto, engage in any other business activities, except activities in
connection with charitable or civic activities and serving as an executor, trustee or in other similar fiduciary capacity; provided, that such
activities do not interfere with his performance of his responsibilities and obligations pursuant to this Agreement.
4.
Board Seat. The Company shall recommend to the shareholders of Argo Medical Technologies Ltd, the parent company of the
Company (the "Parent") to amend the Articles of Association of the Parent such that the Employee shall, by virtue of his Position, become a
member of the Board of Directors of the Parent (the "Parent Board"). The Company shall also recommend to the stockholders of the Company
that the Employee shall, by virtue of his Position, become a member of the Company's Board.
5.
Compensation. The Company shall pay Employee, and Employee hereby agrees to accept, as sole compensation for all services
rendered hereunder and for Employee’s covenants provided for in Sections 6, 7 and 8 hereof, the compensation set forth in this Section 5.
5.1 Base Salary. The Company shall pay Employee a base salary at the annual rate of Three Hundred and Twenty Five Thousand
United States dollars (US $325,000) (the “Base Salary”). The Base Salary shall be inclusive of all applicable income and other taxes and
charges that are required by law to be withheld by the Company, are requested to be withheld by Employee, and shall be withheld and paid in
accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practice for its similarly situated employees from time to time in effect. The Designated Person
shall review the Base Salary on an annual basis and the Company may, in its discretion, increase the Base Salary following such review, it
being agreed that the intent of the Company is to maintain Employee’s Base Salary at a competitive level.
5.2 Bonus Program. Employee shall be entitled to an annual bonus (the “Bonus”) in an amount (inclusive of all applicable income,
social security and other taxes and charges that are required by law to be withheld by the Company), in the aggregate amount of up to thirty
five per cent (35%) of the Base Salary, based on the achievement of such written individual and corporate annual measurable objectives (the
“Objectives”) as the Company's Board and the Employee shall mutually determine prior to the beginning of the calendar year for which such
Objectives are set. The Company’s Board and Employee will work together diligently and in good faith to define such Objectives in a timely
manner. The Board acknowledges that the Objectives must be based on factors reasonably within Employee’s control.
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5.3 Stock Options.
5.3.1 Subject to a resolution of the Parent Board, the Parent shall grant to the Employee (i) an option (the “Option”) to purchase
Option Shares, as defined in Section 5.3.7(C) below and (ii) an additional option (the “Exit Option”) to purchase the Exit Option Shares as
defined in Section 5.3.7(A) below. Such grants shall occur within forty-five days of Employee’s assumption of the Position.
5.3.2 Both Option and the Exit Option shall have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the ordinary shares of the
Parent, as of the date of grant and as shall be solely determined by the Parent Board in its reasonable discretion relying on accepted methods of
valuation accurately and fairly applied.
5.3.3 The Option and Exit Option shall be subject to the terms of the Parent Share Incentive Plan or any other plan approved by the
Parent Board (the “Plan”) and in accordance with an award agreement to be entered into with the Employee in the form approved by the Parent
Board.
5.3.4 Subject to the terms in this Section 5.3, the Option shall be subject to vesting over a four (4) year period from the date of
grant as follows: (i) 25% (i.e.: 1,720 of the Option Shares) shall be vested one year after the date of grant, and (ii) 2.0833% (i.e.: 143.3611 of
the Option Shares) shall at the end of each month thereafter - in each case, provided that the Employee continue to be employed by the
Company at the applicable date of vesting.
5.3.5 Notwithstanding Section 5.3.4 above, the following additional vesting terms will apply under the circumstances provided
below:
(A)
100% of the then unvested Option shall be automatically vested upon the occurrence of an Exit Event (as
defined in Section 5.3.7(B) below) and the termination of Employee’s employment within 12 months following such Exit Event by the
Company or the successor company other than a termination for cause (as defined in Section 9.3.1); or
(B)
upon a termination of Employee’s employment by the Company without cause or by the Employee for
Good Reason prior to an Exit Event, any unvested portion of the Option and Exit Option which would have vested during the 6 months
following such termination had the Employee remained employed by the Company over such period will automatically be vested.
5.3.6 Subject to the terms in this Section 5.3, (i) the Exit Option shall be fully vested and exercisable into shares only in the event
of an Exit Event and provided that the Employee continue to be employed by the Company at such date of vesting; and (ii) if the Exit Event is
an IPO (as defined in Section 5.3.7(C) below), any sale of shares by Employee shall be subject to any and all restrictions imposed on sale of
shares in connection with the IPO, whether by the underwriters in such IPO or otherwise.
5.3.7 In this Agreement:
(A) "Exit Option Shares" means 3,441 ordinary B shares of the Parent, (representing two percent (2%) of the Parent
issued and outstanding Share capital on a as-converted basis on the date of the Third Closing Consummation Date (as defined in Section
5.3.7(F) hereto)), based on the following vesting schedule: (i) in the event of an Exit Event in which the consideration to the shareholders of the
Parent shall be greater than Two Hundred Million United States dollars (US $200,000,000) but lesser than Four Hundred Million United States
dollars (US $400,000,000), then only 50% of the Exit Option shall vest immediately prior to the Exit Event and immediately thereafter the Exit
Option shall automatically terminate; or (ii) in the event of an Exit Event in which the consideration to the shareholders of the Parent shall be
greater than Four Hundred Million United States dollars (US $400,000,000) then 100% of the Exit Option shall vest immediately prior to the
Exit Event, or (iii) in the event of an Exit Event in which the consideration to the shareholders of the Parent shall be lesser than Two Hundred
Million United States dollars (US $200,000,000), then no portion of the Exit Option shall vest and the Exit Option shall automatically
terminate.
(B) "Exit Event" means (i) a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Parent, (ii) a sale (including an
exchange) of all or substantially all of the shares of the Parent, (iii) a merger, acquisition, consolidation or amalgamation in which the Parent is
not the surviving corporation, (iv) a reverse merger in which the Parent is the surviving corporation but the shares of the Parent outstanding
immediately preceding the merger are converted by virtue of the merger into other property, whether in the form of securities and/or cash or
otherwise (v) a scheme of arrangement for the purpose of effecting such sale, merger, acquisition, consolidation or amalgamation, (vi) such
other transaction that is determined by the Parent Board to be a transaction having a similar effect, or (vii) an IPO.
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(C)
"IPO" means the consummation of the Parent's initial public offering of its ordinary shares pursuant
to an effective registration statement under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any equivalent law of another jurisdiction
in any stock exchange.

"Option Shares" means 6,881 ordinary B shares of the Parent, (representing four percent (4%) of the
Parent share issued and outstanding Share capital on a as-converted basis on the Third Closing Consummation Date).
(E)
"Termination Event" means an event of termination of Employee's employment by the successor company
(other than for cause) within six months of the consummation of the Exit Event.
(F)
"Third Closing Consummation Date" means the date on which the Company shall consummate the Third
Closing (as defined in Section 3.4 to the Series C preferred Share Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company and certain of its current
shareholders on July 26, 2011).
5.3.8 In the event that the Company is divested by the Parent or becomes an independent entity through other restructuring, and if
Employee elects to remain with the Company, then Employee’s Option and Exit Option shall be granted at the Company level on terms mutatis
mutandis as those set forth above for the Parent provided that such grant shall provide Employee with accelerated vesting such that the Option
Shares for the Company shall be deemed to have vested as if the grant of such Option had occurred at the same time as the grant of the Option
by the Parent.
5.4 Fringe Benefits. Employee shall be entitled to participate in any health, dental, life and disability insurance, 401(k) and other fringe
benefit programs (collectively the “Benefits”) of the Company to the extent and on substantially similar terms and conditions as are accorded to
other US executives of the Company, it being understood that the Employee’s entitlement to receive benefits and eligible level of participation
will at all times equal or exceed that of any other Company executive with respect to any current or future Company benefit program; and
provided that health, vision and dental insurance shall be family plans and shall have international coverage. These plans are subject to change
in the Company’s sole discretion
5.5 Reimbursement of Expenses. The Company shall provide Employee with reasonable equipment, facilities and support (i.e.:
computer, global cell-phone, and iPad with global communication) which shall be managed within Company budget, as is typically provided to
chief executive officers of companies of similar valuation and expectations. In addition, Employee shall be reimbursed for all normal items of
travel and entertainment and miscellaneous expenses reasonably incurred by him on behalf of Company and approved by the Company' Board
(e.g.: housing in Israel where required, computer expenses and cell-phone expenses) provided that such expenses are documented and
submitted to the Company all in accordance with the reimbursement policies of the Company as in effect from time to time.
5.6 Vacation and Sick Time. The Employee shall be entitled to a non-accruable paid vacation equal to 20 business days per calendar
year, in accordance with the Company’s vacation policy as applicable to all of its employees generally. Vacation shall be taken upon reasonable
advance notice to the Company, and at such times, so as not to interfere with the proper operation of the Company. The Employee shall be
entitled to 13 paid United States holidays (as observed by the Company), and a reasonable amount of paid time off for illness, injury or medical
treatment.
5.7 Taxes. The Employee shall be responsible for making payment of any applicable US taxes in connection with the payment and
benefits provided in this Section 5.
6.
Confidentiality.
6.1 Employee recognizes and acknowledges that he will obtain Proprietary Information (as hereinafter defined) of the Company and its
affiliated entities (collectively, the "Company Group") in the course of his employment as an executive employee of the Company. Employee
further recognizes and acknowledges that the Proprietary Information is a valuable, special and unique asset of the Company and the Company
Group. As a result, Employee shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, for any reason either directly or indirectly divulge to
any third-party or use for his own benefit, or for any purpose other than the exclusive benefit of the Company, any confidential, proprietary,
business and technical information or trade secrets (the “Proprietary Information”) of the Company or any other Company Group entity
revealed, obtained or developed in the course of his employment with the Company. Proprietary Information shall include, but shall not be
limited to, any information relating to methods of production, manufacture and research; computer hardware and software configurations,
computer inputs and outputs (regardless of the media on which stored or located) and computer processing systems, techniques, designs,
architecture, and interfaces; the identities of, the relationship with, the terms of contracts and agreements with, the needs and requirements of,
and the course of dealing with, the respective Company Group entities’ actual and prospective
(D)
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customers, contractors, suppliers and regulators; and any other materials prepared by Employee in the course of his employment by the
Company, or prepared by any other employee, officer, director or contractor of the Company Group for the Company Group’s customers
suppliers or regulators , (including concepts, layouts, flow charts, specifications, know-how, plans, sketches, blueprints, costs, business studies,
business procedures, finances, marketing data, methods, plans, personnel information, customer and vendor credit information and any other
materials that have not been made available to the general public). Nothing contained herein shall restrict Employee’s ability to make such
disclosures during the course of the employment as may be necessary or appropriate to the effective and efficient discharge of the duties
required by or appropriate for the Position or as such disclosures may be required by law. Furthermore, nothing contained herein shall restrict
Employee from divulging or using for his own benefit or for any other purpose any Proprietary Information that is (i) readily available to the
general public so long as such information did not become available to the general public as a direct or indirect result of Employee’s breach of
this Section 6, or (ii) provided to Employee by a third party without restriction on use or disclosure. Failure by the Company (or any other
Company Group entity) to mark any of the Proprietary Information as confidential or proprietary shall not affect its status as Proprietary
Information under the terms of this Agreement.
6.2 All right, title and interest in and to Proprietary Information shall be and remain solely and exclusively property of the respective
Company Group entity. Employee shall not remove from the Offices/Premises (as defined in Section 6.3 below) any documents, records,
notebooks, files, correspondence, reports, memoranda or similar materials of or containing Proprietary Information, or other materials or
property of any kind belonging to the Company unless necessary or appropriate in accordance with the duties and responsibilities required by
or appropriate for the Position and, in the event that such materials or property are removed, all of the foregoing shall be returned to their
proper files or places of safekeeping as promptly as possible after the removal shall serve its specific purpose. Employee shall not make, retain,
remove and/or distribute any copies of any of the foregoing for any reason whatsoever except as may be necessary in the discharge of the
assigned duties and shall not divulge to any third person the nature of and/or contents of any of the foregoing or of any other oral or written
information to which he may have access or with which for any reason he may become familiar, except as disclosure shall be necessary in the
performance of the duties; and upon the termination of his employment with the Company, Employee shall return to the Company all originals
and copies of the foregoing (including electronic copies) then in the possession or control, whether prepared by Employee or by others.
6.3 In this Agreement, "Offices/Premises" shall include Company's offices and premises, as well as mobile devices such as laptop
computers, cell-phones, tablet computes such as iPad and the like.
6.4 Any reference to the “Company” in this Section 6 shall mean the Company and its Parent and subsidiaries, individually and
collectively, as appropriate in context.
7.
Assignment of Developments
7.1 If at any time or times during Employee’s employment with the Company, he shall (either alone or with others) make, discover or
reduce to practice any invention, modification, discovery, design, development, improvement, process, software program, work of authorship,
documentation, formula, data, technique, know-how, secret or intellectual property right whatsoever or any interest therein (whether or not
patentable or registrable under copyright or similar statutes or subject to analogous protection) (herein called “Developments”) that (i) relates
to the then current business of the Company or any of the products or services being developed, manufactured or sold by the Company, (ii)
results from tasks assigned by the Company or (iii) results from any use of Offices/Premises (as defined in Section 6.3 above) or personal
property (whether tangible or intangible) owned, leased or contracted for by the Company --- such Developments and the benefits thereof shall
immediately become solely and absolutely the property of the Company and its assigns, and Employee shall promptly disclose to the Company
(or any persons designated by it) each such Development and Employee hereby assigns any rights he may have or acquire in the Developments,
and benefits and/or rights resulting therefrom, to the Company and its assigns without further compensation and shall communicate, without
cost or delay, and without publishing the same, all available information relating thereto (with all necessary plans and models) to the Company.
7.2 Upon disclosure of each Development to the Company, Employee will, during his employment with the Company, and at any time
thereafter, at the request and cost of the Company, sign, execute, make and do all such deeds, documents, acts and things as the Company and
its duly authorized agents may reasonably require (i) to apply for, obtain and vest in the name of the Company alone (unless the Company
otherwise directs) letters patent, copyrights or other analogous protection in any country throughout the world and when so obtained or vested
to renew and restore
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the same; and (ii) to defend any opposition proceedings in respect of such applications and any opposition proceedings or petitions or
applications for revocation of such letters patent, copyright or other analogous protection.
7.3 In the event the Company is unable, after all diligent effort, to secure Employee’s signature on any letters patent, copyright or
other analogous protection relating to a Development, whether because of Employee’s physical or mental incapacity or for any other reason
whatsoever, Employee hereby irrevocably designate and appoint the Company through its duly authorized president as his agent and attorneyin-fact, to act for and in his behalf and stead solely to execute and file any such application or applications and to do all other lawfully
permitted acts to further the prosecution and issuance of letters patent, copyright or other analogous intellectual property protection thereon
with the same legal force and effect as if executed by him.
7.4 Any reference to the “Company” in this Section 7 shall mean the Company and its Parent and subsidiaries, individually and
collectively, as appropriate in context.
8.
Covenant not to Compete.
8.1 Employee shall not, during the Term and for a period of one (1) year after termination hereof for any reason whatsoever (the
“Restricted Period”), do any of the following directly or indirectly without the prior written consent of the Company in its sole discretion:
8.1.1 Engage or participate, directly or indirectly, in any business which offers products or services directly competitive with
the products and services offered by the Company or any other Company Group entity (collectively the “Business”) as conducted during the
Term;
8.1.2 become interested (as owner, stockholder, lender, partner, co-venturer, director, officer, employee, agent, consultant or
otherwise) in any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity engaged in any business that is competitive with the Business as
conducted during the Term, or become interested in (as owner, stockholder, lender, partner, co-venturer, director, officer, employee, agent,
consultant or otherwise) any portion of the business of any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity where such portion of such
business is competitive with the Business as conducted during the Term (notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee may hold not more than one
percent (1%) of the outstanding securities of any class of any publicly-traded securities of a company that is engaged in activities competitive
with the Business as conducted during the Term);
8.1.3 solicit or call on, either directly or indirectly, on behalf of a business competitive with the Business, any (i) customer with
whom the Company shall have dealt at any time during the Term, or (ii) supplier with whom the Company shall have dealt at any time during
the one (1) year period immediately preceding the termination of Employee’s employment hereunder;
8.1.4 intentionally attempt to influence any supplier, customer or potential customer of the Company to terminate or modify
any written or oral agreement or course of dealing with the Company on behalf of a business competitive with the Business; or
8.1.5 influence or attempt to influence any person either (i) to terminate or modify the employment, consulting, agency,
distributorship or other arrangement with the Company or the Company Group, or (ii) to employ or retain, or arrange to have any other person
or entity employ or retain, any person who has been employed or retained by the Company or the Company Group as an employee, consultant,
agent or distributor of the Company or the Company Group at any time during the one (1) year period immediately preceding the termination of
Employee’s employment hereunder.
8.2 Employee acknowledges that he has carefully read and considered the provisions of this Section 8. Employee acknowledges that
the foregoing restrictions may limit his ability to earn a livelihood in a business similar to the Business, but he nevertheless believes that he has
received and will receive sufficient consideration and other benefits in connection with the payment by the Company of the compensation set
forth in Section 5 to justify such restrictions, which restrictions Employee does not believe would prevent him from earning a living in
businesses that are not competitive with the Business and without otherwise violating the restrictions set forth herein.
8.3 Any reference to the “Company” in Section 8.1 above shall mean the Company and its Parent and subsidiaries, individually and
collectively, as appropriate in context.
9.
Termination. Employee’s employment hereunder may be terminated during the Term upon the occurrence of any one of the events
described in this Section 9. Upon termination, Employee shall be entitled only to such compensation and benefits as described in this Section 9.
9.1 Termination for Disability.
9.1.1 In the event of the disability of Employee such that Employee is unable to perform the duties and responsibilities
hereunder to the full extent required by this Agreement by reasons of illness, injury or incapacity
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for a period of more than ninety (90) consecutive days or more than one hundred eighty (180) days, in the aggregate, during any twenty four
(24) months period, Employee’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company by written notice to Employee.
9.1.2 In the event of a termination of Employee’s employment hereunder pursuant to Section 9.1.1, Employee shall be entitled
to receive all accrued but unpaid (as of the effective date of such termination) Base Salary, Benefits and a pro-rata amount (as determined in
good faith by the Company’s Board) of the Bonus applicable to the then calendar year. Except as specifically set forth in this Section 9.1, the
Company shall have no liability or obligation to Employee hereunder by reason of such termination, except that Employee shall be entitled to
receive any payment prescribed under any disability benefits plan in which he is a participant as an employee of the Company, and to exercise
any rights afforded under any other benefit plan or option plan or award then in effect.
9.2 Termination by Death. In the event that Employee dies during the Term, Employee’s employment hereunder shall be terminated
thereby and the Company shall pay to Employee’s executors, legal representatives or administrators an amount equal to the accrued and unpaid
(as of the effective date of such termination) Base Salary, Benefits and a pro-rata amount (as determined in good faith by the Company’s Board)
of the Bonus applicable to the then calendar year. Except as specifically set forth in this Section 9.2, the Company shall have no liability or
obligation hereunder to Employee’s executors, legal representatives, administrators, heirs or assigns (or any other person claiming under or
through him by reason of Employee’s death), except that Employee’s executors, legal representatives or administrators will be entitled to
receive the payment prescribed under any death or disability benefits plan in which he is a participant as an employee of the Company, and to
exercise any rights afforded under any benefit plan or option plan or award then in effect.
9.3 Termination for Cause.
9.3.1 The Company may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder at any time for “cause” upon written notice to
Employee. For purposes of this Agreement, “cause” shall mean:
(A)
any material, intentional and uncured breach by Employee of any of the covenants under Sections 6, 7 and 8
of this Agreement;
(B)
Employee has been grossly negligent or has committed willful misconduct in carrying out his duties
hereunder and either continues to be grossly negligent or commit willful misconduct for a period of, or fails to cure the results of his gross
negligence or willful misconduct within, 30 days after written notice from the Company to Employee thereof;
(C)
conduct of Employee involving any type of (i) repeated or continued insubordination or disloyalty to the
Company after the Company has provided Employee with a detailed description of the insubordination or disloyalty and Employee continues
with such conduct, or (ii) willful misconduct with respect to the Company, such as, by way of example fraud, embezzlement, theft or proven
dishonesty in the course of the employment;
(D)
conviction of a felony or other criminal act punishable by more than one (1) year in prison; or
(E)
commission by Employee of an intentional tort or an act, in either case involving moral turpitude or
constituting fraud.
9.3.2 In the event of a termination of Employee’s employment hereunder pursuant to Section 9.3 Employee shall be entitled to
receive all accrued but unpaid (as of the effective date of such termination) Base Salary and Benefits. All Base Salary and Benefits shall cease
at the time of such termination. Employee shall not be entitled to receive any Bonus (whether or not then earned) for (i) the then calendar year,
and (ii) the calendar year in which the event giving rise to the termination for “cause” occurred. Except as specifically set forth in this Section
9.3, the Company shall have no liability or obligation to Employee hereunder by reason of such termination.
9.4 Termination without Cause.
9.4.1 The Company may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder at any time, for any reason whatsoever, with or without
cause, effective upon the date designated by the Company upon ninety (90) days (the “Notice Period”) prior written notice to Employee.
9.4.2 In the event of a termination of Employee’s employment hereunder pursuant to Section 9.4, Employee shall be entitled to
receive (i) all accrued but unpaid (as of the effective date of such termination) Base Salary, (ii) a lump sum equal to ninety (90) days of Base
Compensation shall be paid to the Employee at the annualized rate in effect as of the date of Employee is removed from the Position; and (iii)
the Bonus for that year shall be paid to the Employee in an amount that assumes that any actual achievement of Objectives during the 6 month
period
6

preceding Employee’s removal from the Position (the "Preceding Period") would have also been achieved during the 6 month period
following Employee’s removal from the Position (the "Following Period") (e.g.: if 50% of the Objectives were achieved in the Preceding
Period, it shall be assumed that 50% of the Objectives would have been achieved in the Following Period) . In addition, the Company shall (a)
reimburse Employee for any COBRA or other medical, dental and vision premiums for six (6) months following Employee’s removal from the
Position, and (b) continue Employee’s participation in any other Company employee and executive benefit programs in effect as of Employee’s
removal from the Position, and with respect to any insurance program available to employees only, reimburse Employee for the premium or
other fees associated with continuation in such program as a non-employee or in a comparable program if participation as a non-employee is
barred. Except as specifically set forth in this Section 9.4, or under the terms of any applicable option plan or award, the Company shall have
no liability or obligation to Employee with respect to Employee compensation hereunder by reason of such termination.
9.4.3 During the Notice Period, Employee shall not be entitled to retain the Position, and shall cooperate in good faith with the
Company in transitioning the duties of the Position to one or more successors as determined by the Chairman or the Designated Person.
9.4.4 The Company may, at its sole discretion, in lieu of continuing the Employee’s employment during the Notice Period (or
any part thereof) terminate the Employee’s employment immediately during the Notice Period by written notice to the Employee, and pay the
Employee the salary, bonus and benefits payable under Section 9.4.2 and Employee shall have the rights to which he is entitled under the terms
of any applicable option plan or award.
9.5 Termination by Employee without Good Reason.
9.5.1 Employee may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder at any time for any reason effective upon the date designated
by Employee in written notice of the termination of the employment hereunder pursuant to this Section 9.5; provided that, such date shall be at
least ninety (90) days after the date of such notice.
9.5.2 In the event of a termination of Employee’s employment hereunder pursuant to Section 9.5 hereof, Employee shall be
entitled to receive all accrued but unpaid (as of the effective date of such termination) Base Salary and Benefits. All Base Salary and Benefits
shall cease at the time of such termination, subject to the terms of any benefit plan then in force and applicable to Employee, provided, that
Employee shall nonetheless be entitled to receive a pro-rata amount of the Bonus on account of the then current year as determined in good
faith by the Company’s Board and provided that any such termination shall not affect Employee’s rights (other than continued vesting rights)
under the terms of any applicable option plan or award. Except as specifically set forth in this Section 9.5, the Company shall have no liability
or obligation to Employee with respect to Employee compensation hereunder by reason of such termination.
9.6 Termination by Employee with Good Reason.
9.6.1 Employee may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder at any time for Good Reason effective upon the date
designated by Employee in his written notice of termination to the Company. In the event of a termination of Employee’s employment
hereunder for Good Reason, Employee shall be entitled to receive all amounts Employee would receive for a termination by the Company with
or without cause under Section 9.4. For purposes of this Section, the term Good Reason shall mean:
A.
Reduction in Employee’s Base Salary;
B.
Material reduction in benefit programs or benefits including, without limitation, any loss of or reduction in
disability, life, health, dental or vision insurance coverage;
C.
Change in Employee’s position or title or material modification of Employee’s job responsibilities and
authority;
D.
Removal from Company Board or Parent Board;
E.
Modification of Employee’s compensation plan, including Employee’s Bonus plan;
F.
Relocation of Company offices requiring Employee’s relocation or material increase in commuting time; and
10.
Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Employee.
10.1 Employee represents and warrants to the Company that:
10.1.1 There are no restrictions, agreements or understandings whatsoever to which Employee is a party which would prevent
or make unlawful Employee’s execution of this Agreement or Employee’s employment hereunder, or which is or would be inconsistent or in
conflict with this Agreement or Employee’s employment hereunder, or would prevent, limit or impair in any way the performance by Employee
of the obligations hereunder; and
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10.1.2 Employee has disclosed to the Company all contractual restraints, confidentiality commitments or other employment
restrictions that he has with any other employer, person or entity.
11.
Survival of Provisions. The provisions of this Agreement set forth in Sections 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 17 and 20 hereof shall survive the
termination of Employee’s employment hereunder for any reason whatsoever.
12.
Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company and Employee and their
respective successors, executors, administrators, heirs and/or permitted assigns; provided that Employee may not make any assignments of this
Agreement or any interest herein by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the Company.
13.
Notice. Any notice hereunder by either party shall be given by personal delivery or by sending such notice by certified mail, returnreceipt requested, or telecopied (by fax, scanned pdf document, or email, in each case with confirmation of delivery), addressed or telecopied,
as the case may be, to the other party at its address set forth below or at such other address designated by notice in the manner provided in this
section. Such notice shall be deemed to have been received upon the first business day following confirmed delivery.
If to Employee - at the address then used for payroll purposes or the business and fax email address of Employee, if Employee is still
employed by the Company, or such successor addresses as the Employee may from time to time provide to the Company by written notice; and
If to the Company - at the Company's then address to the attention of Chairman of the Company's Board or the business and fax email
address of the Chairman provided by the Company.
14.
Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto relating to
the subject matter hereof, and merges and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous discussions, agreements and understandings of every
nature between the parties hereto relating to the employment of Employee with the Company. This Agreement may not be changed or
modified, except by an agreement in writing signed by each of the parties hereto.
15.
Waiver. The waiver of the breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of
any other or subsequent breach of this Agreement. Any waiver must be in writing to be effective.
16.
Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Delaware,
without regard to the principles of conflicts of laws of any jurisdiction.
17.
Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be void, invalid, unenforceable or illegal for any reason, the
validity and enforceability of all of the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby. If any particular provision of this Agreement
shall be adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed amended to delete therefrom the portion thus adjudicated to
be invalid or unenforceable, such amendment to apply only to the operation of such provision in the particular jurisdiction in which such
adjudication is made; provided that, if any provision contained in this Agreement shall be adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable because
such provision is held to be excessively broad as to duration, geographic scope, activity or subject, such provision shall be deemed amended by
limiting and reducing it so as to be valid and enforceable to the maximum extent compatible with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction and
such amendment such be applicable with respect to all other jurisdictions.
18.
Section Headings. The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience only; they form no part of this Agreement and shall
not affect its interpretation.
19.
Number of Days. In computing the number of days for purposes of this Agreement, all days shall be counted, including Saturdays,
Sundays and legal holidays recognized in the jurisdiction of the sending or receiving party; provided that, if the final day of any time period
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or day which is a legal holiday in the location of the principal place of business of the Company, then such final day
shall be deemed to be the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.
20.
Specific Enforcement; Extension of Period. Employee acknowledges that the restrictions contained in Sections 6, 7 and 8hereof are
reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interests of the Company and its affiliates and that the Company would not have entered into
this Agreement in the absence of such restrictions. Employee also acknowledges that any breach by him of Sections 6, 7 and 8 hereof may
cause continuing and irreparable injury to the Company for which monetary damages might not be an adequate remedy. In the event of such
breach by Employee, the Company shall have the right to enforce the provisions of Sections 6, 7 and 8of this Agreement by seeking injunctive
or other relief in any court, and this Agreement shall not in any way limit remedies of law or in equity otherwise available to the Company.
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21.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of
which together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. Signatures on this document transmitted through pdf or facsimile shall be
deemed and may be relied on as originals for all purposes.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first written above.

/s/ Jeff Dykan
Argo Medical Technologies, Inc.

/s/ Larry Jasinski
Larry Jasinski

By: ________________________
Name: Jeff Dykan
Title: Chairman
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Exhibit 3
Permitted Engagement

Continuation of role as a Board Member of LeMaitre Vascular, Chair of the Comp Committee and on the Audit committee.
Transition into a role as Chairman with Soteira Inc. for the purposes of a transition during the sale of the company and to allow ongoing
advice as needed. This may not interfere with any duties with Argo and must be conducted in off hours or as vacation time. Such
activity shall terminate no later than March 31,2012, and such period may be extended by mutual consent of the Employee ands the
Chairman of the Board.
3. Roles on any other independent boards subject to approval of the Board of Directors of Argo.
1.
2.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT dated as of June 18, 2012, by and between Argo Medical Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"), with offices at 33 Presidential Drive, Southborough, Massachusetts 01772, and John Hamilton (the "Employee")
of 31 Hill St, Foxboro, MA 02035.
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS the Company desires to enter into employment with the Employee for the period provided in this Agreement, and
the Employee is willing to accept such employment with the Company on a full-time basis, all in accordance with the terms and conditions set
forth below;
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereof and the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties
hereto hereby covenant and agree as follows:
1.
Employment. (a) The Company hereby agrees to employ the Employee, and the Employee hereby agrees to accept such
employment with the Company, beginning on June 18, 2012 and continuing for the period set forth in Section 2 hereof, all upon the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth.
(b) The Employee affirms and represents that as of the commencement of his
employment by the Company on June 18, 2012, he will be under no obligation to any former employer or other party which is in any way
inconsistent with, or which imposes any restriction upon, the Employee's acceptance of employment hereunder with the Company, the
employment of the Employee by the Company, or the Employee's undertakings under this Agreement.
2.
Term of Employment. (a) Unless earlier terminated as provided in this Agreement, the term of the Employee's employment
under this Agreement shall be for a period beginning on June 18, 2012 through June 17, 2014 (the "Initial Term").
(b) The term of the Employee's employment under this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional twelve month
terms (the "Renewal Term") upon the expiration of the Initial Term or Additional Terms unless the Company or the Employee delivers to the
other, at least ninety (90) days pfior to the expiration of the Initial Term or Additional Terms, written notice specifying that the term of the
Employee's employment will not be renewed at the end of the Initial or Additional Terms. The period from June 18, 2012 through June 17,
2014 or, in the event that the Employee's employment hereunder is earlier terminated as provided herein or renewed as provided in this Section
2(b), such shorter or longer period, as the case may be, is hereinafter called the "Employment Term".
3.
Duties. The Employee shall be employed as the Vice President of Regulatory and Reimbursement of the Company, shall
faithfully and competently perform such duties as inhere in such position and as are specified in the Bylaws of the Company and shall also
perform and discharge such other executive employment duties and responsibilities as the CEO of the Company shall from time to time
determine. The Employee shall perform his duties principally at the executive offices of the Company, with such travel to such other locations
from time to time as the CEO of the Company may reasonably prescribe. Except as may otherwise be approved in advance by the CEO of the
Company, and except during vacation periods and reasonable periods of absence due to sickness, personal injury or other disability or nonprofit public service activities, the Employee shall devote his full time throughout the Employment Term to the services required of him
hereunder. The Employee shall render his business services exclusively to the Company (which term includes any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates). During the Employment Term, the Employee shall use his best efforts, judgment and energy to improve and advance the business
and interests of the Company in a manner consistent with the duties of his position. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employee shall be
entitled to participate as a director and investor in other business enterprises and to engage in activities related thereto so long as such
participation and activities do not (i) involve a substantial amount of the Employee's time, (ii) impair the Employee's ability to perform his
duties under this Agreement or (iii) violate the provisions of Section 12 of this Agreement.
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Salary. As compensation for the complete and satisfactory performance by the Employee of the services to be
performed by the Employee hereunder during the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Employee a base salary at the annual rate of
One Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars ($170,000.00) (said amount, together with any increases thereto as may be determined from time to
time by the Board of Directors of the Company in its sole discretion, being hereinafter referred to as "Salary"). Any Salary payable hereunder
shall be paid in regular intervals in accordance with the Company's payroll practices from time to time in effect. Employee shall additionally
be eligible to participate in annual merit increases beginning January 1, 2013.
4.

5.
Bonus. The Employee will be eligible to participate in the Company's bonus plan, with eligibility for an annual bonus
will of up to fifteen percent (15%) of the Employee's then-base salary, assuming Company and individual objectives are met (the "Bonus").
Bonus percentage will be subject to specific objectives and accomplishments as are mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the
Employee. Payment of such bonuses will be subject to the approval of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.
6.
Equity Compensation. Pursuant to and subject to the terms of a stock option plan of the Company (the "SOP"), the
Employee will be granted options to purchase shares of stock. Board approval of the shares will be done as soon as practically possible after
commencing employment.
7.
Other Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Employee shall:
(i) be eligible to participate (on terms at least as favorable as other executive employees) in employee fringe benefits and
pension and/or profit sharing plans that may be provided by the Company for its executive employees in accordance with the
provisions of any such plans, as the same may be in effect from time to time;
(ii)
be entitled to fully paid Blue Cross/Blue Shield Family (Blue Care Elect Preferred) or equivalent medical and dental
coverage under the Company's health care policy for its executive employees in accordance with the provisions of such Company
health care policy, as the same may be in effect from time to time;
(iii)
be entitled to the number of paid vacation days in each calendar year determined by the Company from time to time
.

for its executive officers, provided that such number of paid vacation days in each calendar year shall not be less than twenty (20) work
days (four (4) calendar weeks); the Employee shall also be entitled to all paid holidays given by the Company to its senior executive
officers;
(iv)
be entitled to sick leave, sick pay and disability benefits in accordance with any Company policy that may be
applicable to senior executive employees from time to time; and
(v)
be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by the
Employee in the performance of his duties hereunder in accordance with the Company's normal policies from time to time in effect.
8. Confidential Information. The Employee hereby covenants, agrees and
acknowledges as follows:
(a) The Employee has and will have access to and will participate in the development of or be acquainted with confidential or
proprietary information and trade secrets related to the business of the Company and any other present or future subsidiaries or affiliates of the
Company (collectively with the Company, the "Companies"), including but not limited to (i) inventions; designs; specifications; materials to be
used in products and manufacturing processes; customer lists; claims histories, adjustments and settlements and related records and
compilations of information; the identity, lists or descriptions of any new customers, referral sources or organizations; financial statements; cost
reports or other financial information; contract proposals or bidding information; business plans; training and operations methods and manuals;
personnel records; software programs; reports and correspondence; premium structures; and management systems, policies or procedures,
including related fowls and manuals; (ii) information pertaining to future developments such as future marketing or acquisition plans or ideas,
and potential new business locations and (iii) all other tangible and intangible property, which are used in the business and operations of the
Companies but not made public. The information and trade secrets relating to the business of the Companies described hereinabove in this
paragraph (a) are hereinafter referred to collectively as the 'Confidential Information", provided that the term Confidential Information shall not
include any information (x) that is or becomes generally publicly available (other than as a result of violation of this Agreement by the
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Employee), (y) that the Employee receives on a non-confidential basis from a source (other than the Companies or their representatives) that is
not known by him to be bound by an obligation of secrecy or confidentiality to any of the Companies or (z) that was in the possession of the
Employee prior to disclosure by the Companies.
(b)
The Employee shall not disclose, use or make known for his or another's benefit any Confidential Information or use such
Confidential Information in any way except as is in the best interests of the Companies in the performance of the Employee's duties under this
Agreement. The Employee may disclose Confidential Information when required by a third party and applicable law or judicial process, but
only after providing immediate notice to the Company at any third party's request for such information, which notice shall include the
Employee's intent with respect to such request.
(c)
The Employee acknowledges and agrees that a remedy at law for any breach or threatened breach of the provisions of this
Section 8 would be inadequate and, therefore, agrees that the Companies shall be entitled to injunctive relief in addition to any other available
rights and remedies in case of any such breach or threatened breach; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be construed as
prohibiting the Companies from pursuing any other rights and remedies available for any such breach or threatened breach.
(d)
The Employee agrees that upon termination of his employment with the Company for any reason, the Employee shall
forthwith return to the Company all Confidential Information in whatever form maintained (including, without limitation, computer discs and
other electronic media).
(e)
The obligations of the Employee under this Section 8 shall, except as otherwise provided herein, survive the termination of
the Employment Term and the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
(f)
Without limiting the generality of Section 13 hereof, the Employee hereby expressly agrees that the foregoing provisions of
this Section 8 shall be binding upon the Employee's heirs, successors and legal representatives.
9. Termination.
(a) The Employee's employment hereunder shall be terminated upon the occurrence of any of the following:
death of the Employee;
the Employee's inability to perform his duties on account of disability or incapacity for a period of one hundred eighty (180)
or more days, whether or not consecutive, within any period of twelve (12) consecutive months;
(iii)
the Company giving written notice, at any time, to the Employee that the Employee's employment is being terminated "for
cause" (as defined below); or
(iv) the Company giving written notice, at any time, to the Employee that the Employee's employment is being terminated other than
pursuant to clause (1), (ii) or (iii) above.
(i)
(ii)

The following actions, failures and events by or affecting the Employee shall constitute 'cause" for termination within the
meaning of clause (iii) above: (A) an indictment for or conviction of the Employee of or the entering of a plea of nolo contendere by the
Employee with respect to, having committed a felony, (B) abuse of controlled substances or alcohol or acts of dishonesty or moral turpitude by
the Employee that are detrimental to the Company, (C) acts or omissions by the Employee that the Employee knew were likely to damage the
business of the Company, (D) negligence by the Employee in the performance of, or disregard by the Employee of, his material obligations
under this Agreement or otherwise relating to his employment, which negligence or disregard continue un-remedied for a period of fifteen (15)
days after written notice thereof to the Employee or (E) failure by the Employee to obey the reasonable and lawful orders and policies of the
Board of Directors that are consistent with the provisions of this Agreement (provided that, in the case of an indictment described in clause (A)
above, and in the case of clause (B), (C) or (E) above, the Employee shall have received written notice of such proposed termination and a
reasonable opportunity to discuss the matter with the CEO of the Company, followed by a notice that the CEO of the Company adheres to its
position.
(b)
In the event that the Employee's employment is terminated pursuant to clause (iv) of Section 9(a) above, at any time
during his employment, the Company shall pay to the. Employee, as severance pay or liquidated damages or both, monthly payments at the
rate per annum of his. Salary and Bonus (and the replacement cost of his benefits as described in Section 7 above) at the time of such
termination for a period from the date of such termination to the date which is six weeks after such termination.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary expressed or implied herein, except as required by applicable law and
except as set forth in Section 9(b) above, the Company (and its affiliates) shall not be obligated to make any payments to the Employee or on
his behalf of whatever kind or nature by reason of the Employee's cessation of employment (including, without limitation, by reason of
termination of the Employee's employment by the Company's for "cause"), other than (i) such amounts, if any, of his Salary as shall have
accrued and remained unpaid as of the date of said cessation and (ii) such other amounts, if any, which may be then otherwise payable to the
Employee pursuant to the terms of the Company's benefits plans,
(c)

(d)

No interest shall accrue on or be paid with respect to any portion of any payments hereunder.

10. Non-Assignability.
(a) Neither this Agreement nor any right or interest hereunder shall be assignable by the Employee or his beneficiaries or
legal representatives without the Company's prior written consent; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 10(a) shall preclude the
Employee from designating a beneficiary to receive any benefit payable hereunder upon his death or incapacity.
(b) Except as required by law, no right to receive payments under this Agreement shall be subject to anticipation,
commutation, alienation, sale, assignment, encumbrance, charge, pledge, or hypothecation or to exclusion, attachment, levy or similar process
or to assignment by operation of law, and any attempt, voluntary or involuntary, to effect any such action shall be null, void and of no effect.
11 . Inventions. Any and all inventions, innovations or improvements ("inventions") made, developed or created by the Employee
(whether at the request or suggestion of the Company or otherwise, whether alone or in conjunction with others, and whether during regular
hours of work or otherwise) during the Employment Term which may be directly or indirectly useful in, or relate to, the business of the
Company shall be promptly and fully disclosed by the Employee to the Board of Directors of the Company and shall be the Company's
exclusive property as against the Employee, and the Employee shall promptly deliver to an appropriate representative of the Company as
designated by the Board of Directors all papers, drawings, models, data and other material relating to any inventions made, developed or
created by him as aforesaid. The Employee shall, at the request of the Company and without any payment therefor, execute any documents
necessary or advisable in the opinion of the Company's counsel to direct issuance of patents or copyrights to the Company with respect to such
inventions as are to be the Company's exclusive property as against the Employee or to vest in the Company title to such inventions as against
the Employee. The expense of securing any such patent or copyright shall be borne by the Company.
12. Restrictive Covenants.
(a)
Competition. During the Employment Term and, in the event the Employee's employment is terminated by the
Company pursuant to clause (iii) or (iv) of Section 9(a) above, during the twelve (12) month period following such termination (provided that,
in the case of a termination pursuant to clause (iv) of said Section 9(a), any payments required pursuant to Section 9(b) hereof are made in full
and in a timely fashion)), the Employee will not directly or indirectly (as a director, officer, executive employee, manager, consultant,
independent contractor, advisor or otherwise) engage in competition with, or own any interest in, perform any services for, participate in or be
connected with any business or organization which engages in competition with the Company within the meaning of Section 12(d), provided,
however, that the provisions of this Section 12(a) shall not be deemed to prohibit the Employee's ownership of not more than two percent (2%)
of the total shares of all classes of stock outstanding of any publicly held company in competition with the Company, or ownership, whether
through direct or indirect stock holdings or otherwise, of one percent (1%) or more of any other business in competition with the Company. The
geographic territory within which this Section 12(a) applies is all of the United States of America, Europe and Asia.
(b)
Non-Solicitation. During the Employment Term and during the twelve (12) month period following the end of the
Employment Term for any reason whatsoever (or, if later, the twelve (12) month period following termination of the Employee's employment
with the Company), provided that payments, if any, required pursuant to Section 9(b) hereof are made in full and in a timely fashion, the
Employee will not directly or indirectly induce or attempt to induce any employee of any of the Companies to leave the employ of the
Company, or in any way interfere with the relationship between the Company and any employee thereof.
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Non-Interference. During the Employment Term and, in the event the Employee's employment is terminated by the
Company pursuant to clause (iii) or (iv) of Section 9(a) above, during the twelve (12) month period following such termination (provided that,
in the case of a termination pursuant to clause (iv) of said Section 9(a), any payments required pursuant to Section 9(b) hereof are made in full
and in a timely fashion)), the Employee will not directly or indirectly hire, engage, send any work to, place orders with, or in any manner be
associated with any supplier, contractor, subcontractor or other business relation of the Company if such action by him would have a material
adverse effect on the business, assets or financial condition of the Company, or materially interfere with the relationship between any such
person or entity and the Company.
(d)
Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Section 10, a person or entity (including, without limitation, the Employee)
shall be deemed to be a competitor of the Company, or a person or entity (including, without limitation, the Employee) shall be deemed to be
engaging in competition with the Company, if such person or entity is engaged in a business involving robotic technologies designed to allow
mobility of paralyzed patients.
(e)
Certain Representations of the Employee. In connection with the foregoing provisions of this Section 12, the
Employee represents that his experience, capabilities and circumstances are such that such provisions will not prevent him from earning a
livelihood. The Employee further agrees that the limitations set forth in this Section 12 (including, without limitation, time and territorial
limitations) are reasonable and properly required for the adequate protection of the current and future businesses of the Companies. It is
understood and agreed that the covenants made by the Employee in this Section 12 (and. in Section 8 hereof) shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.
(c)

(f)
Injunctive Relief The Employee acknowledges and agrees that a remedy at law for any breach or threatened breach
of the provisions of Section 12 hereof would be inadequate and, therefore, agrees that the Company shall be entitled to injunctive relief in
addition to any other available rights and remedies in cases of any such breach or threatened breach; provided, however, that nothing contained
herein shall be construed as prohibiting the Company from pursuing any other rights and remedies available for any such breach or threatened
breach.
13.
Binding Effect. Without limiting or diminishing the effect of Section 8 or Section 12 hereof, this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, legal representatives and assigns.
14.
Notices. All notices which are required or may be given pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficient in all respects if given in writing and (i) delivered personally, (ii) mailed by
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, (iii) sent via a nationally recognized overnight courier or (iv) sent via
facsimile confirmed in writing to the recipient, if to the Company at the Company's principal place of business, and if to the Employee, at his
home address most recently filed with the Company, or to such other address or addresses as either party shall have designated in writing to the
other party hereto, provided, however, that any notice sent by certified or registered mail shall be deemed delivered on the date of delivery as
evidenced by the return receipt.

Law Governing. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
15.

16.
Severability. The Employee agrees that in the event that any court of competent jurisdiction shall finally hold that
any provision of Section 8 or 12 hereof is void or constitutes an unreasonable restriction against the Employee, the provisions of such Section 8
or 12 shall not be rendered void but shall apply with respect to such extent as such court may judicially determine constitutes a reasonable
restriction under the circumstances. If any part of this Agreement other than Section 8 or 12 is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, illegible or incapable of being enforced in whole or in part by reason of any rule of law or public policy, such part shall be deemed to
be severed from the remainder of this Agreement for the purpose only of the particular legal proceedings in question and all other covenants
and provisions of this Agreement shall in every other respect continue in full force and effect and no covenant or provision shall be deemed
dependent upon any other covenant or provision.
17.

Waiver. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms,
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covenants or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any
right or power hereunder at any one or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or times.
Entire Agreement:, Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire
and final expression of the agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, oral and
written, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties hereto.
18.

19.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Employee have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as of the day and year
first above written.

/s/ John V. Hamilton

Argo Medical Technologies, Inc.
By /s/ Larry Jasinski, CEO
CEO
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Employee option

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.

2014 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Notice of Option Grant
Participant:

[•]

Company:

ReWalk Robotics Ltd.

Notice:

You have been granted the following Incentive Stock Option to purchase Shares in accordance with the terms of the
Plan, this Notice of Option Grant and the Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement attached hereto as Schedule A
(this Notice of Option Grant, together with the Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement, this “Agreement”).

Type of Award:

Incentive Stock Option

Plan: ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2014 Incentive Compensation Plan
Grant:

Date of Grant: [•], 2014
Option Price per Share: US$[•]
Total Number of Shares Under Option: [•]

Exercisability:

Subject to the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, you may exercise your Option on and after the dates set forth
below in the Vesting Schedule as to that percentage of the Total Number of Shares Under Option set forth below
opposite each such date. You may exercise your Option to purchase any Shares as to which your Option has become
exercisable at any time and from time to time until your Option terminates or expires.

Vesting Schedule:

1

Date Insert dates - first anniversary of Date
of Grant (25%), followed by last day of each
subsequent calendar quarter (6.25% each).
Note: To be completed in version attached
to Board Resolutions.

Percentage
25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%

Expiration Date:
Acknowledgement
and Agreement:

Ten years from the Date of Grant, subject to earlier termination as set forth in the Plan and this Agreement.
The undersigned Participant acknowledges receipt of, and understands and agrees to, the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the Plan.

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.

PARTICIPANT

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

Date:
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Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement - Schedule A

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.
2014 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement
This Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement, dated as of the Date of Grant set forth in the Notice of Option Grant
(the “Grant Notice”) to which this Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement is attached as Schedule A, is made between ReWalk Robotics Ltd.
(the “Company”) and the Participant set forth in the Grant Notice. The Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.
1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Agreement have the meanings set forth in the Plan.
2. Grant of the Option. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Plan, the Company hereby
grants to the Participant, pursuant to the Plan, the right and option (the “Option”) to purchase all or any part of the number of ordinary shares of
the Company, par value NIS 0.01 each (“Shares”), set forth in the Grant Notice at the Option Price per Share (“Option Price”) set forth in the
Grant Notice and on the other terms as set forth in the Grant Notice.
3. Exercisability of the Option. The Option shall become exercisable in accordance with the exercisability schedule and other
terms set forth in the Grant Notice. The Option shall terminate on the Expiration Date set forth in the Grant Notice, subject to earlier termination
as set forth in the Plan and this Agreement.
4.

Method of Exercise of the Option.

(a)
The Participant may exercise the Option, to the extent then exercisable, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Plan by delivering a written or electronic notice to the Company in a form specified or accepted by the Company, specifying
the number of Shares with respect to which the Option is being exercised and payment to the Company of the aggregate Option Price in
accordance with Section 4(b) hereof. Such notice must be signed by the Participant or any other person then having the right to exercise the
Option.
(b) At the time the Participant exercises the Option, the Participant shall pay the Option Price of the Shares as to
which the Option is being exercised to the Company (i) in United States dollars by personal check, bank draft, money order or wire transfer of
immediately available funds; or (ii) if permitted by the Committee, and subject to any such terms, conditions and limitations as the Committee
may prescribe and to the extent permitted by applicable law, by any other payment method described in Section 6.6 of the Plan.
(c) The Company’s obligation to deliver the Shares to which the Participant is entitled upon exercise of the Option is
conditioned on the Participant’s satisfaction in full to the Company of the aggregate Option Price of those Shares and the required tax
withholding related to such exercise.
5. Change of Control. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Option shall be subject to the Change of
Control provisions set forth in Article XIV of the Plan.
6. Termination. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6.8 of the Plan, upon the Participant’s Termination of Service for
any reason other than by the Company for Cause, the Option shall terminate and cease to be exercisable on the date that is ninety (90) days
after the date of the Participant’s Termination of Service. Upon a Termination of Service by the Company for Cause, the Option shall terminate
and cease to be exercisable upon Termination.
7.
Transferability of the Option. The Option shall not be transferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution, and is exercisable, during the lifetime of the Participant, only by the Participant;
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provided, however, that (a) the Option may be exercised after the Participant’s death by the beneficiary most recently named by the Participant
in a written designation thereof filed by the Participant with the Company in accordance with Article XII of the Plan[, and (b) the Committee may,
in its discretion, permit the Option to be transferred during the Participant’s lifetime subject to Article XII of the Plan]. No transfer of the Option
by will or the laws of descent and distribution, or otherwise, shall be effective to bind the Company unless the Committee is furnished with (as
applicable): (i) written notice thereof and with a copy of the will and/or such evidence as the Committee may deem necessary to establish the
validity of the transfer and (ii) an agreement by the transferee to comply with all the terms and conditions of the Option that are or would have
been applicable to the Participant and to be bound by the acknowledgements made by the Participant in connection with the grant of the
Option.
8. Taxes and Withholdings. At the time of receipt of Shares upon the exercise of all or any part of the Option, the Participant
shall pay to the Company or an Affiliate in cash, or make other arrangements, in accordance with Article XVI of the Plan, for the satisfaction of,
any taxes of any kind, and social security payments due or potentially payable or required to be withheld with respect to such exercise or
Shares.
9. No Rights as a Shareholder. Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the beneficial owner of the Shares
subject to the Option, nor have any rights to dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until the Participant
has actually received such Shares following the exercise of the Option in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.
10. No Right to Continued Employment. Neither the Option nor any terms contained in this Agreement shall confer upon the
Participant any rights or claims except in accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and shall not give the
Participant any express or implied right to be retained in the employment or service of the Company or any Affiliate for any period, or in any
particular position or at any particular rate of compensation, nor restrict in any way the right of the Company or any Affiliate, which right is
hereby expressly reserved, to modify or terminate the Participant’s employment or service at any time for any reason. The Participant
acknowledges and agrees that any right to exercise the Option is earned only by continuing as an employee of the Company or an Affiliate at
the will of the Company or such Affiliate, or satisfaction of any other applicable terms and conditions contained in the Plan and this Agreement,
and not through the act of being hired, being granted the Option or acquiring Shares hereunder.
11. The Plan. By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the
Participant shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated his or her acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and
conditions of the Plan and this Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions and conditions of the Plan, which
are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the Committee. In the
event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall
be deemed to be modified accordingly. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can be found [on the Company’s HR intranet]. A paper
copy of the Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written request to the Company at the address
set forth in Section 13 hereof.
12.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a) The Option and the obligation of the Company to sell and deliver Shares hereunder shall be subject in all respects
to: (i) all applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations and (ii) any registration, qualification, approvals or other requirements
imposed by any government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or applicable.
Moreover, the Option may not be exercised if its exercise, or the receipt of Shares pursuant thereto, would be contrary to applicable law. If at
any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon any national securities exchange
or under any state or Federal law, or the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable, the Company
shall not be required to deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement unless and until
such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions not
acceptable to the Company.
(b)
It is intended that the Shares received upon the exercise of the Option shall have been registered under the
Securities Act. If the Participant is an “affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the
Participant may not sell the Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Any certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of
the Company may bear a legend setting
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forth such restrictions on the disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with Federal and state
securities laws.
(c) If at the time of exercise of all or part of the Option, the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or
there is no current prospectus in effect under the Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of
any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant to this Agreement, an agreement (in such form as the Company may specify) in which
the Participant represents and warrants that the Participant is purchasing or acquiring the shares acquired under this Agreement for the
Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any
subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant to either (i) a registration statement on an
appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with regard to the Shares being
offered or sold or (ii) a specific exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, but in claiming such exemption the
Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Company, from counsel for or approved by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.
13. Data Protection. By participating in the Plan, each Participant consents to the collection, processing, transmission and
storage by the Company or any Affiliate, in any form whatsoever, of any data of a professional or personal nature which is necessary for the
purposes of administering the Plan. The Company may share such information with any Affiliate, any trustee, its registrars, brokers, other thirdparty administrator or any person who obtains control of the Company or any Affiliate or any division respectively thereof.
14. Notices. All notices by the Participant or the Participant’s successors or permitted assigns shall be addressed to ReWalk
Robotics Ltd., Kochav Yokneam Building, Floor 6, P.O. Box 161, Yokneam Ilit 20692 Israel, Attention: [Chief Financial Officer], or such other
address as the Company may from time to time specify. All notices to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s
address in the Company's records.
15. Other Plans. The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from the exercise of the Option shall not affect the
Participant’s participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any
Affiliate.
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Employee RSU

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.
2014 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Participant:

[•]

Company:

ReWalk Robotics Ltd.

Notice:

You have been granted the following Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the terms of the Plan, this Notice of Restricted
Stock Unit Grant and the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement attached hereto as Attachment A (this Notice of Restricted Stock
Unit Grant, together with the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, this “Agreement”), contingent upon your payment of NIS
0.01 for each Restricted Stock Unit (par value) within 30 days of such Restricted Stock Unit vesting.

Type of Award:

Restricted Stock Units.

Plan:

ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2014 Incentive Compensation Plan

Grant:

Date of Grant: [•]
Total Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units: [•]

Period of Restriction:

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and those of this Agreement, the Period of Restriction applicable to the Total
Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units shall commence on the Date of Grant and shall lapse on the dates listed
below as to the percentages of the Total Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units set forth opposite each such date.
Date

Percentage
25%
25%
25%
25%

Acknowledgement
and Agreement:

The undersigned Participant acknowledges receipt of, and understands and agrees to, the terms and conditions of this Agreement
and the Plan.

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.

PARTICIPANT

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

Date:
1

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement -- Attachment A

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD. 2014 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated as of the Date of Grant set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant
(the “Grant Notice”) to which this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement is attached as Schedule A, is made between ReWalk Robotics Ltd. and the
Participant set forth in the Grant Notice. The Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.
1.
Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Plan.
2.
Grant of the Restricted Stock Units. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Plan, the Company
hereby grants to the Participant, pursuant to the Plan, the number of Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Grant Notice.
3.
Period of Restriction. The Period of Restriction with respect to the Restricted Stock Units shall commence and lapse as set forth
in the Grant Notice. All Restricted Stock Units as to which the Period of Restriction has not lapsed prior to the date of the Participant’s Termination shall be
immediately forfeited upon such date.
4.
Settlement of Restricted Stock Units. As soon as reasonably practicable following the lapse of the applicable portion of the
Period of Restriction, but in no event later than 15 days following the date of such lapse, the Company shall cause to be delivered to the Participant, in full
settlement and satisfaction of the Restricted Stock Units as to which such portion of the Period of Restriction has so lapsed: (a) the full number of Shares
underlying such Restricted Stock Units, (b) a cash payment in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of such Shares on the date of such lapse or (c) a
combination of such Shares and cash payment, as the Committee, in its discretion, shall determine, subject to satisfaction of applicable tax withholding
obligations with respect thereto in accordance with Section 6 of this Agreement.
5.
Change of Control. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to the
Change of Control provisions set forth in Article XIV of the Plan.
6.
Taxes. The Participant acknowledges and agrees, as a condition of this grant, upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, or as
of any other date on which the value of any Restricted Stock Units otherwise becomes includible in the Participant’s gross income for tax purposes and/or
social security purposes, that the Participant will pay all applicable federal, state or local withholding taxes required by law to be withheld in respect of the
Restricted Stock Units by the sale of Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units in an amount reasonably determined by the Company to be sufficient to
satisfy (i) such withholding taxes and (ii) if required under applicable law, payment of NIS 0.01 for each Restricted Stock Unit (par value), and to deliver
proceeds from such sale to the Company in payment of the foregoing. In order to authorize such sale, this agreement constitutes an irrevocable direction by
the Participant to a licensed securities broker selected from time to time by the Company, which as of the Grant Date is Oppenheimer Inc., to sell such Shares
at the available market price on or about the applicable vesting date (with the date of such sale to be at the sole discretion of the selected broker), deliver such
sale proceeds to the Company in payment of such withholding taxes and, if required under applicable law, payment of NIS 0.01 for each Restricted Stock
Unit (par value), and provide to the Company a duplicate confirmation of such sale. The Participant must establish the necessary account with the selected
broker before the first vesting date for this grant and authorizes the Company and the broker to cooperate and communicate with one another to effectuate. It
is the Participant’s intent that this election to sell comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(B) of the Exchange Act. The Participant is responsible
for providing to the selected broker all applicable forms necessary to facilitate this transaction. In addition, the Company may deduct from payments of any
kind otherwise due to the Participant all applicable withholding taxes in respect of these Restricted Stock Units or the Shares underlying the Restricted Stock
Units and, if required under applicable law, payment of NIS 0.01 for each Restricted Stock Unit (par value). The Company or an Affiliate may, in the
discretion of the Committee, provide for alternative arrangements to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements in accordance with Article XVI of the
Plan. Regardless of any action the Company or any Affiliate takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including any social security contributions)
obligations, the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all such taxes is and remains the Participant’s responsibility, and that the Company
does not: (i) make any representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock
Units, including the grant or vesting thereof, the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt of any dividends; or (ii) commit to structure the terms of the
Restricted Stock Units or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for such tax.
7.
No Rights as a Shareholder Prior to Issuance of Shares. Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the
beneficial owner of the Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units, nor have any rights to
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dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until and after such Shares, if any, have been actually issued to the
Participant and transferred on the books and records of the Company or its agent in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.
8.
Nontransferability. The Restricted Stock Units shall not be transferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution.
9.
No Right to Continued Employment. Neither the Restricted Stock Units nor any terms contained in this Agreement shall
confer upon the Participant any rights or claims except in accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement and shall not give
the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in the employment or service of the Company or any Affiliate for any period, or in any
particular position or at any particular rate of compensation, nor restrict in any way the right of the Company or any Affiliate, which right is hereby
expressly reserved, to modify or terminate the Participant’s employment or service, in each case, at any time for any reason, subject to any legal and
contractual conditions. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that any right to lapse of the Period of Restriction is earned only by continuing as
an employee of the Company or an Affiliate at the will of the Company or such Affiliate and satisfaction of any other applicable terms and
conditions contained in the Plan and this Agreement, and not through the act of being hired or being granted the Restricted Stock Units hereunder.
10. The Plan. By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated his or her acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Plan. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies
and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the Committee. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement,
the provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can
be found [on the Company’s HR intranet]. A paper copy of the Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written
request to the Company at the address set forth in Section 13 hereof.
11.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a) The Restricted Stock Units and the obligation of the Company to deliver any Shares hereunder shall be subject in all respects
to (i) all applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations; and (ii) any registration, qualification, approvals or other requirements imposed by any
government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or applicable. Moreover, the Company shall
not deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement if doing so would be contrary to applicable law. If at
any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon any national securities exchange or under any
state or federal law, or the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable, the Company shall not be required to deliver
any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or
approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company.
(b) It is intended that any Shares issued hereunder shall have been registered under the Securities Act. If the Participant is an
“affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant may not sell such Shares received except
in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a legend setting forth such restrictions on the
disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with federal and state securities laws.
(c) If at any time the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is no current prospectus in effect under the
Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant to this
Agreement, an agreement (in such form as the Company may specify) in which the Participant represents and warrants that the Participant is acquiring the
Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof, and
represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant to either (i) a registration
statement on an appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with regard to the Shares being
offered or sold; or (ii) a specific exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, but in claiming such exemption the Participant shall, prior
to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the Company, from counsel for or approved
by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.
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12. Data Protection. By participating in the Plan, each Participant consents to the collection, processing, transmission and storage by the
Company or any Affiliate, in any form whatsoever, of any data of a professional or personal nature which is necessary for the purposes of administering the
Plan. The Company may share such information with any Affiliate, any trustee, its registrars, brokers, other third-party administrator or any person who
obtains control of the Company or any Affiliate or any division respectively thereof.
13. Notices. All notices by the Participant or the Participant’s successors or permitted assigns shall be addressed to ReWalk Robotics Ltd.,
Kochav Yokneam Building, Floor 6, P.O. Box 161, Yokneam Ilit 20692 Israel, Attention: [Chief Financial Officer], or such other address as the Company
may from time to time specify. All notices to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s address in the Company's records.
14. Other Plans. The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from the receipt, vesting or settlement of the Restricted Stock
Units, or otherwise related to the Restricted Stock Units, shall not affect the Participant’s participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other
contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Affiliate.
15. Section 409A. This Agreement and the Restricted Stock Units are intended to be exempt from Section 409A of the Code and shall be
administered and construed in accordance with such intent.
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Director RSU

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.
2015 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Participant:

[•]

Company:

ReWalk Robotics Ltd.

Notice:

You have been granted the following Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the terms of the Plan, this Notice of Restricted
Stock Unit Grant and the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement attached hereto as Attachment A (this Notice of Restricted Stock
Unit Grant, together with the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, this “Agreement”), contingent upon your payment of NIS
0.01 for each Restricted Stock Unit (par value) within 30 days of such Restricted Stock Unit vesting.

Type of Award:

Restricted Stock Units.

Plan:

ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2015 Incentive Compensation Plan

Grant:

Date of Grant: December 15, 2014
Total Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units: [•]

Period of Restriction:

Acknowledgement
and Agreement:

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and those of this Agreement, the Period of Restriction applicable to the Total
Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units shall commence on the Date of Grant and shall lapse on the first anniversary
of the Date of Grant as to one-third of the Total Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units, with the remaining Total
Number of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units to lapse every three months thereafter as to one-twelfth of the Total Number
of Shares Underlying Restricted Stock Units.
The undersigned Participant acknowledges receipt of, and understands and agrees to, the terms and conditions of this Agreement
and the Plan.

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.

PARTICIPANT

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

Date:
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Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement -- Attachment A

REWALK ROBOTICS LTD.
2015 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated as of the Date of Grant set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant
(the “Grant Notice”) to which this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement is attached as Schedule A, is made between ReWalk Robotics Ltd. and the
Participant set forth in the Grant Notice. The Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.
1.
Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Plan.
2.
Grant of the Restricted Stock Units. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Plan, the Company
hereby grants to the Participant, pursuant to the Plan, the number of Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Grant Notice.
3.
Period of Restriction. The Period of Restriction with respect to the Restricted Stock Units shall commence and lapse as set forth
in the Grant Notice. All Restricted Stock Units as to which the Period of Restriction has not lapsed prior to the date of the Participant’s Termination shall be
immediately forfeited upon such date.
4.
Settlement of Restricted Stock Units. As soon as reasonably practicable following the lapse of the applicable portion of the
Period of Restriction, but in no event later than 15 days following the date of such lapse, the Company shall cause to be delivered to the Participant, in full
settlement and satisfaction of the Restricted Stock Units as to which such portion of the Period of Restriction has so lapsed: (a) the full number of Shares
underlying such Restricted Stock Units, (b) a cash payment in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of such Shares on the date of such lapse or (c) a
combination of such Shares and cash payment, as the Committee, in its discretion, shall determine, subject to satisfaction of applicable tax withholding
obligations with respect thereto in accordance with Section 6 of this Agreement.
5.
Change of Control. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to the
Change of Control provisions set forth in Article XIV of the Plan.
6.
Taxes. The Participant acknowledges and agrees, as a condition of this grant, upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, or as
of any other date on which the value of any Restricted Stock Units otherwise becomes includible in the Participant’s gross income for tax purposes and/or
social security purposes, that the Participant will pay all applicable federal, state or local withholding taxes required by law to be withheld in respect of the
Restricted Stock Units by the sale of Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units in an amount reasonably determined by the Company to be sufficient to
satisfy (i) such withholding taxes and (ii) if required under applicable law, payment of NIS 0.01 for each Restricted Stock Unit (par value), and to deliver
proceeds from such sale to the Company in payment of the foregoing. In order to authorize such sale, this agreement constitutes an irrevocable direction by
the Participant to a licensed securities broker selected from time to time by the Company, which as of the Grant Date is Oppenheimer Inc., to sell such Shares
at the available market price on or about the applicable vesting date (with the date of such sale to be at the sole discretion of the selected broker), deliver such
sale proceeds to the Company in payment of such withholding taxes and, if required under applicable law, payment of NIS 0.01 for each Restricted Stock
Unit (par value), and provide to the Company a duplicate confirmation of such sale. The Participant must establish the necessary account with the selected
broker before the first vesting date for this grant and authorizes the Company and the broker to cooperate and communicate with one another to effectuate. It
is the Participant’s intent that this election to sell comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(B) of the Exchange Act. The Participant is responsible
for providing to the selected broker all applicable forms necessary to facilitate this transaction. In addition, the Company may deduct from payments of any
kind otherwise due to the Participant all applicable withholding taxes in respect of these Restricted Stock Units or the Shares underlying the Restricted Stock
Units and, if required under applicable law, payment of NIS 0.01 for each Restricted Stock Unit (par value). The Company or an Affiliate may, in the
discretion of the Committee, provide for alternative arrangements to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements in accordance with Article XVI of the
Plan. Regardless of any action the Company or any Affiliate takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including any social security contributions)
obligations, the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all such taxes is and remains the Participant’s responsibility, and that the Company
does not: (i) make any representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock
Units, including the grant or vesting thereof, the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt of any dividends; or (ii) commit to structure
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the terms of the Restricted Stock Units or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for such tax.
7.
No Rights as a Shareholder Prior to Issuance of Shares. Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the
beneficial owner of the Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units, nor have any rights to dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to
any such Shares, until and after such Shares, if any, have been actually issued to the Participant and transferred on the books and records of the
Company or its agent in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.
8.
Nontransferability. The Restricted Stock Units shall not be transferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution.
9.
No Right to Continued Service. Neither the Restricted Stock Units nor any terms contained in this Agreement shall
confer upon the Participant any rights or claims except in accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement and shall not give
the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in the service of the Company for any period, or in any particular position or at any
particular rate of compensation, nor restrict in any way the right of the Company, which right is hereby expressly reserved, to modify or terminate
the Participant’s service at any time for any reason. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that any right to lapse of the Period of Restriction is
earned only by continuing in the service of the Company and satisfaction of any other applicable terms and conditions contained in the Plan and this
Agreement, and not through the act of being retained as a director of the Company or being granted the Restricted Stock Units hereunder.
10. The Plan. By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated his or her acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Plan. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies
and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the Committee. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement,
the provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can
be found [on the Company’s HR intranet]. A paper copy of the Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written
request to the Company at the address set forth in Section 13 hereof.
11.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a) The Restricted Stock Units and the obligation of the Company to deliver any Shares hereunder shall be subject in all respects
to (i) all applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations; and (ii) any registration, qualification, approvals or other requirements imposed by any
government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or applicable. Moreover, the Company shall
not deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement if doing so would be contrary to applicable law. If at
any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon any national securities exchange or under any
state or federal law, or the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable, the Company shall not be required to deliver
any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or
approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company.
(b) It is intended that any Shares issued hereunder shall have been registered under the Securities Act. If the Participant is an
“affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant may not sell such Shares received except
in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a legend setting forth such restrictions on the
disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with federal and state securities laws.
(c) If at any time the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is no current prospectus in effect under the
Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant to this
Agreement, an agreement (in such form as the Company may specify) in which the Participant represents and warrants that the Participant is acquiring the
Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof, and
represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant to either (i) a registration
statement on an appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with regard to the Shares being
offered or sold; or (ii) a specific exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act,
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but in claiming such exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance
satisfactory to the Company, from counsel for or approved by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.
12. Data Protection. By participating in the Plan, each Participant consents to the collection, processing, transmission and storage by the
Company or any Affiliate, in any form whatsoever, of any data of a professional or personal nature which is necessary for the purposes of administering the
Plan. The Company may share such information with any Affiliate, any trustee, its registrars, brokers, other third-party administrator or any person who
obtains control of the Company or any Affiliate or any division respectively thereof.
13. Notices. All notices by the Participant or the Participant’s successors or permitted assigns shall be addressed to ReWalk Robotics Ltd.,
Kochav Yokneam Building, Floor 6, P.O. Box 161, Yokneam Ilit 20692 Israel, Attention: [Chief Financial Officer], or such other address as the Company
may from time to time specify. All notices to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s address in the Company's records.
14. Other Plans. The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from the receipt, vesting or settlement of the Restricted Stock
Units, or otherwise related to the Restricted Stock Units, shall not affect the Participant’s participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other
contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Affiliate.
15. Section 409A. This Agreement and the Restricted Stock Units are intended to be exempt from Section 409A of the Code and shall be
administered and construed in accordance with such intent.
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-199688) pertaining to ReWalk Robotics Ltd.
2006 Share Option Plan, ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan and ReWalk Robotics Ltd. 2014 Incentive Compensation Plan of
our report dated February 29, 2016, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of ReWalk Robotics Ltd. and its subsidiaries included
in the annual report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2015, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
/s/ Kost, Forer, Gabbay & Kasierer
KOST, FORER, GABBAY & KASIERER
A Member of Ernst & Young Global
Tel Aviv, Israel
February 29, 2016

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A)/15D-14(A)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Larry Jasinski, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ReWalk Robotics Ltd.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual
report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
/s/ Larry Jasinski
Larry Jasinski
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: February 29, 2016

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A)/15D-14(A)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Kevin Hershberger, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ReWalk Robotics Ltd.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual
report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
/s/ Kevin Hershberger
Kevin Hershberger
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 29, 2016

EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of ReWalk Robotics Ltd. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Larry Jasinski, do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:
•
•

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ Larry Jasinski
Larry Jasinski
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 29, 2016

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of ReWalk Robotics Ltd. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kevin Hershberger, do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:
•
•

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company
/s/ Kevin Hershberger
Kevin Hershberger
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 29, 2016

